
  
 

APOPKA CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
August 15, 2018 7:00 PM 

APOPKA CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

 

CALL TO ORDER 
INVOCATION 
PLEDGE 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

1. City Council regular meeting August 1, 2018. 
 

AGENDA REVIEW 

PRESENTATIONS 

1. Presentation on Records Destruction.             Linda Goff 
 

Public Comment Period: 

The Public Comment Period is for City-related issues that may or may not be on today’s Agenda. If you are here for a matter that 
requires a public hearing, please wait for that item to come up on the agenda. If you wish to address the Council, you must fill out an 
Intent to Speak form and provide it to the City Clerk prior to the start of the meeting. If you wish to speak during the Public Comment 
Period, please fill out a green-colored Intent-to-Speak form. If you wish to speak on a matter that requires a public hearing, please fill 
out a white-colored Intent-to-Speak form. Speaker forms may be completed up to 48 hours in advance of the Council meeting. Each 
speaker  will  have  four minutes to  give  remarks,  regardless  of  the  number  of  items  addressed.  Please refer to Resolution No. 
2016-16 for further information regarding our Public Participation Policy & Procedures for addressing the City Council. 
 
CONSENT (Action Item) 

1. Accept and update signatories with First Green Bank.    
2. Award a contract for the construction of the Kit Land Nelson Park Fitness Trails.  
3. Authorize the renewal of a roll-off container franchise agreement fwith Mid Florida Materials for an additional two year term. 
4. Approval of alcohol sales at the Labor Day weekend event at the Northwest Recreation Complex on September 2, 2018. 
5. Approve a fee structure for room rental fees at the Apopka Community Center & Fran Carlton Center.  

 
BUSINESS (Action Item) 

1. Buffer Variance Appeal – Hidden Lake Reserve Subdivision         David Moon 
Project:  TGINF, LLC  
Location: 501 Old Dixie Highway 
 

2. Preliminary Development Plan – Hidden Lake Reserve Subdivision                                                                       Jean Sanchez 
Project:  TGINF, LLC  
Location: 501 Old Dixie Highway 
 

3. Approve Interlocal Agreements between Orange County Fire Rescue & the City of Apopka Fire Department.  Chief Carnesale 
4. Discussion on School Resource Officers.         Chief McKinley 
5. Approve the termination of the Red Light Camera Agreement with American Traffic Solutions Inc.     Edward Bass 

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS/ORDINANCES/RESOLUTION (Action Item) 

1. Ordinance No. 2669 - Second Reading - Bear Management Program & Containers            Jay Davoll 
2. Resolution 2018-13 - FY17/18 Budget Amendment. Jamie Roberson 

 
CITY COUNCIL REPORTS 
 
MAYOR’S REPORT 

1. Florida League of Cities Proposed Resolutions.  
2. Application for a special playground grant through Florida Department of Environmental Protection.  

 
ADJOURNMENT 

 

 
1



  
 

 
MEETINGS AND UPCOMING EVENTS 

DATE TIME EVENT 

August 18, 2018 11:00am – 12:00pm  Cookies & Milk with a Cop – NW Orange/Apopka Library 

August 27, 2018 10:00am –   Lake Apopka Natural Gas District Board Meeting: Winter Garden 

September 2, 2018  6:00pm – 9:00pm  Sunday Fun Day Celebration – NW Recreation Complex  

September 3, 2018 - Labor Day - City Offices Closed 

September 5, 2018 1:30pm –  City Council Meeting  

September 5, 2018 5:15pm –  Budget Hearing 

September 6, 2018 5:30pm – 9:00pm  Food Truck Round Up 

September 10, 2018 6:30pm –  CONA Meeting – UCF Apopka Business Incubator 

September 11, 2018 5:30pm – 7:30pm  Planning Commission Meeting 

September 15, 2018 11:00am – 12:00pm  Cookies & Milk with a Cop – NW Orange/Apopka Library 

September 19, 2018 7:00pm –  Budget Hearing & City Council Meeting 

September 24, 2018 10:00am –   Lake Apopka Natural Gas District Board Meeting: Winter Garden 

 
Individuals with disabilities needing assistance to participate in any of these proceedings should contact the City Clerk at least two (2) working days in 
advance of the meeting date and time at (407) 703-1704.  F.S. 286.0105 If a person decides to appeal any decision or recommendation made by 
Council with respect to any matter considered at this meeting, he will need record of the proceedings, and that for such purposes he may need to ensure 
that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. 
 
Any opening invocation that is offered before the official start of the Council meeting shall be the voluntary offering of a private person, to and for the 
benefit of the Council.  The views or beliefs expressed by the invocation speaker have not been previously reviewed or approved by the City Council or 
the city staff, and the City is not allowed by law to endorse the religious or non-religious beliefs or views of such speaker.  Persons in attendance at the 
City Council meeting are invited to stand during the opening ceremony. However, such invitation shall not be construed as a demand, order, or any other 
type of command.  No person in attendance at the meeting shall be required to participate in any opening invocation that is offered or to participate in the 
Pledge of Allegiance.  You may remain seated within the City Council Chambers or exit the City Council Chambers and return upon completion of the 
opening invocation and/or Pledge of Allegiance if you do not wish to participate in or witness the opening invocation and/or the recitation of the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 
  

2



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1. City Council regular meeting August 1, 2018. 

 
  

3



CITY OF APOPKA 

 

Minutes of the regular City Council meeting held on August 1, 2018, at 1:30 p.m., in the 

City of Apopka Council Chambers. 
 

PRESENT:   Mayor Bryan Nelson 

Commissioner Doug Bankson 

Commissioner Kyle Becker  

Commissioner Alice Nolan 

City Attorney Cliff Shepard 

City Administrator Edward Bass 

 

ABSENT:  Commissioner Alexander Smith 

 

PRESS PRESENT:  John Peery - The Apopka Chief 

    Reggie Connell, The Apopka Voice 

 

 

INVOCATION: - Mayor Nelson called on Pastor James Hicks, Center of Faith Church, who 

gave the invocation. 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Mayor Nelson introduced Jessica Brevill, Apopka Youth 

Works, and incoming Junior at Wekiva High School, who led the Pledge of Allegiance. Jessica 

gave the following three history facts:  1) Francis Scott Key was an American lawyer and poet, 

famous for writing the lyrics for the U.S. National Anthem. He was born on August 1, 1779;  2) 

Samme Lee was the first Asian American to win the Olympic gold medal and the first man to 

ever win back-to-back gold medals in platform diving. He was born on August 1, 1920; and 3) 

Dr. Benjamin Elijah Mays is one of the most brilliant and influential Civil Rights Leaders in 

American History. Mays was not only the president of Morehouse College for 27 years but he 

was also the mentor of Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr. For these reasons, Dr. Mays is deserving of 

honor and dignity, born this day in 1894. 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

1. City Council regular meeting July 18, 2018.. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Nolan, and seconded by Commissioner Becker, to approve 

the minutes of July 18, 2018 as presented.  Motion carried unanimously with Mayor 

Nelson, and Commissioners Bankson, Becker, and Nolan voting aye.  

 

AGENDA REVIEW – City Administrator Bass advised there were no changes. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT; STAFF RECOGNITION AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

Employee Recognition: 

 Ten Year Service Award - Andrew L. Brown – Fire/EMS. Andrew was not present and 

will be presented his award another time. 

4



 

 

CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on August 1, 2018, 1:30 p.m.  

Page 2 

 Fifteen Year Service Award - Phil R. Hardy – Public Services/Fleet Management 

Equipment Mechanic. Phil was not present and will be presented his award at another 

time. 

 Fifteen Year Service Award - David L. Whitty – Police/Support Services Code 

Enforcement Officer. The Commissioners joined Mayor Nelson in congratulating Dave 

on his years of service.  

 Twenty Year Service Award - Brett E. Webster – Police/Field Services Police Officer. 

The Commissioners joined Mayor Nelson in congratulating Brett on his years of service. 

 Thirty Year Service Award - Scott A. Bruehl – Fire/Suppression Firefighter Engineer. 

Scott was not present and will be presented his award at another time. 

 

Presentations: 

1. FBI presentation referencing Iberia bank attempted robbery. 

 

Ron Hopper, FBI Assistant Special Agent in Charge, Orlando, spoke of the risks involved with 

the case regarding the attempted robbery of Iberia Bank, stating this was executed with such 

precision that those involved are being recognized. He stated they waited for this particular point 

to make sure they had the absolute best evidence to secure successful prosecution. He said the 

private sector involved in this were just as courageous as the men and women in law 

enforcement that helped execute this and this case was the perfect example of how community 

works with law enforcement. He affirmed this group was armed and violent as they robbed 

various establishments. The FBI Safe Streets Task Force conducted an investigation in 

collaboration with multiple agencies including the Apopka Police Department, Kissimmee Police 

Department, Orlando Police Department, Oviedo Police Department, The Florida Department of 

Law Enforcement, and the Sheriff’s offices from Orange, Seminole, and Osceola Counties. He 

said when they determined Iberia Bank in Apopka was their next target, they worked with Iberia 

Bank who worked with the FBI and these agencies to develop a plan to stop these violent 

criminals while mitigating risks to the public and law enforcement officers.  On December 7, 

2017, investigators arrested the four subjects who were armed and wearing disguises as they 

attempted to make entry into Iberia Bank. He advised these subjects were taken into custody 

without incident, subsequently prosecuted by the U.S. Attorney’s office, and sentenced.  He 

called on Kevin Kaufman who was an award recipient, and Justin Crenshaw, Supervisor of the 

Safe Streets Task Force, who helped in handing out the awards to individuals from Apopka 

Police Department, Oviedo Police Department, Orlando Police Department, Orange County 

Sherriff’s office, and Iberia Bank employees, Middle District of Florida U.S. Attorney’s office, 

and FBI representatives of the Task Force in Orlando, in appreciation of their service.  

 

Public Comment: 
 

Dr. JoAnne Craig said she was here to introduce herself and inform the City that she was 

opening a charter stem school in Apopka. She stated this school will help the city grow, stating 

she has researched for three years what goes on in the City of Apopka with education. She has 

been in the field of education for almost 30 years. She said this school will open doors for 

students they never thought possible and will give them the opportunity to achieve locally and 

globally. She advised they are not a magnet school, but a full stem school. She has been working 

with Mr. Cooper for several months on the Cooper Sports Complex where they anticipate as the 

5



 

 

CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on August 1, 2018, 1:30 p.m.  

Page 3 

location for the new school. She stated they will be hiring, and affirmed that they already have a 

Principal who is experienced in running a charter school. She said they want to build community 

partnerships. She is the CEO of the Central Florida Stem Academy. She said anyone interested 

can contact her at 609-477-1777. They will be placing application in February of this year and 

the school will not be slated to open until August of 2020.  

 

CONSENT 
1. Authorize funds from Law Enforcement Trust Funds to be donated to Apopka High School 

Academic Consortium of Scholars. 

2. Authorize funds from Law Enforcement Trust Funds to be donated to Apopka High School 

to support local youth sports. 

3. Authorize a donation from Law Enforcement Trust Funds to purchase an outdoor cinema 

system for public outreach programs. 

4. Approve a Sewer and Water Capacity Agreement for Lakeside Phase I. 

5. Approve emergency repairs to the Bradshaw Rd. Regional Lift Station #77. 

   

 MOTION by Commissioner Bankson, and seconded by Commissioner Becker, to 

approve five items on the Consent Agenda. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor 

Nelson and Commissioners Bankson, Becker, and Nolan voting aye.  

 

BUSINESS 

1. Approve the Sunday Fun Day event on September 2, 2018 

Lorena Potter, Acting Recreation Director, presented the Sunday Fun Day event for 

September 2, 2018.  She advised the City will either receive a refund from the prior fireworks 

vendor or event insurance.  

 

MOTION by Commissioner Nolan, and seconded by Commissioner Bankson, to 

approve the Sunday Fun Day even on September 2, 2018, as presented. Motion carried 

unanimously with Mayor Nelson, and Commissioners Bankson, Becker, and Nolan 

voting aye.  

 

2. Preliminary Development Plan – Fairfield Inn & Self-Storage - Project: Farish Enterprises, LLC 

Location: 1616 East Semoran Boulevard 

Jean Sanchez, Planner, reviewed the project for the Preliminary Development Plan for 

Fairfield Inn and Self-Storage.  She reviewed the location south of Semoran Boulevard and 

west of Lake Pleasant Road on a map and the surrounding properties. She advised that 

approximately 10 acres will be developed into the parcel for the hotel and self-storage 

facility. Access will be off of Semoran Boulevard at McVilla Avenue, an existing private 

drive. Stormwater run-off and drainage will be maintained onsite with a retention pond with 

a 6-foot aluminum fence surrounding it. She advised that after the Planning Commission 

hearing on July 10, 2018, the applicant revised the proposed buffer from a 30’ wide to a 35’ 

wide landscape buffer on the eastern portion abutting residential districts. She reviewed the 

architectural renderings.  The Planning Commission and DRC recommend approval. The 

recommendation is to approve the Fairfield Inn & Self-Storage Preliminary Development 

Plan. 

 

6



 

 

CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on August 1, 2018, 1:30 p.m.  

Page 4 

Chris Blurton, Interplan, LLC, said in response to Commissioner Bankson’s inquiring about 

the left turn, the shared driveway between the Racetrac and Aldi is a shared driveway that 

does extend back to this property and it will be the left turn access to the property at the 

signal.  He stated he was present to answer any questions. 

 

Mayor Nelson opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing.  

 

MOTION by Commissioner Bankson, and seconded by Commissioner Nolan, to 

approve the Preliminary Development Plan for Fairfield Inn and Self-Storage as 

presented. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Nelson, and Commissioners 

Bankson, Becker, and Nolan voting aye.  

 

3. Final Development Plan – Lakeshore at Wekiva (FKA Sandpiper Road Subdivision) - 

Project:  Beazer Homes, LLC - Location:  Southeast corner of Ustler Road and Sandpiper 

Road 

Ms. Sanchez provided a brief lead-in for the Final Development Plan, Lakeshore at Wekiva. 

She reviewed the previously approved plat of Sandpiper Subdivision. She advised the 

applicant is requesting reducing the tree preservation on Tract A on the western portion of 

this site to accommodate for a compensating storage area to offset flood storage. The 

recommendation is to approve the Lakeshore of Wekiva Subdivision revised Final 

Development Plan subject to Ordinance 2506 and findings of the staff report.  

 

David Stokes, Madden, Moorhead, & Stokes, Inc., said they are the civil engineers on the 

project. He stated they are here unfortunately due to a mistake that was made when the plans 

were approved, as they did not have the compensating storage on the plans. Through the 

permitting and approximately four months later this compensating storage area was added to 

the project. He advised there was a preconstruction meeting in November and construction 

was started. He advised that Tract A was an open space, tree preservation, recreation, and a 

multi-use tract. He affirmed the compensation storage is a necessary requirement for the 

project which is why it was added. He stated this was the right thing to do and plans were 

resubmitted through staff. Staff is recommending approval and he advised there was some 

additional tree mitigation calculated by staff and those fees were paid.  

 

Commissioner Bankson inquired if the sidewalk at the end of Ustler was something that 

needs to be finished to meet ADA requirements. He also inquired as to the chain link fence 

where there had been trees.  

 

Mr. Stokes responded in the affirmative stating it would have to meet ADA requirements.  

 

Jeremy Camp, Beazer Homes, agreed with Mr. Stokes that none of them want to be in this 

position of having to be here today. He said he was 100% blindsided by this and said they try 

to go by the book. He affirmed that he brought this back to City Council in the summer of 

last year to be very upfront and transparent that this would be difficult to develop the way the 

code required and make note that more trees would have to come out. He stated they hired an 

arborist making every attempt to try and save trees and do this right. He declared there was 

7



 

 

CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on August 1, 2018, 1:30 p.m.  

Page 5 

nothing behind this that was intentional and he apologized that they are here today. He 

advised the chain link fence will be coming down as it is to be an aluminum architectural 

fence. He said there is a buffer that is approved, permitted, and ready to go that will be more 

decorative and fits the community as originally intended. He advised the arborist evaluated 

the trees when clearing the lots and trees that he deemed will survive 5-10 years remained.  

 

Commissioner Bankson said there has been a tremendous amount of water this year and said 

they did come in and clear out the drainage. He expressed concern about the north side and 

high level.  

 

Mr. Stokes advised the contractor brought the ditch down to slightly below the original intent 

and since the water level has dropped significantly. He affirmed that the water is controlled 

by the concrete weir at Sandpiper.  

 

Richard Earp, City Engineer, said this system he had worked on with Orange County in the 

mid 90’s. He advised there is a study that references the long term improvement potential for 

this area and this weir is part of that engineered system so that Lake McCoy has a control 

elevation. He advised with the ditch improvements, this is functioning as per the original 

design and permit.  

 

Mayor Nelson opened the meeting to a public hearing.  

 

Jack Cooper provided a handout and said he lives across from the development. He wanted to 

make sure the black chain link fence was coming down and the new fence will be down the 

property line. He said with regards to the tree removal they probably could have given up one 

or two lots and done the same thing. He pointed out a safety hazard where the weir is, stating 

the sidewalk is not closed and a person could fall there.  

 

Mr. Camp advised he would talk with the contractor and have this taken care of right away. 

He stated he also had met with the neighbor across the street as well as several other 

neighbors. One neighbor provided some information and they are working with them and 

will put the carp fence in the way the neighbors suggested.  

 

Mr. Cooper said he wanted to make sure all previous agreements were still in effect to which 

Mayor Nelson advised nothing else has changed.  

 

John Cloran said he owns property at Ustler and Tanglewide Roads and said the sidewalk has 

an ADA exit on the north side heading on Sandpiper to nothing. He spoke of this being 

unsafe and needs to be corrected with a crossover. He also addressed the trees and suggested 

the city arborist evaluate.  

 

No one else wishing to speak, Mayor Nelson closed the public hearing.  

 

MOTION by Commissioner Becker, and seconded by Commissioner Nolan, to approve 

the revised Final Development Plan for Lakeshore at Wekiva. Motion carried 

8



 

 

CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on August 1, 2018, 1:30 p.m.  

Page 6 

unanimously with Mayor Nelson, and Commissioners Bankson, Becker, and Nolan 

voting aye. 

 

4. Final Development Plan – Dollar General Store - Project: Lloyd Lee, Mobley Mattie Life 

Estate & Nathan Jerome Shaw, Sr. - Location: 51 & 57 E. Michael Gladded Blvd. and W. 9th 

Street 

Pam Richmond, Transportation Planner, said at the last City Council meeting staff was 

requested to provide additional information related to the traffic impact of the Dollar 

General. In response, staff has had our on call traffic engineering firm, LTEC to a review of 

the traffic impact analysis submitted by the applicant. She said the consultant was also asked 

to look at improvement strategies for the intersection of Michael Gladden Boulevard and 

South Park Avenue. She advised that Joe Roviaro from LTEC is present to go over his 

review of the traffic impact analysis.  

 

Joe Roviaro, Director of Transportation Planning for LTEC, said they were asked to review 

the traffic study that was performed for the Dollar General.  He advised they followed 

standard procedures and used industrial standards in terms of trip generation and analysis 

procedures. He advised they found this study to be acceptable and identified that the existing 

intersection of Park Avenue and Michael Gladden was operating at a deficient level of 

service for the minor street during the peak hour and it would continue to operate at this level 

of service for the east bound traffic at the completion of the development. He said they 

looked at some alternatives and one option was to implement some way fare signing so as 

traffic was proceeding east, they would have the opportunity to make a left at the intersection 

and go north to US 441 or take other roadways to come across to Park Avenue. He affirmed 

they have been working with the City since 2001 and they did the concurrency management 

system. He said that reviewing the 2017 study, traffic coming up Ocoee Apopka Road is 

generally 6,000 daily trips and Central has about 4,000 cars north of there and about 3,000 

daily trips between Central and Park Avenue.  

 

In response to Commissioner Becker inquiring if he agreed to the point of view where the 

applicant stated the proposed development is not proposed to add any traffic to the deficient 

movement, Mr. Roviaro said if he had been doing the study he would have assigned at least 

one car there. He stated in their analysis they did assign the pass by traffic and from that 

standpoint their statement was correct, stating they didn’t assign primary trips being 

generated by the development. He discussed pass by trips and primary trips. He stated this 

was defined as a small box discount store due to the variety of merchandise. He declared that 

technically the analysis was acceptable and if adding one or two trips from their development 

to primary, it would not have marginally impacted the operation of the intersection.  

 

Commissioner Becker inquired if the current east bound movement of level of service at an F 

rating was the worse.  Mr. Roviaro responded in the affirmative. Commissioner Becker said 

it seemed to him that they could do a better job of approving a project like this knowing it is 

going to contribute to an already deficient intersection.  

 

9



 

 

CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on August 1, 2018, 1:30 p.m.  

Page 7 

Mayor Nelson said he would like to have city staff work with Orange County to look into a 

traffic light between Michael Gladden and Central Avenue or 13
th

 Street and change the stop 

signs to make that street a through street to give people an option to go to the light.  

 

Ms. Richmond said they would work with Orange County and MetroPlan asking for a 

corridor analysis. She said this would not only address this intersection, but other 

deficiencies or potential problems in the area to coordinate resolutions. 

 

Scott Baker, Esquire, representing the applicant and developer, said they also have the traffic 

consultant present today. He stated he listened to the audio from the last meeting and he 

would like to address the hearing procedure. He said he heard a lot of discussion and 

testimony that had nothing to do with the quasi-judicial land-use application. He stated he 

heard a lot about the character of a competing retailer in the area, which they do not dispute, 

but feel it is irrelevant. They also received a copy of a petition submitted by the competing 

retailer containing maybe hundreds of signatures opposing this development. He said what he 

did not hear on that audio was any competent substantial evidence opposing any element of 

the staff report. He declared when his applicant came to the City of Apopka he had quite a 

few hurdles to overcome and he has done that and met his burden of complying with the 

comprehensive plan and the Land Development Code. The final thing he heard was some 

discomfort with the evidence they presented as to traffic. He heard the Commissioner direct 

their own staff to get another report done. He declared that that report, in all respects, 

confirms Mr. Abdallah’s report. He said each major point Mr. Abdallah made was just 

confirmed by the City’s own traffic consultant. He stated there has been no competent 

substantial evidence offered in opposition to this project. He said he would hope in going 

forward and for the remainder of this hearing, we get to put a fence around the legal issues at 

play. The character of Dollar General as a corporate citizen is not relevant, the character of a 

competing retailer is not relevant, and they do not dispute his high character. He stated he 

would like things to be kept to the evidence and he would like his client to have the 

opportunity to rebut any other competing evidence that might be introduced. He said the facts 

of the case are in the staff report and the traffic study they prepared, as well as that received 

from the City’s own consultant. The key number in those reports is basically either a “0” or a 

“1” depending on whether you are looking at the pass by traffic or the new trips. They 

respectfully request not being required to do a right in, right out only. He asked that Council 

agree with their staff’s recommendation to monitor the situation.  

 

Commissioner Becker reverted back to our counsel to confirm that focusing on traffic studies 

and traffic reports and the data contained therein is in the purview of this hearing. He said 

they must look at the totality of the evidence presented and if he wants to focus in on one 

piece of that evidence, how he interprets it and formulates his opinion is his right as a 

member of this Council. He said he realizes empirical data is not relevant to the arguments, 

but he is looking at the evidence presented.  

 

Mayor Nelson opened the meeting to a public hearing.  

 

Jun Kim said he is the petitioner and he opposes the Dollar General. He stated he came here 

to speak to Council about the Dollar General in the community and safety of pedestrians. He 

10



 

 

CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on August 1, 2018, 1:30 p.m.  

Page 8 

said the developer from the franchise called him to schedule a meeting in November of last 

year and said his store would not survive with the competition if he opened a store next door. 

He stated Council’s decision for approval will help him collapse him whether he builds his 

store or not. He declared many other small stores in the community will also be affected.  

 

Phyllis Nicholson said being a native of Apopka, Park Avenue has remained the main 

gateway from Orlando through Apopka down to Rock Springs Road. She said with the new 

hospital in the area, there will be more traffic created, as well as school buses and public 

transportation, she felt consideration should be on hold for this and the traffic restudied. She 

spoke of the accidents at this intersection and suggested a traffic signal be placed in this area. 

She said the new businesses should consider safety first and the community wants safety 

measures for traffic flow.  

 

Lloyd Lee said he purchased property on E. Michael Gladden and S. Park Avenue for the 

purpose to subsidize his retirement income. He stated this did not go very well as the house 

on Park Avenue was broken into by squatters multiple times so that he eventually consulted 

with the Fire Department who used it as training and the house was burned down and ended 

up costing him to remove the debris. He was lucky enough to get a buyer for the other 

property by Dollar General. He said this was a country of free enterprise and Dollar General 

will provide a service to the whole community.  

 

No one else wishing to speak, Mayor Nelson closed the public hearing.  

 

MOTION by Commissioner Nolan, and seconded by Commissioner Bankson, to 

approve the Final Development Plan for Dollar General Store. 

 

Commissioner Becker said they received information that this intersection is a service level F 

and they will perpetuate the issue by approving this project. He stated though they were not 

given a recommendation, it would be prudent to have a traffic light at this intersection and 

this would need to be in concert with the County. He declared the City needed to do more so 

not to negatively impact that area from a traffic perspective.  

 

Commissioner Bankson said as legal counsel has stated, there is a certain bar that has to be 

met for that decision to be made based on traffic. Even though there is going to be more 

traffic drawn to that area, it still has not reached that point. He said it is an intersection that 

needs more help and stated he had the same concerns 

 

Mayor Nelson reiterated partnering with the County and looking to MetroPlan to support a 

study for that area as well as Welch Road and Rock Springs Road. Both of these areas have 

City/County participation.  

 

Motion carried 3-1 with Mayor Nelson, and Commissioners Bankson and Nolan voting 

aye, and Commissioner Becker voting nay. 

 

5. Final Development Plan – Greater Faith World Center, Inc., Phase 1 

Project:  Center of Faith Church, Inc.  

11



 

 

CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on August 1, 2018, 1:30 p.m.  

Page 9 

Location: 700 Vick Road 

Bobby Howell, Senior Planner, said this is a Final Development Plan (FDP) for a 10,669 

square foot church at 700 Vick Road at the northeast corner of the intersection of Martin 

Road and Vick Road. He reviewed the surrounding area and pointed out to the north is 

Apopka High School. The subject property is approximately 3.25 acres in size and is zoned 

POI. The Final Development Plan is for Phase 1 of the church. Phases 2 and 3 appear on the 

FDP for information and planning purposes. Both of these phases will require Final 

Development Plan approval. He reviewed the parking and said access to the sight is provided 

at full access located on Martin Street which lines up with entrance to the High School with a 

right in and right out on Martin Street. An additional entrance with a right in and right out is 

proposed on Vick Road. He reviewed the architectural drawings. The Planning Commission 

recommends approval and DRC recommends approval.  

 

Pastor Hicks thanked the staff and Council for their support and work through this project.  

 

Mayor Nelson opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing.  

 

MOTION by Commissioner Bankson, and seconded by Commissioner Nolan, to 

approve the Final Development Plan for Greater Faith World Center, Inc., Phase 1. 

Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Nelson, and Commissioners Bankson, Becker, 

and Nolan voting aye.  

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS/ORDINANCES/RESOLUTION 
 

1. Ordinance No. 2654 –Second Reading – Change of Zoning 

Project: City of Apopka 

Location: 1680 South Lake Pleasant Road. The City Clerk read the title as follows:  

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2654 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO EXTEND 

ITS TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX PURSUANT 

TO FLORIDA STATUTE 171.044 THE HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED 

LANDS SITUATED AND BEING IN ORANGE COUNTY, OWNED BY 

THE CITY OF APOPKA; LOCATED AT 1680 S LAKE PLEASANT 

ROAD, AND COMPRISED OF APPROXIMATELY 4.45 ACRES; 

PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY CLERK, 

SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

Phil Martinez, Planner, advised there have been no changes since the first reading. 

 

Mayor Nelson opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing.  

 

12



 

 

CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on August 1, 2018, 1:30 p.m.  

Page 10 

MOTION by Commissioner Nolan, and seconded by Commissioner Becker, to adopt 

Ordinance No. 2654. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Nelson, and 

Commissioners Bankson, Becker, and Nolan voting aye.  

 

2. Ordinance No. 2660 – Second Reading - Change of Zoning  

 Project: JEL Land Development, LLC (Legacy Hills) 

 Location:  2400 Schopke Road.  The City Clerk read the title as follow: 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2660 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING 

THE ZONING FROM R-1A (SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL) TO 

“CITY” PUD (PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT) FOR CERTAIN REAL 

PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED WEST OF SCHOPKE LESTER 

ROAD AND SOUTH OF SHOPKE ROAD, COMPRISING 19.67 ACRES 

MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY JEL LAND DEVELOPMENT LLC; 

PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE. 

Phil Martinez, Planner, advised there have been no changes since the first reading.  

 

Mayor Nelson opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing.  

 

MOTION by Commissioner Bankson, and seconded by Commissioner Becker, to adopt 

Ordinance No. 2660. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Nelson, and 

Commissioners Bankson, Becker, and Nolan voting aye.  

 

3. Ordinance No. 2661 – Second Reading – Comp Plan – Small Scale 

 Project: 3255 Clarcona Road LLC (aka Randall Mechanical) 

 Location: 3307 Clarcona Road. The City Clerk read the title as follows:  

 

ORDINANCE 2661 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, AMENDING 

THE FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT OF THE APOPKA 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN OF THE CITY OF APOPKA; CHANGING 

THE FUTURE LAND USE DESIGNATION FROM AGRICULTURE (1 

DU/ 5 AC) TO INDUSTRIAL (MAX F.A.R. 0.60) FOR CERTAIN REAL 

PROPERTY LOCATED EAST OF CLARCONA ROAD AND NORTH OF 

STONE ROAD, COMPRISING 4.75 ACRES MORE OR LESS, AND 

OWNED BY 3255 CLARCONA ROAD LLC; PROVIDING FOR 

SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

Mr. Martinez advised there have been no changes since the first reading. 

 

13



 

 

CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on August 1, 2018, 1:30 p.m.  

Page 11 

Mayor Nelson opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing.  

 

MOTION by Commissioner Nolan, and seconded by Commissioner Becker, to adopt 

Ordinance No. 2661. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Nelson, and 

Commissioners Bankson, Becker, and Nolan voting aye.  

 

4. Ordinance No. 2662 – Second Reading – Change of Zoning. 

 Project: 3255 Clarcona Road LLC (aka Randall Mechanical) 

 Location: 3307 Clarcona Road. The City Clerk read the title as follows:  

 

ORDINANCE 2662 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING 

THE ZONING FROM AGRICULTURE TO I-1 (RESTRICTED 

INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT) FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY 

GENERALLY LOCATED EAST OF CLARCONA ROAD AND NORTH 

OF STONE ROAD, COMPRISING 4.75 ACRES MORE OR LESS, AND 

OWNED BY 3255 CLARCONA ROAD LLC; PROVIDING FOR 

DIRECTIONS TO THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, 

SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Mr. Martinez said there have been no changes since the first reading.  

 

Mayor Nelson opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing.  

 

MOTION by Commissioner Becker, and seconded by Commissioner Bankson, to adopt 

Ordinance No. 2662. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Nelson, and 

Commissioners Bankson, Becker, and Nolan voting aye.  

 

5.  Ordinance No. 2663 – Second Reading – Change of Zoning 

 Project: SunTrust Bank 

 Location: 936 East Semoran Boulevard. The City Clerk read the title as follows:  

 

ORDINANCE 2663 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING 

THE ZONING FROM C-2 (GENERAL COMMERCIAL DISTRICT) TO 

C-1 (COMMERCIAL RETAIL DISTRICT) FOR CERTAIN REAL 

PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED SOUTH OF EAST SEMORAN 

BOULEVARD AND EAST OF SHEELER AVENUE, COMPRISING 0.49 

ACRES MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY SUNTRUST BANK; 

PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE. 

14



 

 

CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on August 1, 2018, 1:30 p.m.  

Page 12 

Mr. Martinez said there have been no changes since the first reading. 

 

Mayor Nelson opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing.  

 

MOTION by Commissioner Nolan, and seconded by Commissioner Bankson, to adopt 

Ordinance No. 2663. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Nelson, and 

Commissioners Bankson, Becker, and Nolan voting aye.  

 

6. Ordinance No. 2666 – First Reading – Change of Zoning – Kelly Park Road Publix 

Center - Project:  JD and Kathleen L Horne Trust - Location:  4966 Plymouth-Sorrento 

Road. The City Clerk read the title as follows: 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2666 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING 

THE ZONING FROM “COUNTY” A-1 (PD/ZIP) TO “CITY” KELLY 

PARK INTERCHANGE MIXED-USE (KPI-MU), AND ASSIGNING A 

KELLY PARK CROSSING INTERCHANGE AND VILLAGE CENTER 

OVERLAY DISTRICTS, FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY 

GENERALLY LOCATED EAST OF STATE ROAD 429 ON THE 

SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THE INTERSECTION OF WEST KELLY 

PARK ROAD AND PLYMOUTH-SORRENTO ROAD, COMPRISING 

18.13 ACRES MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY JD AND KATHLEEN L 

HORNE TRUST; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, SEVERABILITY, 

CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

David Moon, Planning Manager, said this application was reviewed by the Council for 

change of zoning at the July 18, 2018, meeting and accepted at first reading, and scheduled 

the second reading for today. A Development Agreement is part of the application. He 

advised Council was being recommended to take three separate actions based on quasi-

judicial proceedings, first to adopt Ordinance No. 2666 establishing the zoning and overlay 

districts. The second action is to approve the Master Plan and Preliminary Development Plan. 

The third action is to approve the Development Agreement. He advised the presentation was 

made on the zoning, as well as the Master Plan at the July 18, 2018, Council meeting. He 

explained the purpose of the Development Agreement which is to set forth on a contractual 

basis the obligations of the developer of the proposed site, as well as any obligations the City 

may have. He advised the criteria is outlined in the staff report and reviewed the 

Development Agreement. Staff recommendation is to support the Development Agreement 

and the proposed actions.  

 

Kathy Hattaway, representing the applicant, said they are available for any questions.  

 

Mayor Nelson opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing.  

 

15



 

 

CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on August 1, 2018, 1:30 p.m.  

Page 13 

MOTION by Commissioner Nolan, and seconded by Commissioner Bankson, to adopt 

Ordinance No. 2666. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Nelson, and 

Commissioners Bankson, Becker, and Nolan voting aye.  

 

MOTION by Commissioner Nolan, and seconded by Commissioner Becker, to approve 

the Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan. Motion carried unanimously with 

Mayor Nelson, and Commissioners Bankson, Becker, Nolan, and Smith voting aye. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Nolan, and seconded by Commissioner Bankson, to 

approve the Development Agreement. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Nelson, 

and Commissioners Bankson, Becker, and Nolan voting aye. 

 

7. Ordinance No. 2667 – Second Reading – Change of Zoning/PUD Master 

Plan/Preliminary Development Plan – Project:  Vista Reserve 

Location: On the east side of Rogers Road, approximately ½ mile north of the intersection of 

Rogers Road and Lester Road.  The City Clerk read the title as follows:  

 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2667 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING 

THE ZONING FROM RESIDENTIAL SINGLE-FAMILY DISTRICT (R-

1AA) TO PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD), FOR CERTAIN REAL 

PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED ON THE EAST SIDE OF ROGERS 

ROAD, APPROXIMATELY ONE-HALF MILE NORTH OF THE 

INTERSECTION OF ROGERS ROAD AND LESTER ROAD, 

COMPRISING 61.1 ACRES MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY 

MIKHAIL WAFAA, ABDELSAYED GEORGE, ABDELSAYED LUCY, 

AND ABDELSAYED WAFEEK; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, SEVERABILITY, 

CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

Mr. Howell advised there have been no changes since the first reading. 

 

Mayor Nelson opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing.  

 

MOTION by Commissioner Becker, and seconded by Commissioner Bankson, to adopt 

Ordinance No. 2667. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Nelson, and 

Commissioners Bankson, Becker, and Nolan voting aye.  

 

8. Ordinance No. 2668 – Second Reading – Amending Ordinance No. 2345. 

Project: Orange Blossom Apopka RV Resort Inc., c/o Robert Vesely. 

Location: 3800 W. Orange Blossom Trail.  The City Clerk read the title as follows:  

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2668 

16



 

 

CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on August 1, 2018, 1:30 p.m.  

Page 14 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, AMENDING 

ORDINANCE 2345, WHICH AMENDS THE ADOPTED “KOA 

CAMPGROUND PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD) MASTER 

PLAN” FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY LOCATED AT 3800 WEST 

ORANGE BLOSSOM TRAIL, COMPRISING 10.2 ACRES MORE OR 

LESS; OWNED BY ORANGE BLOSSOM APOPKA RV RESORT INC; 

PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE. 

Mr. Martinez presented the project advising there had been no changes since the first reading.  

 

Mayor Nelson opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing.  

 

MOTION by Commissioner Nolan, and seconded by Commissioner Becker, to adopt 

Ordinance No. 2668. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Nelson, and 

Commissioners Bankson, Becker, and Nolan voting aye.  

 

9. Ordinance No. 2669 – First Reading – Bear Management Program & Containers. The 

City Clerk read the title as follows:  

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2669 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, AMENDING 

CHAPTER 66 “SOLID WASTE” OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF 

THE CITY OF APOPKA, BY AMENDING ARTICLE II, DIVISION 1, 

SECTION 66-36 “DEFINITIONS;” SECTION 66-37 “AUTHORITY OF 

PUBLIC SERVICES DIRECTOR;” SECTION 66-40 “SPECIAL 

COLLECTION PROBLEMS;” SECTION 66-65 “PREPARATION OF 

MATERIALS FOR COLLECTION;” SECTION 66-66 “PLACEMENT OF 

MATERIALS FOR COLLECTION;” SECTION 66-68 “FEE SCHEDULE – 

RESIDENTIAL;” AND SECTION 66-90 “PREPARATION OF 

MATERIALS FOR COLLECTIONS;” AND; PROVIDING DEFINITIONS; 

PROVIDING FOR APPLICABILITY; PROVIDING FOR A BEAR 

MANAGEMENT AREA; PROVIDING FOR ENFORCEMENT AND 

FINES; PROVIDING FOR PENALTIES; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT, 

SEVERABILITY; AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

Jay Davoll, Public Services Director, said this ordinance is to update our solid waste 

ordinance for the possibility of providing bear carts. He reviewed a map of the area listed in 

the ordinance. He advised the City has applied for a grant to help support the purchase of 

these carts. All policies will be put in place if we receive the grant. He advised there is a 

better opportunity of being approved for the grant with the changes to the ordinance in place.  

 

Mayor Nelson advised he had distributed some background information regarding the grant.  

 

17



 

 

CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on August 1, 2018, 1:30 p.m.  

Page 15 

In response to Commissioner Bankson, Mr. Davoll advised if a resident is not in the area, 

they can obtain a bear cart, but the cart will cost more out of the designated area.  

 

Mayor Nelson opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing.  

 

MOTION by Commissioner Nolan, and seconded by Commissioner Becker, to approve 

Ordinance No. 2669 at first reading and hold it over for a second reading. Motion 

carried unanimously with Mayor Nelson, and Commissioners Bankson, Becker, and 

Nolan voting aye.  

 

10. Resolution 2018-10 - FY17/18 Budget Amendment. The City Clerk read the title as 

follows:  

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2018-12 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, 

FLORIDA, AMENDING THE BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 

BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 2017 AND ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2018, 

PROVIDING FOR A BUDGET AMENDMENT 

Jamie Roberson, Finance Director, reviewed the budget amendment in detail. The request is 

to approve Resolution No. 2018-12, amending the budget for FY 17/18.  

 

Mayor Nelson opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing.  

 

MOTION by Commissioner Bankson, and seconded by Commissioner Becker, to 

approve Resolution No. 2018-12. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Nelson, and 

Commissioners Bankson, Becker, and Nolan voting aye.  

 

CITY COUNCIL REPORTS 

Commissioner Nolan said the Florida League of Cities conference is coming up and she asked 

the Commissioners to bring back any comments on the items being voted on to the next meeting 

that they would like her to make representation on behalf of the City. 

 

Commissioner Bankson requested Code Enforcement look into the area of the Circle K at 

Sandpiper. In addition, Mayor Nelson suggested they also look at the one across from the UCF 

Incubator.  

 

MAYOR’S REPORT 

 

Mayor Nelson advised that Bob Ryan was interested in serving on the Planning Commission. He 

asked Council to ratify his appointment. 

 

18



 

 

CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on August 1, 2018, 1:30 p.m.  

Page 16 

MOTION by Commissioner Nolan, and seconded by Commissioner Bankson, to ratify the 

appointment of Bob Ryan to the Planning Commission. Motion carried unanimously with 

Mayor Nelson, and Commissioners Bankson, Becker, and Nolan voting aye. 

 

 

 

ADJOURNMENT – There being no further business the meeting adjourned at 3:47 p.m.  

 

 

 

       _______________________________ 

       Bryan Nelson, Mayor 

ATTEST; 

 

 

____________________________ 
Linda F. Goff, City Clerk 

 

19



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1. Presentation on Records Destruction.            Linda Goff 

 
  

20



JULY 
RECORDS

MANAGEMENT MONTH

21



RECORDS DISPOSITION REQUESTS

22



POLICE DEPARTMENT
THE TASK BEGINS

23



ORGANIZED AND READY FOR DESTRUCTION

Sergeant Kim Walsh and Volunteer

Mark Davis worked diligently to organize 

the records at the Police Department.  

While all departments worked hard to 

Organize and prepare records for destruction

during July, Records Management Month,

the Police Department had the largest

number of boxes.

24



OLDEST RECORD

• WHO HAD THE OLDEST RECORD??? 

1953 

25



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1. Accept and update signatories with First Green Bank.   
  

  

26



 

 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

  X  CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: August 15, 2018  

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:             Administration 

       SPECIAL REPORTS     EXHIBITS:       

       OTHER:  
  

 

SUBJECT: DESIGNATION OF ACCOUNT SIGNATORIES FOR FIRST GREEN BANK 

 

REQUEST: UPDATE SIGNATORIES TO REMOVE THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR AND 

FINANCE DIRECTOR.  ADD THE NEWLY ELECTED MAYOR, APPOINTED 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR AND FINANCE DIRECTOR AT FIRST GREEN BANK 
  
SUMMARY:  
 

First Green Bank requires an update to the bank account signatories to remove the former City 

Administrator (Glenn A. Irby), and Interim Finance Director (Terry Bucy) and add newly elected Mayor 

(Bryan Nelson), appointed City Administrator (Edward Bass), and appointed Finance Director (Jamie 

Roberson) as an authorized signatory.  

 

The City has a $5,000,000 Certificate of Deposit (CD) with First Green Bank.   

 

The banking authorization forms contain confidential information that the City Clerk will provide after 

the City Council meeting for signature.   

    
FUNDING SOURCE:   
 

N/A    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:   
 

Accept an update to remove former City Administrator Glenn Irby, and Interim Finance Director Terry 

Bucy as an authorized signatory and add Mayor Bryan Nelson, City Administrator Edward Bass, and 

Finance Director Jamie Roberson at First Green Bank.   
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

27



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

2. Award a contract for the construction of the Kit Land Nelson Park Fitness Trails.  

 
  

28



 

 

 CITY OF APOPKA  

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

  X  CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF:  August 15, 2018  

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:                Administration 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:         Contractor Statement  

       OTHER:          Disney Article & Contractor Permit Docs. 
  

 

SUBJECT: KIT LAND NELSON PARK FITNESS TRAILS  

 

REQUEST: WAIVER OF THREE REFERENCE BID REQUIREMENT AND AWARD A 

CONTRACT TO SMITH BROOMFIELD & HOWARD CONSTRUCTION AND 

RESTORATION LLC.  
  
SUMMARY: 
As a grant application requirement City Council approved the second reading of Ordinance No. 2561 on 
March 15, 2017, amending the Capital Improvement Plan to include a fitness trail in Kit Land Nelson Park. 
The Florida Department of Environmental Protection awarded the City $120,000 to Construct a 10' X 2,900 
Linear Foot concrete fitness trail in Kit Land Nelson Park with the installation of additional landscaping, 
lighting, and parking spaces. The grant required a match of $80,000, which was approved by City Council on 
August 16, 2017. 
 

On June 20, 2018 City Council approved the rejection of bids received for the construction of the Kit Land 

Nelson Park Fitness Trails based on the submittals being over budget and qualifications not being met.  A re-

bid was conducted and opened on July 13, 2018, and one (1) sealed bid was received to construct the Kit Land 

Nelson Park Fitness Trails.   

 

The bid document requires within the qualifications three references similar to the owner.  The contractor has 

stated that they have primarily worked with Disney the last eight years.  Disney has a strict policy on 

supplying any reference material for contractors.  Staff is requesting a waiver for three references based on the 

information that was presented from the contractor to validate their work history with Disney (attached).  The 

bid does allow a waiver based on the following language “The owner reserves the right to reject any and all 

bids and to waive any and all irregularity in any bid”.   

 

The bid was submitted at $211,662.47, in order to remain within budget staff will remove from the bid an 

optional sand base bedding (a superior base has been chosen and included in the adjusted price) and the 

removal of existing concrete to be completed by city staff. These adjustments will reduce the price by 

$23,042.70. An awarded contract amount of $188,619.77 will allow for a contingency of $11,380.23 to be 

utilized for unforeseen costs or added back into the project for completion.  

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

FDEP Grant $120,000 

Reserves $80,000 - The Kit Land Nelson Park Fitness Trail grant and matching funds were approved on 

August 16, 2017.  The funding source was provided via savings from the general fund for that fiscal year 

however this amount was never adjusted.  The current budget amendment resolution 2018-13 included on 

this agenda will address these funds needed to complete the project.    29



RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Waiver of a three reference bid requirement and award a construction contract to Smith Broomfield & 

Howard Construction and Restoration LLC. in the amount of $188,619.77.   
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners       HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

30



From: lsmith@sbhconstruction.com [mailto:lsmith@sbhconstruction.com]  
Sent: Wednesday, August 1, 2018 12:52 PM 
To: Purchase <Purchase@apopka.net> 
Cc: bryan broomfield <bryan@sbhconstruction.com>; showard@sbhconstruction.com; 
mrobinson@sbhconstruction.com 
Subject: [FWD: FW: SB&H - Diverse Supplier of the Year Award] 
 
Purchase Department, 
  
This is probably the best we're going to get as far as work performance reference, below is 

an article in which we received an award and recognition of our level of workmanship and 

quality. This particular award is only given to 1 supplier every year out of a pool of thousands 

world wide within the Disney organization. As you can see from the article it speaks about 

projects we've done such as the new construction of a 26,000 sf building amongst many of 

the projects we've done over the years. I hope by the article below can you assure you of our 

qualifications and capabilities to meet the scope of work for the award of the Kit Land Nelson 

Park project. We're also gathering the certificates of completion for the projects referenced. 

Outside of that with Disney's strict policy in place as it pertains to references I don't know if 

there's much more we can gather being that we've basically done work for Disney exclusively 

for the last eight years primarily. 
 
Sincerely, 

Lamar Smith 

SMITH, BROOMFIELD & HOWARD CONSTRUCTION AND RESTORATION, LLC 

"MINORITY BUSINESS ENTERPRISE" 

321 West Alfred Street 

Tavares, Fl 32778 

phone: 407-828-8761  fax: 407-828-8764 

 
 
 
 

  

31



Disney Recognizes Diverse Supplier of the Year 
Filed in: About WDW, Making a Difference, Minority Business 

 

http://aboutwaltdisneyworldresort.com/releases/disney-recognizes-diverse-supplier-of-the-year/ 

LAKE BUENA VISTA, Fla., Feb. 6, 2015  

 

Business leaders from Smith, Broomfield and Howard Construction & Restoration, LLC (SB&H) thought they were 

attending a regular meeting with representatives from the Walt Disney World Resort recently, but it was actually a 

celebration of their outstanding service. Leaders from The Walt Disney Company surprised the team with the inaugural 

“Diverse Supplier of the Year” award. 

Tavares-based SB&H is a residential and commercial construction company with more than 45 years 

of building industry experience. The company completed its first Disney project – a small office renovation – in 2010. 

That initial contract opened the door to other Disney projects of increasing scope and complexity, including the 

renovation of the End Zone Food Court at Disney’s All-Star Sports Resort in 2013 and this year’s relocation of two 

Cast retail locations to a new 26,000-square-foot facility. 

“When we first started, it was just the three partners,” said Lamar Smith, president and chief financial officer of SB&H. 

“Since working with Disney, we’ve added full-time office personnel and 10 guys working in the field. We have grown 

beyond our wildest dreams.” 

Disney is committed to appealing to broad audiences and reflecting the diversity and multiculturalism of the world. 

The “Diverse Supplier” award is one of six design and construction awards being given this year. The others are 

Overall Supplier, Sustainable Supplier, Outstanding Service, Strategic Partner and Creativity/Innovation. 

“Including diverse suppliers in our sourcing process provides us the greatest opportunity to develop the most 

innovative, highest-quality and cost-effective business solutions,” said Eugene Campbell, vice president of Supplier 

Diversity for The Walt Disney Company. “This approach not only strengthens our company on the inside, but it also 

supports our community on the outside. It’s exciting when Disney gets to be a part of the growth of a local business 

like SB&H.” 

 
32



33



34



35



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

3. Authorize the renewal of a roll-off container franchise agreement for an additional term of two (2) years. 
  

36



 

 

 CITY OF APOPKA  

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

  X  CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: August 15, 2018  

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:              Public Services  

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:        

       OTHER:  
  

 

SUBJECT: RENEWAL FOR THE NON-EXCLUSIVE FRANCHISE FOR ROLL-OFF 

CONTAINER COLLECTION AND DISPOSAL OF WASTE IN THE CITY OF 

APOPKA WITH MID FLORIDA MATERIALS. 

 

REQUEST: AUTHORIZE A TWO-YEAR RENEWAL FOR MID FLORIDA MATERIALS. 
  
SUMMARY: 

 

On July 1, 2015, the City Council approved Resolution No. 2015-12, granting Mid Florida Materials, a 

non-exclusive franchise for roll-off collection. 

 

This franchise agreement expired July 1, 2018, and the current agreement authorizes an additional two-

year extension, at the option of the City. 

 

This agreement yields a minimum $960.00 annually for the City. 

 

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

 

N/A 

    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

 

Authorize the renewal of the franchise agreement with Mid Florida Materials for the additional term of 

two (2) years. 
 

  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

37



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

4. Approval of alcohol sales at the Sunday Fun Day event at Northwest Recreation Complex on September 2, 2018. 

 
  

38



 

 

 CITY OF APOPKA  

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 X   CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: August 15, 2018  

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:              Recreation 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:        

       OTHER:  
  

 

SUBJECT:  SUNDAY FUN DAY EVENT 

 

REQUEST:  APPROVAL OF ALCOHOL SALES AT THE SUNDAY FUND DAY EVENT 
  
SUMMARY: 
 

Ordinance No. 2376 requires City Council approval for the sale, consumption and carrying of alcoholic 

beverages on City-owned property during events or programs.  

 

The Bahia Shrine would like to sell beer and wine at the Sunday Fun Day event to be held at the 

Northwest Recreation Complex on Sunday, September 2, 2018. The Shrine has obtained the alcohol 

permit and has provided the city with the necessary liability insurance. They will purchase the products, 

provide all staffing for the sales and will keep any funds generated to benefit the Bahia Shrine. 

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

N/A - The Shrine will purchase all products necessary for the beer & wine sales.     
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Approve the Shrine to provide beer and wine sales for the Sunday Fun Day event on September 2, 2018. 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

39



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

5. Approve a fee structure for room rental fees at the Apopka Community Center & Fran Carlton Center.  

 
  

40



 

 

 CITY OF APOPKA  

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

  X  CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF:               August 15, 2018  

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:               Recreation 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:        

       OTHER:  
  

 

SUBJECT: APOPKA COMMUNITY CENTER & FRAN CARLTON CENTER 

 

REQUEST: ROOM RENTAL RATE APPROVAL  
  
SUMMARY: 

 

Currently there are no designated rates for meetings held during business hours for the weekday use of the 

Fran Carlton Center or the Apopka Community Center.  Staff is proposing an hourly meeting room rate of 

$25 per hour for the Fran Carlton Center and $35 per hour for the Apopka Community Center for civic 

and non-profit groups to host meetings Monday-Thursday during regular business hours (8am-5pm).  The 

new fee rate is subject to final application approval and based on availability (setup & breakdown is not 

included).   

 

Regular facility rental rates for private event rentals are shown below:  

FACILITY RESIDENT NON RESIDENT NON-PROFIT 

APOPKA COMMUNITY CENTER 
$75 PER HR  

PLUS TAX 

$100 PER HR 

PLUS TAX 

$65 PER HR 

NO TAX 

FRAN CARLTON CENTER 
$60 PER HR  

PLUS TAX 

$75 PER HR 

PLUS TAX 

$55 PER HR 

NO TAX 

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

N/A    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Approve the weekday meeting room rates for the Fran Carlton Center ($25hrly) & the Apopka 

Community Center ($35hrly). 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

41



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1. Buffer Variance Appeal – Hidden Lake Reserve Subdivision        David Moon 
Project:  TGINF, LLC – Location: 501 Old Dixie Highway 

  

42



   
 CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: August 15, 2018 

 PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

X SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Vicinity Map 

 OTHER:   Aerial Map 

    Zoning Map 

    Application/Appeal 

    Site Plan 

    PC Staff Report VAR18-06 

    PC Meeting Minutes 06-12-18 

    Variance/Appeal Procedures  
  

 

SUBJECT:  BUFFER VARIANCE APPEAL – 501 OLD DIXIE HIGHWAY 

   

REQUEST:  APPEAL A DECISION BY THE PLANNING COMMISION REGARDING A 

VARIANCE OF THE APOPKA CODE OF ORDINANCES, PART III, LAND 

DEVELOPMENT CODE, ARTICLE II, SECTION 2.02.07(H)(1)(a), TO 

ALLOW NO SCREENING WALL THE LENGTH OF PROPOSED 

RETENTION PONDS ON NORTH BRADSHAW ROAD OR EASTERN 

PROPERTY LINE IN LIEU OF REQUIRED SIX FOOT TALL BRICK, 

STONE OR DECORATIVE BLOCK WALL. 
  
SUMMARY: 

 
OWNER:  TGINF, LLC c/o Alan Goldberg 
 
LOCATION:  501 Old Dixie Highway 

 
PARCEL ID #: 09-21-28-0000-00-006 
 
LAND USE:  Medium Low Density Residential (0 – 7.5 du\ac) 
 
ZONING:  R-3 (Residential Multiple-Family) 
 
EXISTING USE: Vacant 
 
TRACT SIZE:  15.88 +/- Acres 
  
FUNDING SOURCE:  N/A 
 

  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 
G:\CommDev\PLANNING ZONING\VARIANCES\2018 - Variances\VAR18-06 TGINF LLC-Hidden Lake\11 Appeal\5 City Council Hearing 43



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 15, 2018 
TGINF, LLC - HIDDEN LAKE - VARIANCE APPEAL REQUEST 
PAGE 2 

 

VARIANCE SUMMARY:  The Planning Commission, at its meeting on June 12, 2018, approved the 

applicant’s request for a variance of the Apopka Code of Ordinances, Part III, Land Development Code, 

Article II, Section 2.02.07(H)(1)(a) to allow a six-foot high brick wall as screening adjacent to North 

Bradshaw Road or eastern property line be constructed to a point within 25 feet of the wetland line for 

property owned by TGINF, LLC, c/o Alan Goldberg, and located at 501 Old Dixie Highway in reference 

to a proposed townhome development, Hidden Lake Reserve.  No screening is required for the within 25-

feet of the wetland line for subject property.  The approval was based on Planning Commission 

determination that there was a positive finding for all of the seven criteria required for approval of a 

variance.  Minutes for the Planning Commission meeting show that the variance was approved based on 

the following: 

1. There are practical difficulties in carrying out the strict letter of the regulation [in] that the requested 
variance relates to a hardship due to characteristics of the land and not solely on the needs of the 
owner.  

PC FINDING:  The Planning Commission found a Positive Finding for this criteria because there 
are practical difficulties in carrying out the strict letter of the regulation that the requested variance 
relates to a hardship due to the characteristics of the land such as the existing waterbody and slope 
on the eastern boundary line of the property. 

2. The variance request is not based exclusively upon a desire to reduce the cost of developing the site. 

PC FINDING:  The Planning Commission Positive Finding for this criteria. 

3. The proposed variance will not substantially increase congestion on surrounding public streets. 

PC FINDING:  The Planning Commission found a Positive Finding for this criteria because the 
proposed variance will not substantially increase congestion on surrounding public streets. 

4. The proposed variance will not substantially diminish property values in, nor alter the essential 
character of, the area surrounding the site.  

PC FINDING: The Planning Commission found a Positive Finding for this criteria because the 
proposed variance will not substantially diminish property values in, not alter the essential character 
of, the area surrounding the site. 

5. The effect of the proposed variance is in harmony with the general intent of this code and the specific 
intent of the relevant subject area(s) of the code.  

PC FINDING: The Planning Commission found a Positive Finding for this criteria because the 
effect of the proposed variance is not in harmony with the general intent of this code and the specific 
intent of the relevant subject area(s) of the code. 

6. Special conditions and circumstances do not result from the actions of the applicant.  

PC FINDING: The Planning Commission found a Positive Finding for this criteria because there 
are no special conditions or circumstances that resulted from the actions of the applicant.  

7. That the variance granted is the minimum variance which will make possible the reasonable use of 
the land, building or structure. The proposed variance will not create safety hazards and other 
detriments to the public.  

44



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 15, 2018 
TGINF, LLC - HIDDEN LAKE - VARIANCE APPEAL REQUEST 
PAGE 3 

 
PC FINDING: The Planning Commission found a Positive Finding for this criteria because the 
variance granted is the minimum variance which will make possible the reasonable use of the land, 
building or structure and will not create safety hazards and other detriments to the public. 

In addition, the Planning Commission recommended that a 6-foot tall brick wall be constructed on the 

western boundary of the project, abutting Apopka Elementary School.  A 6-foot tall brick wall is required 

by Code for the southwestern portion of the boundary abutting single family residential uses.  There is an 

existing 6-foot tall brick wall within the 10-foot wide buffer on the north perimeter within Clayton Estates.  

Due to this existing brick wall, Staff has determined that the intent of Land Development Code (LDC) 

Section 2.2.07(H)(5) that requires multi-family developments adjacent to single-family developments to 

provide a minimum six-foot-high brick, stone or decorative block finished wall within a ten-foot landscaped 

bufferyard has been met for the north perimeter.  

The staff report and meeting minutes from the Planning Commission meeting on June 12, 2018 are attached. 

The applicant, Alan Goldberg, filed an appeal to the City Clerk's office on July 11, 2018 (appeal application 

and letter attached) requesting no buffer wall on portions beyond the 25-foot upland buffers of the wetland 

area on the eastern boundary abutting the retention ponds for the proposed Hidden Lake Reserve 

Subdivision. 

Procedures for processing a variance request are found within Section 10.02.00, LDC, and for addressing 

an appeal are found within Section 12.05.00, LDC.  A copy of both Sections are provided within the 

Exhibits. 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

July 27, 2018 - Public Notice 

 

  

45



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 15, 2018 
TGINF, LLC - HIDDEN LAKE - VARIANCE APPEAL REQUEST 
PAGE 4 

 

Owner:   TGINF, LLC c/o Alan Goldberg 

Applicant:  Alan Goldberg 

Parcel I.D. No:    09-21-28-0000-00-006 

Location:  501 Old Dixie Highway 

Total Acres:   15.88 +/- Acres   
 

VICINITY MAP 

 

   
 

  

46



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 15, 2018 
TGINF, LLC - HIDDEN LAKE - VARIANCE APPEAL REQUEST 
PAGE 5 

 

 

 

AERIAL MAP 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Subject Property 

47



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 15, 2018 
TGINF, LLC - HIDDEN LAKE - VARIANCE APPEAL REQUEST 
PAGE 6 

 

 

 

 

ZONING MAP 

 
 

   
 

 
 

48



49



50



51



 

 

 
CITY OF APOPKA 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

 
 

X PUBLIC HEARING  MEETING OF: June 12, 2018 

 SITE PLAN  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Vicinity Map 

X OTHER:  Variance  Aerial Map 

    Zoning Map 

    Application 

    Site Plan 

    Proposed Fence 

    OCPS DRC Comments 
  
SUBJECT:    BUFFER VARIANCE REQUEST – 501 OLD DIXIE HIGHWAY 

    

REQUEST:  APPROVE A VARIANCE OF THE APOPKA CODE OF ORDINANCES, 

PART III, LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE, ARTICLE II, SECTION 

2.02.07(H)(1)(a), TO ALLOW A 6-FOOT HIGH ALUMINUM FENCE WITH 

MASONRY COLUMNS FOR PORTIONS OF THE PROPOSED WALL 

LENGTH AND A 6-FOOT HIGH VINYL FENCE AS PART OF SCREENING 

IN AREAS ADJACENT TO NORTH BRADSHAW ROAD OR EASTERN 

PROPERTY LINE IN LIEU OF REQUIRED 6 FOOT TALL BRICK, STONE 

OR DECORATIVE BLOCK WALL. 
  
SUMMARY:  

 
OWNER:  TGINF, LLC c/o Alan Goldberg 
 
LOCATION:  501 Old Dixie Highway 

 
PARCEL ID #: 09-21-28-0000-00-006 
 
LAND USE:  Medium Low Density Residential (0 – 7.5 du\ac) 
 
ZONING:  R-3 (Residential Multiple-Family) 
 
EXISTING USE: Vacant 
 
TRACT SIZE:  15.88 +/- Acres 

 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

 
G:\CommDev\PLANNING ZONING\VARIANCES\2018 - Variances\VAR18-06 TGINF LLC-Hidden Lake 

  

52



PLANNING COMMISSION – JUNE 12, 2018 
TGINF, LLC - HIDDEN LAKE - VARIANCE REQUEST 
PAGE 2 
 
 

VARIANCE REQUEST SUMMARY:  Section 2.02.07(H)(1)(a) – Bufferyard requirements. A six-foot-

high brick, stone or decorative block finished wall adjacent to all external roadways, erected inside a 

minimum ten-foot landscaped bufferyard. Landscape material shall be placed adjacent to the right-of-way 

on the exterior of the buffer wall. The city may allow the developer the option to provide up to 50 percent 

of the buffer wall length in a six-foot wrought iron fence between solid columns. The columns shall be a 

minimum of 32 feet off-set and shall have a stone, brick or decorative block finish. 

 

Variance Request - Code Standard, Sec. 2.02.07(H)(1)(a) – Bufferyard requirements – A six-foot-high 

brick, stone or decorative block finished wall adjacent to all external roadways, erected inside a minimum 

ten-foot landscaped bufferyard.. 

 

 Applicant Request - Allow a 6' high masonry wall or 6' high aluminum fence with columns for 50% of 

the proposed wall length and the use of a 6’ high vinyl fence or a landscape barrier as a screening method 

in areas with excessive sloping conditions for a substitute to the required six-foot-high brick, stone or 

decorative block finished wall adjacent to the North Bradshaw Road or eastern property line. 

 

VARIANCE PROCESS:  Per Land Development Code Section 10.02.00, the Planning Commission shall 

follow two steps to approve a variance: 

 

Step 1: Section 10.02.02.A, Limitations on Granting Variances. The Planning Commission “shall first 

determine whether the need for the proposed variance arises out of the physical surroundings, 

shape topographical conditions, or other physical or environment conditions that are unique to 

the specific property involved.” This is known as a physical hardship. If the Planning 

Commission makes this determination, then it must take action on the seven variance criteria set 

forth in Section 10.02.02.B. 

 

Step 2: Section 10.02.02.B, Required Findings.  Once a “physical hardship” has been determined, the 

Planning Commission shall not vary from the requirements of any provision of the LDC unless 

it makes a positive finding, based on substantial competent evidence, on the seven variance 

criteria.  

 

APPLICABLE CITY CODES:   
 

1. Section 2.02.15(G)(3) – Areas adjacent to residential uses or districts shall provide a six-foot-high 

masonry wall within a minimum of 50-foot landscaped bufferyard. 

Variance Hardship Determination (Step 1):  The first step of the variance determination process is to 

determine if a hardship occurs pursuant to Section 10.02.02.A, “whether the need for the proposed variance 

arises out of the physical surroundings, shape topographical conditions, or other physical or environment 

conditions that are unique to the specific property involved.”  

 

Staff Response:  Staff supports a physical and environmental condition hardship because wetlands extend 

across the North Bradshaw Road right-of-way, and grade.  A staff recommendation is provided herein. 

 

Seven Variance Criteria Findings (Step 2): If the Planning Commission accepts the hardship in Paragraph 

A. above, the second step is to make a finding on the seven criteria below.  The Planning Commission must 

make a positive finding, based on substantial competent evidence, on each of the following seven criteria: 

 
53



PLANNING COMMISSION – JUNE 12, 2018 
TGINF, LLC - HIDDEN LAKE - VARIANCE REQUEST 
PAGE 3 
 

1. There are practical difficulties in carrying out the strict letter of the regulation [in] that the requested 

variance relates to a hardship due to characteristics of the land and not solely on the needs of the 

owner.  

 

Applicant’s Response:  Yes.  The variance has also previously been discussed with City 

Staff to ensure it will conform to the intended outline of the City's comprehensive plan.  

The Hidden Lake Reserve eastern property line abuts the existing 25’ wide North 

Bradshaw Road right-of-way.  Currently, North Bradshaw Road is an unimproved right-

of-way.  Wetlands extend across the right-of-way, creating a difficulty to construct a ten-

foot buffer and a brick wall.  In addition, the Hidden Lake Reserve natural topography 

has excessive slopes to the unnamed waterbody. This sloping condition is most 

prominent along the eastern property line (North Bradshaw Road). 

 

Staff’s Response:  No objection. 

 

2. The variance request is not based exclusively upon a desire to reduce the cost of developing the site. 

 

Applicant’s Response:  The Hidden Lake Reserve grading must address excessive 

sloping while meeting existing grades along the eastern property line. This sloping 

condition provides challenges in the constructability of a brick, stone or decorative block 

wall to screen an unimproved right-of-way, while dealing with an existing waterbody. 

 

Staff’s Response:  No objection. 

 

3. The proposed variance will not substantially increase congestion on surrounding public streets. 

 

Applicant’s Response:  The Hidden Lake Reserve eastern bufferyard proposes a 

screening option and will not increase congestion on any surrounding public streets. 

Additionally, there is no increase in the proposed PDP application units or traffic 

distribution to the unimproved North Bradshaw Road. 

 

Staff’s Response:  No objection. 

 

4. The proposed variance will not substantially diminish property values in, nor alter the essential 

character of, the area surrounding the site.  

 

Applicant’s Response:  The proposed Hidden Lake Reserve eastern bufferyard will not 

diminish property values, nor alter the essential character of the area surrounding the 

site. The subject property will provide the code required bufferyard width along the 

eastern property line. 

 

Staff’s Response:  City staff does not hold professional expertise to address property 

values.   

 

5. The effect of the proposed variance is in harmony with the general intent of this code and the specific 

intent of the relevant subject area(s) of the code.  

 

Applicant’s Response:  The proposed Hidden Lake Reserve eastern bufferyard is in 

harmony with the intent of this code. The subject property will provide a 10’ wide 54



PLANNING COMMISSION – JUNE 12, 2018 
TGINF, LLC - HIDDEN LAKE - VARIANCE REQUEST 
PAGE 4 
 

landscaped bufferyard with optional forms of screening methods, which is the intent of 

the minimum 10’ wide bufferyard with six-foot-high brick, stone or decorative block 

finished wall. 

 

Staff Response:  No objection.   

 

6. Special conditions and circumstances do not result from the actions of the applicant.   

 

Applicant’s Response:  The proposed Hidden Lake Reserve eastern bufferyard will not 

create a special condition or circumstance. The subject property will provide a 10’ wide 

landscaped bufferyard with optional forms of screening methods. 

 

Staff Response: No objection. 

 

7. That the variance granted is the minimum variance which will make possible the reasonable use of 

the land, building or structure. The proposed variance will not create safety hazards and other 

detriments to the public.  

 

Applicant’s Response:  The proposed Hidden Lake Reserve eastern bufferyard will provide 

a 10’ wide landscaped bufferyard with a minimum 6’ high vinyl fence or landscape barrier 

as a screening method on excessively sloped areas of the site.  Utilizing the use of a fence or 

landscape barrier will allow a more constructible screening method on the excessive slopes, 

thus providing a minimum variance from the code. The subject property will provide the 

code required bufferyard width and will not create a safety hazard or detriment to the public. 

 

Staff Response:  No objection. 

  

55



PLANNING COMMISSION – JUNE 12, 2018 
TGINF, LLC - HIDDEN LAKE - VARIANCE REQUEST 
PAGE 5 
 
  
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 

Planning Commission Role:   Based on the information provided by the applicant at the hearing for the 
variance requested, Planning Commission must first determine that sufficient substantially competent 
information indicates “whether a need for the proposed variance arises out of the physical surroundings, 
shape topographical conditions, or other physical or environment conditions that are unique to the specific 
property involved.”  If so, then the Planning Commission must find that substantially competent information 
occurs to accept each of the seven variance criteria. 
 
Planning Commission Role:  Planning Commission has the authority to approve, deny, or approve with 
conditions the requested variance.  
 
If Planning Commission approves the Variance, the following language is recommended: 
 
Staff supports the following: 
 

(a) North of the lake -- A six-foot high brick wall and ten-foot buffer tract shall run from the northeast 
corner to a point nearest the lift station.  From that point south, a wrought-iron style fence or brick wall 
shall extend sourthward to a point no closer than 25 feet from the wetland line.  Staff supports variance 
to waive the brick wall from the southern-most upland buffer line to the northern-most 25-foot upland 
buffer line); and   

 
(b) South of the Lake:  A six-foot high brick wall shall extend from the southwest corner to the north-south 

apex, and a wrought-iron or brick wall shall be constructed to a point within 25 feet of the wetland line. 
 
Applicant requests:  Approve a variance from Section 2.02.07(H)(1)(a), Land Development Code, to allow 
a 6-foot tall vinyl fence 239 feet from the most southeastern point of the parcel along N. Bradshaw Road to 
the conservation point, 282 feet at length.  As well as, a vinyl fence after 273 feet from the most northeastern 
point to the lift station on N. Bradshaw Road to the conservation point, 141 feet at length.  The variance 
shall expire at the time the site redevelops, allowing conformance to the buffer requirements applicable at 
that time. 
 
Note: This item is considered Quasi-Judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 
into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

  

56



PLANNING COMMISSION – JUNE 12, 2018 
TGINF, LLC - HIDDEN LAKE - VARIANCE REQUEST 
PAGE 6 
 

Owner:   TGINF, LLC c/o Alan Goldberg 

Applicant:  Alan Goldberg 

Parcel I.D. No:    09-21-28-0000-00-006 

Location:  501 Old Dixie Highway 

Total Acres:   15.88 +/- Acres   
 

VICINITY MAP 

 

    
 

 

  

57



PLANNING COMMISSION – JUNE 12, 2018 
TGINF, LLC - HIDDEN LAKE - VARIANCE REQUEST 
PAGE 7 
 

 

 

AERIAL MAP 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Subject Property 

58



PLANNING COMMISSION – JUNE 12, 2018 
TGINF, LLC - HIDDEN LAKE - VARIANCE REQUEST 
PAGE 8 
 

 

 

ZONING MAP 
 

59



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING HELD ON JUNE 12, 
2018, AT 5:30 P.M. IN THE CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, APOPKA, FLORIDA. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT: James Greene, Linda Laurendeau, Patrice Phillips, Roger Simpson, and John 
Sprinkle 
 
ABSENT: Jose Molina, Butch Stanley, Orange County Public Schools (Non-voting) 
 
STAFF PRESENT:  David Moon, AICP - Planning Manager, Richard Earp – City Engineer, Patrick 
Brackins – City Attorney, Bobby Howell - Senior Planner, Jean Sanchez – Planner II, Phil Martinez – 
Planner I, and Jeanne Green – Recording Secretary. 
 
OTHERS PRESENT:  Luke Classon, Eric Wells, Jim Hanson, Julie Kendig, Adam Dyson, Sarah 
Maier, Mark Nelson, Derek Ryan, Eric Jay, Tracy Jay, Tom Sullivan, Dave Hoffman, Dave Stokes, 
Bobby Wanas, Linda Lanosa, Rodney Sapp, Valendy Purre, Fraser Gunter, Scott Banta, Bill Pigozzi, 
Scott Glass, Geoff Summit, and Teresa Sargeant. 
 
OPENING AND INVOCATION:  Chairperson Greene called the meeting to order and asked for a 
moment of silent prayer.  The Pledge of Allegiance followed. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: Chairperson Greene asked if there were any corrections or additions to 
the regular meeting minutes of May 22, 2018, at 5:30 p.m.   
 
Motion: John Sprinkle made a motion to approve the Planning Commission minutes from 

the regular meeting held on May 22, 2018, at 5:30 p.m. and seconded by Roger 
Simpson. Aye votes were cast by James Greene, Linda Laurendeau, Patrice 
Phillips, Roger Simpson, and John Sprinkle (5-0).  

 
QUASI-JUDICIAL – CHANGE OF ZONING – Chairperson Greene stated this is a request to 
request to find the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and compatible with 
the character of the surrounding areas, recommending approval of the proposed Change of Zoning from 
R-1AA to R-1 for the property owned by JTD Land at Rogers Road, LLC, and located at 1455 West 
Lester Road. 
     
Chairperson Greene asked if there were any affected parties in attendance that wished to speak.  No 
one spoke. 
 
Chairperson Greene asked if the Commission members had any ex parte communications to divulge 
regarding this item.  No ex parte communications occurred. 
 
Staff Presentation:  Phil Martinez, Planner I, stated this is a request to request to find the proposed 
amendment consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and compatible with the character of the 
surrounding areas, recommending approval of the proposed Change of Zoning from R-1AA to R-1 for 
the property owned by JTD Land at Rogers Road, LLC, and located at 1455 West Lester Road.  The 
applicant is Dewberry c/o Sarah Maier.  The existing use is vacant land, woodlands and grasslands.  
The development potential is 36 single family homes.  The future land use is Residential Low Suburban 
(0-3.5 du/ac).  The current zoning is R-1AA and the proposed zoning is R-1 (Single Family Residential 
District).  The existing and proposed maximum allowable development is 20 single family homes.  The 
tract size is 5.75 +/- acres. 
 
Presently, the subject property is assigned a zoning category of R-1AA.  The applicant is requesting 
the City to assign a zoning classification of R-1 (Single Family Residential) to the northern 5.75 acres 
of the property.  Access will occur from public roads within Carriage Hills Phase 1.  The subject parcel 
was annexed into the city on August 22, 1990 by Ordinance Number 624. 
  

60



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION  REGULAR MEETING HELD ON JUNE 12, 2018, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

 
2 of 33 

 

A request to assign a change of zoning to R-1 is compatible to the adjacent zoning classifications and 
with the general character of abutting properties and surrounding area. Carriage Hill Phase 1, is the 
west adjacent property, also zoned R-1. The subject property is intended to incorporate into Carriage 
Hill Phase 1 with the same R-1 zoning. 
 
The existing and proposed zoning of the property is consistent with the proposed Residential Low 
Suburban (0-3.5 du / ac) Future Land Use designation. 
 
The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before any public hearing or advisory board.  
The City properly notified Orange County on April 2, 2018.  
 
The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the 
Comprehensive Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding areas, recommending 
approval of the proposed Change of Zoning from R-1AA to R-1 for the property owned by JTD Land 
at Rogers Road, LLC, and located at 1455 West Lester Road. 
 
Staff recommended the Planning Commission find the proposed amendment consistent with the 
Comprehensive Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding areas, recommending 
approval of the proposed Change of Zoning from R-1AA to R-1 for the property owned by JTD Land 
at Rogers Road, LLC, and located at 1455 West Lester Road. 
 
This item is considered Quasi-Judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into and 
made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
 
Petitioner Presentation:  Sarah Maier, Dewberry, 800 North Magnolia Avenue, Orlando, stated she was 
representing the owner, supported the staff report, and was available to answer any questions. 
 
Chairperson Greene opened the meeting for public hearing.  With no one wishing to speak, Chairperson 
Greene closed the public hearing.  
 
Motion:   John Sprinkle made a motion to request to find the proposed amendment 

consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and compatible with the character of the 
surrounding areas, recommending approval of the proposed Change of Zoning 
from R-1AA to R-1 for the property owned by JTD Land at Rogers Road, LLC, 
and located at 1455 West Lester Road. Motion seconded by Linda Laurendeau.  
Aye votes were cast by Aye votes were cast by James Greene, Linda Laurendeau, 
Patrice Phillips, Roger Simpson, and John Sprinkle (5-0). (Vote taken by poll.) 

 
QUASI-JUDICIAL – CHANGE OF ZONING – MASTER PLAN – KELLY PARK ROAD 
PUBLIX CENTER - Chairperson Greene stated this is a request to find the proposed zoning, overlay 
district and Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and 
Land Development Code; and recommend approval of the rezoning of the subject parcels from Orange 
County A-1 (ZIP) to Kelly Park Interchange Mixed-Use (KPI-MU) and assign the  KPC Village Center 
and Interchange Overlay Districts, and approval of the Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan 
based on the findings and facts presented in the staff report, exhibits, and City Council approval of a 
Development Agreement for the property owned by JD and Kathleen L. Horne Trust and located at 
4966 Plymouth-Sorrento Road. 
 
Chairperson Greene asked if there were any affected parties in attendance that wished to speak.  No 
one spoke.  
 
Chairperson Greene asked if the Commission members had any ex parte communications to divulge 
regarding this item.  No ex parte communications occurred. 
 

61



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION  REGULAR MEETING HELD ON JUNE 12, 2018, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

 
3 of 33 

 

Staff Presentation:  Bobby Howell, AICP, Senior Planner, stated this is a request to find the proposed 
zoning, overlay district and Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan consistent with the 
Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code; and recommend approval of the rezoning of the 
subject parcels from Orange County A-1 (ZIP) to Kelly Park Interchange Mixed-Use (KPI-MU) and 
assign the  KPC Village Center and Interchange Overlay Districts, and approval of the Master 
Plan/Preliminary Development Plan based on the findings and facts presented in the staff report, 
exhibits, and City Council approval of a Development Agreement for the property owned by JD and 
Kathleen L. Horne Trust and located at 4966 Plymouth-Sorrento Road.  The applicant is Brandon 
Partners, c/o Randy Holihan.  The existing use is vacant land and the proposed use is a 68,231 square 
feet of commercial uses including a 46,031 square foot Publix supermarket.  The land use is Mixed 
Use Interchange.  The current zoning is “County” A-1 (ZIP) and the proposed zoning is (KPI-MU 
(Kelly Park Interchange Mixed-Use).  The tract size is 18.13 +/- acres 
 
The owner of the subject property is requesting a rezoning of 18.13 acres of property from Orange 
County A-1 (ZIP) to Kelly Park Interchange Mixed-Use (KPI-MU), with an Interchange and Village 
Center character zone to develop a 68,231 square foot commercial development including a 46,031 
Publix supermarket subject to the requirements of the Kelly Park Interchange Form Based Code. The 
subject property is located east of SR 429 and west of Plymouth-Sorrento Road, on the southwest side 
of the intersection of Kelly Park Road and Plymouth-Sorrento Road. The owner of the property is JD 
and Kathleen L Horne Trust.    
 
Development Profile: 
 
Setbacks:   
 Front: Min. 8 feet – Max. 20 feet – Village Center, Min. 10 feet, Max. 20 

feet - Interchange 
 Rear: Min. 10 feet - Village Center, Min. 10 ft. – Interchange  
 Side: Min. 0 feet – Village Center, Min. 7.5 – Interchange  
Overflow Parking None 
Driveway length: Min. 15 feet – Max. 30 ft. 
On-street parking: 9 parking spaces provided  
Maximum building height: Min. 2 stories encouraged, Max. 5 stories – Village Center, Min. N/A, 

Max. 8 stories – Interchange  
Off-street parking: 293 parking spaces  

 
In accordance with the requirements of the Kelly Park Interchange Form Based Code, the owner has 
submitted a Master Plan in conjunction with the rezoning application detailing the development of the 
proposed commercial center. The property currently has a future land use designation of City of Apopka 
Mixed Use Interchange, which is a consistent future land use category with the KPI-MU zoning 
designation. The property is located within the one-mile radius from the SR 429/Kelly Park Road 
interchange.   
 
The Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan proposes development of the property with a total of 
68,231 square feet of commercial uses including a 46,031 square foot Publix supermarket on 18.13 
acres. The Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan details design of the proposed development in 
accordance with the requirements of the Kelly Park Interchange Form Based Code, and the Village 
Center and Interchange character zones, which allows commercial development as permitted uses. The 
surrounding properties currently consist primarily of agricultural uses.  
 
The Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan proposes dividing the property into three blocks, 
labeled as Blocks “A”, “B”, and “C”. Block “A” will consist of a 7,200 square foot retail building, 
parking to serve the commercial uses, and a 0.9 acre outparcel labeled as “future development.” Block 
“B” will consist of a 46,031 square foot Publix supermarket, and three retail buildings ranging in size 
from 3,000 to 6,000 square feet, and parking to serve the commercial uses. Block “C” is 7.33 acres and 

62



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION  REGULAR MEETING HELD ON JUNE 12, 2018, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

 
4 of 33 

 

is reserved for future development. A temporary stormwater retention pond serving Blocks “A” and 
“B” will be located on Block “C”. The applicant proposes to assign the Village Center character zone 
to Blocks “A” and “B”, and the Interchange character zone to Block “C”.  
 
Access to the site is proposed via a full access point and a right-in/right-out located on Kelly Park Road, 
and a right-in/right-out and a full access located on Plymouth-Sorrento Road. The Master 
Plan/Preliminary Development Plan details the dedication of 100-feet of right-of-way in the center of 
the property to the City. This public right-of-way will facilitate the development of the internal north-
south roadway to Appy Lane.  
 
The Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan details the development of this roadway within the 
subject property in accordance with street type B (Village Center Access Street) as outlined in the Kelly 
Park Interchange Form Based Code. A 9-foot wide on-street parking area, a 7-foot wide bike lane, an 
8-foot wide sidewalk, a 12-foot wide drive lane, and an 11-foot median will be constructed on this road. 
A 12-foot wide bicycle/pedestrian trail will be provided along the eastern portion of the property 
abutting Kelly Park Road. A five foot wide sidewalk will be dedicated along Plymouth-Sorrento Road. 
An internal pedestrian network will be established within the commercial portion of the site. A 
landscape gateway with an entry feature and water feature will be provided at the main entrance to the 
development on Kelly Park Road. 20-percent of the total site area will remain as open space in 
accordance with the requirements of the Form Based Code.  
 
That the zoning classification of the following described property be designated as Kelly Park 
Interchange Mixed-Use (KPI-MU), Neighborhood character zone, as defined in the Kelly Park 
Interchange Form Based Code, and with the following provisions: 
 

1. Development of the property is subject to the requirements of the Kelly Park Interchange Form 
Based Code, Neighborhood character zone.  

 
2. The architectural design of the buildings must be consistent with Section K.2.g, and Appendix 

A of the Kelly Park Interchange Form Based Code.  
 

3. A 12-foot wide multi-purpose trail will be constructed along the portion of the development 
abutting Plymouth-Sorrento Road to facilitate the construction of a regional trail system. 
(Policy 20.19, FLUE; Sec. Q, FBC).  The trail shall be placed in an easement or tract. 

 
4. Perpetual easements dedicated to the City of Apopka shall be provided over the internal 

pedestrian pathways and trail networks to allow public access. 
 

5. A development agreement shall address the extension of utilities, dedication of rights-of-way, 
and public access to regional trail facilities. 

The proposed use of the property is consistent with the Mixed-Use Interchange Future Land Use 
designation and is consistent with the Kelly Park Interchange Form Based Code.   
 
Pursuant to Section 7 of the Joint Planning Area agreement, Orange County was notified on May 11, 
2018.   
 
The Development Review Committee finds the proposed rezoning to Kelly Park Interchange Mixed-
Use (KPI-MU), and assignment of a Village Center and Interchange character zones consistent with 
the Comprehensive Plan and Kelly Park Interchange Form Based Code, and recommends approval of 
the Kelly Park Publix Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan. 
 
Staff recommended the Planning Commission find the proposed zoning, overlay district and Master 
Plan/Preliminary Development Plan consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and Land Development 
Code; and recommend approval of the rezoning of the subject parcels from Orange County A-1 (ZIP) 

63



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION  REGULAR MEETING HELD ON JUNE 12, 2018, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

 
5 of 33 

 

to Kelly Park Interchange Mixed-Use (KPI-MU) and assign the  KPC Village Center and Interchange 
Overlay Districts, and approval of the Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan based on the findings 
and facts presented in the staff report, exhibits, and City Council approval of a Development Agreement 
for the property owned by JD and Kathleen L Horne Trust and located at 4966 Plymouth-Sorrento 
Road. 
 
This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into and 
made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
 
Petitioner Presentation: Geoff Summit, G L Summit Engineering, Inc., 3667 Simonton Place, Lake 
Mary, stated he represented the owner, supported the staff report, and was available to answer any 
questions. 
 
Chairperson Greene opened the meeting for public hearing.   
 
In response to questions by Fraser Gunter, 4201 Golden Willow Circle, Apopka, Mr. Moon stated that 
the Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan details the dedication of 100-feet of right-of-way in the 
center of the property to the City for public right-of-way that will facilitate the development of the 
internal north-south roadway to Appy Lane.  He added that future plans include the extension of Appy 
Lane to SR 429. 
With no one else wishing to speak, Chairperson Greene closed the public hearing.  
 
In response to a question by Ms. Phillips, Mr. Moon stated that development agreement shall address 
the extension of utilities, dedication of rights-of-way, and public access to regional trail facilities. 
 
Motion:   Roger Simpson made a motion to find the proposed zoning, overlay district and 

Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan consistent with the Comprehensive 
Plan and Land Development Code; and recommend approval of the rezoning of 
the subject parcels from Orange County A-1 (ZIP) to Kelly Park Interchange 
Mixed-Use (KPI-MU) and assign the  KPC Village Center and Interchange 
Overlay Districts, and approval of the Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan 
based on the findings and facts presented in the staff report, exhibits, and City 
Council approval of a Development Agreement for the property owned by JD and 
Kathleen L. Horne Trust and located at 4966 Plymouth-Sorrento Road. Motion 
seconded by Patrice Phillips.  Aye votes were cast by James Greene, Linda 
Laurendeau, Patrice Phillips, Roger Simpson, and John Sprinkle (5-0). (Vote taken 
by poll.) 

 
LEGISLATIVE – COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – LARGE SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE 
AMENDMENT - Chairperson Greene stated this is a request to find the Future Land Use Designation 
consistent with the Comprehensive Plan; and recommend approval of the Future Land Use amendment 
to Mixed Use Interchange, subject to the information and findings in the staff report, for the properties 
owned by Min Sun Cho, Hong Sik, and Deok Hwa Kim and located at 4068, 4046, & 4022 Plymouth 
Sorrento Road. 
     
Staff Presentation:  Mr. Martinez stated this is a request to find the Future Land Use Designation 
consistent with the Comprehensive Plan; and recommend approval of the Future Land Use amendment 
to Mixed Use Interchange, subject to the information and findings in the staff report, for the properties 
owned by Min Sun Cho, Hong Sik, and Deok Hwa Kim and located at 4068, 4046, & 4022 Plymouth 
Sorrento Road. The applicants are Min Sun Cho, Hong Sik & Deok Hwa Kim.  The existing uses are 
nurseries, single family homes and woodlands.  The proposed use is a single family subdivision.  The 
current zoning is R-1AAA and the proposed zoning is Mixed Use Interchange Zoning District with 
Neighborhood Overlay Zone.  The existing maximum allowable development is 40 residential units 
and the proposed is 100 residential units.  The tract size is 20 +/- acres. 

64



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION  REGULAR MEETING HELD ON JUNE 12, 2018, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

 
6 of 33 

 

The applicant requests a future land use designation of “City” Mixed Use Interchange.  Policy 20.9, 
Future Land Use Element of the Comprehensive Plan, requires that a Mixed Use Interchange future a 
land use designation must be assigned to the property. 
 
The subject parcels are located within the one-mile radius from the Wekiva Parkway interchange at 
Kelly Park Road; and therefore is required to adhere to the Kelly Park Crossing Form Based Code.  
The properties are located within the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Vision Plan Area.  Therefore, the 
property must comply with Objectives 18 – 20 and related policies within the Future Land Use Element 
of the Comprehensive Plan and the recently adopted Kelly Park Crossing Form-Based Code.  The 
applicant’s request is consistent with the Mixed Use Interchange future land use designation and the 
Overlay District covering the property within the Vision Plan. 
 
The proposed use of the property is compatible with the character of the surrounding area, is within 
one mile of the SR 429/Kelly Park Road interchange, and is consistent with the Mixed Use Interchange 
Land Use designation.  City planning staff supports the FLUM amendment given the consistency with 
the Comprehensive Plan policies listed below and the intent of the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Vision 
Plan a (see Land Use Analysis below).   Site development cannot exceed the intensity allowed by the 
Future Land Use policies.  
 
Future Land Use Element 
 

1. Policy 3.1.r The primary intent of the Mixed Use land use category is to allow a mixture of 
residential, office, commercial, industrial, recreation, institutional and public facilities uses to 
serve the residential and non-residential needs of special areas of the City.  The mix of land uses 
may occur on a single parcel or multiple parcels … 

 
The designation of a mixed use category may occur only in certain areas of the city, including 
“land anticipated for inclusion within the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Land Use Plan…” 
These properties are within the 1-mile radius of the Wekiva Parkway Interchange depicted on 
the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Vision Plan Map located within the Future Land Use Element 
of the Apopka Comprehensive Plan. 

 
2. Policy 18.1 The City shall implement the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Vision Plan, which 

guides the location of a range of uses, such as residential, office, commercial, industrial, 
recreation, public and institutional, at various densities and intensities around the proposed 
interchange. 

 
The proposed Mixed Use Future Land Use Designation allows for residential densities and non-
residential uses and intensities to implement the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Vision Plan, 
consistent with Objective 18 and related policies.  

 
3. Policy 18.2 Prior to rezoning any property within a one-mile radius of the interchange Study 

Area, the City shall amend its LDC to incorporate development standards that will implement 
the Vision Plan. 

 
This future land use amendment does not include a corresponding proposed zoning category 
because the City has yet to adopt development standards or form-based code consistent with 
this policy.  Future densities/intensities and design character for the subject properties will be 
regulated at the time of rezoning once Wekiva Parkway Interchange Vision Plan design 
standards and form-based code are adopted.   

 
4. Policy 20.4 Prior to approving the first development plan with the Wekiva Parkway Interchange vision 

Plan Area, the City shall adopt the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Form-Based Cod establishing the 
design and development standards for the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Vision Plan Area. 

65



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION  REGULAR MEETING HELD ON JUNE 12, 2018, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

 
7 of 33 

 

 
The subject properties will be required to comply with the above policy should the development 
submit a development plan to ensure consistency with the Comprehensive Plan and Wekiva 
Parkway Interchange Vision Plan. 

 
5. Policy 20.9 Development within the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Plan Area shall be assigned 

a Mixed-Use Interchange future land use designation and shall accomplish an overall mix of 
residential and non-residential uses as outline in Policy 3.1.r.  Assignment of the Mixed-Use 
Interchange Land Use future land use designation shall require an amendment to the 
Comprehensive Plan. 

 
The applicant’s request for a Mixed Use future land use designation is consistent with this 
policy, as well as the intent of the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Vision Plan area, which intends 
to concentrate a mixture of land uses with varying densities and intensities within one mile of 
the Wekiva Parkway Interchange. 

 
6. Policy 20.3.  The annexation, land use change, and subsequent development of lands located 

within the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Plan Area for Apopka and the Wekiva Interchange 
Land Use Plan Overlay for the County shall be consistent with the adopted Interlocal Agreement 
between Orange County and the City of Apopka regarding Wekiva Interchange Land Use Plan 
Overlay. 

 
7. Objective 19 and 20, and their associated policies.  See objectives and policies within the 

supporting information. 
 
Transportation Element 
 
1. Policy 4.2 The City of Apopka shall promote, through the implementation of programs such as 

mixed-use land development, projects that support reduced travel demand, short trip lengths 
and balanced trip demand. 

 
The Mixed Use future land use designation allows for a mixture of land use types such as 
residential and non-residential, which promotes shorter trip lengths, concentrated development 
to reduce travel demand. 

 
2. Policy 3.1.r The primary intent of the Mixed Use land use category is to allow a mixture of 

residential, office, commercial, industrial, recreation, institutional uses and public facilities 
uses…This mix of land uses may occur on a single parcel or multiple parcels in the form of: a 
permitted single use; a vertical combination of different permitted uses; or a horizontal mix of 
different permitted uses. 

 
3. Policy 4.2 The City of Apopka shall promote, through the implementation of programs such as 

mixed-use land development, projects that support reduced travel demand, shorter trip lengths 
and balanced trip demand. 

 
4. Objective 20 and associated Policies, Future Land Use Element.  Provided with the 

Supporting Information. 
 

The properties are located within the boundaries of the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Vision Plan Area, 
making it subject to the Kelly Park Crossing Form-Based Code, Mixed- Use Interchange Zoning 
District and Neighborhood Overlay District.  A copy of the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Vision Plan 
is provided with the support material. 
 
 

66



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION  REGULAR MEETING HELD ON JUNE 12, 2018, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

 
8 of 33 

 

An executed capacity enhancement agreement with Orange County Public Schools will be required 
prior to adoption of the future land use amendment. 
 
The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before any public hearing or advisory board.  
The City properly notified Orange County on May 10, 2018.    Notification has already occurred 
through the Second Amendment to the Joint Planning Agreement with Orange County government.  
The second amendment acknowledges that the City will assign a land use designation similar to the 
overlay district illustrated in the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Vision Plan. 
 
The Development Review Committee recommends approval to transmit a change in Future Land Use 
to Mixed Use Interchange for the property owned by Min Sun Cho, Hong Sik & Deok Hwa Kim subject 
to the information and findings in the staff report. 
 
Staff recommended the Planning Commission find the Future Land Use Designation consistent with 
the Comprehensive Plan and recommend a change in Future Land Use Designation to Mixed Use 
Interchange subject to the information and findings in the staff report for the properties owned by Min 
Sun Cho, Hong Sik, and Deok Hwa Kim and located at 4068, 4046, & 4022 Plymouth Sorrento Road 
 
This item is considered legislative.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into and 
made a part of the minutes of this meeting 
 
Luke Classon, Appian Engineering, LLC, 2221 Lee Road, Suite 17, Winter Park, stated he represented 
the owner, supported the staff report, and was available to answer any questions. 
 
Chairperson Greene opened the meeting for public hearing.   
 
In response to a question by Mr. Gunter, Mr. Moon defined a mixed use development as being 
characterized as pedestrian-friendly development that blends two or more residential, commercial, 
cultural, institutional, and/or industrial uses. Mixed use is a planning strategy that seeks to foster 
community design and development that serves the economy, community, public health, and the 
environment. Mixed-use development is characterized as one that provides three or more significant 
revenue-producing uses (such as retail/entertainment, office, residential, hotel, and/or 
civic/cultural/recreation); fosters integration, density, and compatibility of land uses; and creates a 
walkable community with uninterrupted pedestrian connections.  Mixed-use zoning allows for the 
horizontal and vertical combination of land uses in a given area. Commercial, residential, and even in 
some instances, light industrial are fit together to help create built environments where residents can 
live, work, and play.  
 
Mr. Moon recommended that anyone wanting more information on mixed use development, schedule 
a meeting with Planning staff. 
 
In response to a question by Mr. Sprinkle, Mr. Moon stated that for those properties that are intersected 
by the Form Based Code 1-mile radius boundary, the property owner may select to bring the portion 
outside the property into the Form-Base Code area.  
 
With no one else wishing to speak, Chairperson Greene closed the public hearing.  
 
Motion:   Roger Simpson made a motion to find the Future Land Use Designation consistent with 

the Comprehensive Plan; and recommend approval of the Future Land Use amendment 
to Mixed Use Interchange, subject to the information and findings in the staff report, for 
the properties owned by Min Sun Cho, Hong Sik, and Deok Hwa Kim and located at 
4068, 4046, & 4022 Plymouth Sorrento Road.. Motion seconded by John Sprinkle.  Aye 
votes were cast by James Greene, Linda Laurendeau, Patrice Phillips, Roger Simpson, 
and John Sprinkle (5-0). (Vote taken by poll.) 

67



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION  REGULAR MEETING HELD ON JUNE 12, 2018, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

 
9 of 33 

 

 
LEGISLATIVE – COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE 
AMENDMENT - Chairperson Greene stated this is a request to find the proposed Future Land Use 
amendment consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and compatible with the character of the 
surrounding areas, and recommend approval of the change of Future Land Use Designation from 
Agriculture to Industrial, subject to the findings of the Staff Report, for the property owned by 3255 
Clarcona Road LLC, and located at 3307 Clarcona Road. 
     
Staff Presentation:  Mr. Martinez stated this is a request to find the proposed Future Land Use 
amendment consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and compatible with the character of the 
surrounding areas, and recommend approval of the change of Future Land Use Designation from 
Agriculture to Industrial, subject to the findings of the Staff Report, for the property owned by 3255 
Clarcona Road LLC, and located at 3307 Clarcona Road.  The applicant is Vihlen & Associates, P.A. 
c/o Sidney L. Vihlen, III.  The existing and proposed use is warehousing used by Randall Mechanical 
for commercial and industrial uses.  The current zoning is AG (Agriculture).  A change of zoning to I-
1 is being processed in conjunction with the small scale future land use amendment.  The existing 
maximum allowable development is 1 dwelling unit and the proposed maximum allowable 
development is up to 124,146 sq. ft. gross floor area.  The tract size is 4.75 +/- acres. 
 
The subject parcel was annexed in the city on February 21, 1996 by Ordinance 918.   The applicant 
requests a future land use designation of Industrial.   The site has been used for industrial purposes for 
several years.  Parcels to the north  
 
The proposed use of the property is consistent with the Industrial Future Land Use designation.  Site 
development cannot exceed the intensity allowed by the Future Land Use policies.   Planning & Zoning 
staff determines that the below policies support an Industrial FLUM designation at the subject site:  
 
Future Land Use Element, Policy 3.1.l, Industrial - The primary use shall be industrial, intensive 
commercial, agricultural and business/research parks. Also allowed are public facilities and supporting 
infrastructure. The use of the Planned Unit Development process shall be encouraged. The maximum 
floor area ratio shall be .60. Planned Unit Development uses may include: (1) All primary uses; and (2) 
other uses deemed compatible with and complimentary to the other proposed master planned uses and 
the surrounding neighborhoods. 
 
The proposed Industrial Future Land Use Designation will not generate any additional student 
population.  Therefore, the property is exempt from school capacity enhancement per the School 
Interlocal Planning Agreement. 
 
The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before any public hearing or advisory board.  
The City properly notified Orange County on May 10, 2018.  
 
The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the 
Comprehensive Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding areas, recommending 
approval of the proposed Future Land Use Designation of Industrial for the property owned by 3255 
Clarcona Road LLC, and located at 3307 Clarcona Road.  
 
Staff recommended the Planning Commission find the proposed Future Land Use amendment 
consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding areas, 
and recommend approval of the change of Future Land Use Designation from Agriculture to Industrial, 
subject to the findings of the Staff Report, for the property owned by 3255 Clarcona Road LLC, and 
located at 3307 Clarcona Road.  
 
This item is considered legislative.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into and 
made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

68



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION  REGULAR MEETING HELD ON JUNE 12, 2018, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

 
10 of 33 

 

In response to questions by Mr. Simpson, Mr. Moon stated that while the subject property is currently 
designated at Agriculture, the use is industrial as reflected in the type of work done on this site.  Randall 
Mechanical, Inc. develops fire suppression systems for customers such as Disney.  There is industrial 
uses to the north of this property; a church to the south; and residential uses on the east and west.  The 
industrial use being requested will have little impact on the surrounding areas as it will be conducted 
inside a building.  He added that if there comes a time the owner of the business wants to expand they 
will be required to address buffering requirements. 
 
Mr. Simpson continued to express his concern regarding the environmental impacts to the neighboring 
properties. 
 
In response to questions and concerns expressed by Ms. Phillips, Mr. Moon stated that at the time there 
is major development a 30 to 50 foot landscape buffer would be required with a brick wall adjacent to 
any residential uses.  Additionally, there is no direct transportation issues between the proposed 
industrial use and the residential uses. 
 
Sidney L. Vihlen, III, Vihlen & Associates, P.A., 605 East Robinson Street, Suite 750, Orlando, stated 
he represented the owner as their legal counsel, they support the staff report, and he was available to 
answer any questions. 
 
Chairperson Greene opened the meeting for public hearing.  With no one wishing to speak, Chairperson 
Greene closed the public hearing.  
 
Motion:   John Sprinkle made a motion to find the proposed Future Land Use amendment 

consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and compatible with the character of the 
surrounding areas, and recommend approval of the change of Future Land Use 
Designation from Agriculture to Industrial, subject to the findings of the staff 
report, for the property owned by 3255 Clarcona Road LLC, and located at 3307 
Clarcona Road. Motion seconded by Linda Laurendeau.   

 
In response to a question by Mr. Simpson, Mr. Moon stated that Industrial land use has two intensities.  
General Industrial is the heavy industrial uses that employ the processing of bulk materials and which 
require space for open storage of materials. These activities are usually performed outside.  Restricted 
Industrial, such as being proposed for the subject property, is composed of those lands and structures 
which by their use and location, are especially adapted to wholesale distribution, storage, and light 
manufacturing.  Restricted industrial uses are usually performed inside a structure. 
 

Aye votes were cast by James Greene, Linda Laurendeau, Patrice Phillips, Roger 
Simpson, and John Sprinkle (5-0). (Vote taken by poll.) 

 
QUASI-JUDICIAL – CHANGE OF ZONING – Chairperson Greene stated this is a request to find 
the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and compatible with the character 
of the surrounding area, recommending approval of the proposed Change of Zoning from Agriculture 
to I-1 (Restricted Industrial District) for the property owned by 3255 Clarcona Road LLC, and located 
east of Clarcona Road and north of Stone Road. 
     
Chairperson Greene asked if there were any affected parties in attendance that wished to speak.  No 
one spoke. 
 
Chairperson Greene asked if the Commission members had any ex parte communications to divulge 
regarding this item.  No ex parte communications occurred. 
 
 
 

69



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION  REGULAR MEETING HELD ON JUNE 12, 2018, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

 
11 of 33 

 

Staff Presentation:  Mr. Martinez stated this is a request to find the proposed amendment consistent 
with the Comprehensive Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding area, 
recommending approval of the proposed Change of Zoning from Agriculture to I-1 (Restricted 
Industrial District) for the property owned by 3255 Clarcona Road LLC, and located east of Clarcona 
Road and north of Stone Road. The applicant is Vihlen & Associates, P.A. c/o Sidney L. Vihlen, III.  
The existing and proposed use is warehousing used by Randall Mechanical for commercial and 
industrial uses.  The current zoning is AG (Agriculture).  A future land use amendment to Industrial is 
being processed in conjunction with the change of zoning.  The existing maximum allowable 
development is 1 dwelling unit and the proposed maximum allowable development is up to 124,146 
sq. ft. gross floor area.  The tract size is 4.75 +/- acres. 
 
The subject parcel was annexed in the city on February 21, 1996 by Ordinance 918.  The applicant 
requests a future land use designation of Industrial and the zoning to I-1 Industrial. 
 
A request to assign a change of zoning to I-1 is compatible to the adjacent zoning classifications and 
with the general character of abutting properties and surrounding area. The change of zoning request 
is being processed in conjunction with a future land use amendment from Agriculture to Industrial. 
 
The existing and proposed use of the property is consistent with the proposed Industrial (Max. FAR 
0.6) Future Land Use designation. 
 
The proposed zoning change will not generate any residential units and thus not generate any additional 
school-age population. Therefore, the property is exempt from school capacity enhancement per the 
School Interlocal Planning Agreement. 
  
The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before any public hearing or advisory board.  
The City properly notified Orange County on May 10, 2018.  
 
The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the 
Comprehensive Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding areas, recommending 
approval of the proposed Change of Zoning from Agriculture to I-1 (Restricted Industrial District) for 
the property owned by 3255 Clarcona Road LLC, and located east of Clarcona Road and north of Stone 
Road.  
 
Staff recommended the Planning Commission find the proposed amendment consistent with the 
Comprehensive Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding area, recommending 
approval of the proposed Change of Zoning from Agriculture to I-1 (Restricted Industrial District) for 
the property owned by 3255 Clarcona Road LLC, and located east of Clarcona Road and north of Stone 
Road. 
 
This item is considered Quasi-Judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into and 
made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
 
Chairperson Greene opened the meeting for public hearing.  With no one wishing to speak, Chairperson 
Greene closed the public hearing.  
 
Petitioner Presentation:  Sidney L. Vihlen, III, Vihlen & Associates, P.A., 605 East Robinson Street, 
Suite 750, Orlando, stated he represented the owner as their legal counsel, they support the staff report, 
and he was available to answer any questions. 
 
Motion:   Linda Laurendeau made a motion to find the proposed amendment consistent with 

the Comprehensive Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding 
area, recommending approval of the proposed Change of Zoning from Agriculture 
to I-1 (Restricted Industrial District) for the property owned by 3255 Clarcona 

70



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION  REGULAR MEETING HELD ON JUNE 12, 2018, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

 
12 of 33 

 

Road LLC, and located east of Clarcona Road and north of Stone Road. Motion 
seconded by Patrice Phillips.  Aye votes were cast by James Greene, Linda 
Laurendeau, Patrice Phillips, Roger Simpson, and John Sprinkle (5-0). (Vote taken 
by poll.) 

 
QUASI-JUDICIAL – CHANGE OF ZONING – Chairperson Greene stated this is a request to find 
the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and recommend approval of the 
proposed Change of Zoning from “County” C-2 (General Commercial District) to “City” C-1 
(Commercial Retail District) for the property owned by SunTrust Bank and located at 936 East 
Semoran Boulevard. 
     
Chairperson Greene asked if there were any affected parties in attendance that wished to speak.  No 
one spoke. 
 
Chairperson Greene asked if the Commission members had any ex parte communications to divulge 
regarding this item.  No ex parte communications occurred. 
 
Staff Presentation:  Mr. Martinez stated this is a request to find the proposed amendment consistent 
with the Comprehensive Plan and recommend approval of the proposed Change of Zoning from 
“County” C-2 (General Commercial District) to “City” C-1 (Commercial Retail District) for the 
property owned by SunTrust Bank and located at 936 East Semoran Boulevard.   The applicant is 
Causseaux, Hewett, and Walpole, Inc.  The existing use is vacant land and the proposed use is a 5,304 
sq. ft. commercial spaces.  The future land use is Commercial and the current zoning is C-2.  The 
existing and proposed maximum allowable development is 5,304 sq. ft. of commercial space.  The tract 
size is 0.49 +/- acres. 
 
SunTrust Bank owns three vacant parcels east-adjacent of the bank. The eastern-most adjacent parcel, 
920 E. Semoran Boulevard was annexed in the City on April 18, 2018. The City Council is scheduled 
to vote for a Commercial future land use designation and C-1 zoning for 920 E. Semoran Boulevard 
on June 6, 2018, which is located two parcels to the east.  The three parcels will be assembled for a 
proposed Zaxzby’s restaurant.  A utility easement runs across the majority of this property, and the 
majority of the parcel will likely be used for open space within a future site plan.  
 
A request to assign a change of zoning for 936 E. Semoran Boulevard to C-1 is compatible to the 
adjacent zoning classifications and with the general character of abutting properties and surrounding 
area.  
 
The existing and proposed use of the property is consistent with the proposed C-1 (Commercial Retail) 
Future Land Use designation. 
 
The proposed future land use change will result in an insignificant increase (less than 9) in the number 
of residential units which could be developed at the subject property.  Therefore, the property is exempt 
from school capacity enhancement per the School Interlocal Planning Agreement. 
  
The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before any public hearing or advisory board.  
The City properly notified Orange County on May 10, 2018.  
 
The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the 
Comprehensive Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding areas, recommending 
approval of the proposed Change of Zoning from C-2 (General Commercial District) to C-1 
(Commercial Retail District) for the property owned by SunTrust Bank, and located at 936 E Semoran 
Blvd.  
 
 

71



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION  REGULAR MEETING HELD ON JUNE 12, 2018, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

 
13 of 33 

 

Staff recommended the Planning Commission find the proposed amendment consistent with the 
Comprehensive Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding areas; and recommending 
approval of the proposed Change of Zoning from C-2 (General Commercial District) to C-1 
(Commercial Retail District) for the property owned by SunTrust Bank, and located at 936 E Semoran 
Blvd. 
 
This item is considered Quasi-Judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into and 
made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
 
Petitioner Presentation:  Petitioner did not have a presentation. 
 
Chairperson Greene opened the meeting for public hearing.  With no one wishing to speak, Chairperson 
Greene closed the public hearing.  
 
Ms. Phillips left the Council Chambers at 6:20 p.m. 
 
Motion:   John Sprinkle made a motion to find the proposed amendment consistent with the 

Comprehensive Plan and recommend approval of the proposed Change of Zoning 
from “County” C-2 (General Commercial District) to “City” C-1 (Commercial 
Retail District) for the property owned by SunTrust Bank and located at 936 East 
Semoran Boulevard.  Motion seconded by Linda Laurendeau.  Aye votes were cast 
by James Greene, Linda Laurendeau, Roger Simpson, and John Sprinkle (4-0). 
(Vote taken by poll.) 

 
Ms. Phillips re-entered the Council Chambers at 6:22 p.m. 
 
QUASI-JUDICIAL – CHANGE OF ZONING – VISTA RESERVE - Chairperson Greene stated 
this is a request to find the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and 
recommend approval of the proposed Change of Zoning from R-1AA (Residential Single Family 
District) to PUD (Planned Unit Development); and approval of the PUD Master Plan/Preliminary 
Development Plan based on the findings and facts presented in the staff report and exhibits for the 
property owned by Mikhail Wafaa, George Abdelsayed, Lucy Abdelsayed, and Wafeek Abdelsayed 
and located east side of Rogers Road, approximately one half mile north of the intersection of Rogers 
Road and Lester Road. 
     
Chairperson Greene asked if there were any affected parties in attendance that wished to speak.  No 
one spoke. 
 
Chairperson Greene asked if the Commission members had any ex parte communications to divulge 
regarding this item.  No ex parte communications occurred. 
 
Staff Presentation:  Mr. Howell stated this is a request to find the proposed amendment consistent with 
the Comprehensive Plan and recommend approval of the proposed Change of Zoning from R-1AA 
(Residential Single Family District) to PUD (Planned Unit Development); and approval of the PUD 
Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan based on the findings and facts presented in the staff report 
and exhibits for the property owned by Mikhail Wafaa, George Abdelsayed, Lucy Abdelsayed, and 
Wafeek Abdelsayed and located east side of Rogers Road, approximately one half mile north of the 
intersection of Rogers Road and Lester Road. The applicant is Pulte Home Corporation.  The existing 
use is vacant land and the proposed is a 153 single family home subdivision to be developed in one 
phase.  The future land use is Low Density Residential and the current zoning is R-1AA (Residential 
Single Family District).  The tract size 61.1 +/- acres. 
 
 
 

72



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION  REGULAR MEETING HELD ON JUNE 12, 2018, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

 
14 of 33 

 

The subject property is approximately 61.1 acres in size and is zoned R-1AA (Residential Single Family 
District) and has a future land use designation of Low Density Residential. The subject property is 
located on the east side of Rogers Road, approximately one half mile north of the intersection of Rogers 
Road and Lester Road. The proposed change of zoning to PUD (Planned Unit Development) is being 
requested by the prospective developer, Pulte Homes who proposes to construct 153 single-family units 
in one phase on the property. The subdivision is proposed to be developed at a density of 2.53 dwelling 
units per acre. The Low Density Residential future land use designation permits up to 3.5 dwelling 
units per acre.  
 
The Master Plan proposes153 lots consistent of 140 65-foot wide lots and 13 90-foot wide lots, a 
community park with a swimming pool and cabana and tot-lot, and a buffer tract along the entire 
perimeter of the community.  Further, is proposed to be accessed via Rogers Road. The surrounding 
properties consist primarily of single-family residential subdivisions and include the Carriage Hills 
subdivision located to the south which is currently under construction, Oak Hill Reserve to the south 
and east, and Wekiva Run to the west. Average lot widths in the Carriage Hills subdivision is 75-feet, 
Oak Hill Reserve is 95-feet, and 95-feet in Wekiva Run.  
 
A.  Lot Size. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
While a PUD zoning requires a minimum lot width of 70 feet with a minimum lot area of 7,500 sq. ft., 
Vista Reserve proposes 65-foot and 90-foot wide lots with a minimum average lot area of 8,125 square 
feet for the 65-foot wide lots and 11,250 square feet for the 90-foot wide lots, contained within an open 
space tract not less than 15 feet wide on the north, east, and south project lines and 10 feet wide on the 
western project line abutting Rogers Road. The minimum lot depth is proposed at 125-feet. The 
minimum living area is proposed at 2,190 square feet. The subdivision will be accessed via Rogers 
Road. Rogers Road will terminate at the main entrance of the development. The developer will be 
dedicating a 0.68 acre portion of right-of-way along Rogers Road to the City. The subdivision will 
consist of public roads and infrastructure that is owned and maintained by the City. Vehicular and 
pedestrian connections are provided to the property to the north and to the Carriage Hills subdivision 
located to the south. A continuous open space tract is provided around the perimeter of the subdivision 
to buffer the homes from the surrounding existing subdivisions. Thirty percent of the site, or 18.13 
acres of open space is provided, and will be owned and maintained by the homeowners association. 
Two tracts located on the northwestern and northeastern corners of the site are reserved for stormwater 
retention. The stormwater retention areas will be owned and maintained by the homeowners 
association. A 1.67 acre tract is reserved for the community recreation facility that will be owned and 
maintained by the homeowners association. Included within the recreation facility is a picnic area, pool, 
pool cabana building, play structure, open play area, bicycle parking, and a parking area for 8 cars.    
 
B.  Deviations. The applicant is requesting one deviation to the City’s required development standards.  

For a PUD Master Plan, a deviation from the City’s Land Development Code does not represent a 
variance but a development standard or zoning condition unique to and approved as part of the 
Planned Unit Development zoning. PUD’s are required to satisfy the requirements of the Land 
Development Code unless the City Council finds that, based on substantial evidence, a proposed 
alternative development guideline is adequate to protect to the public health safety, and welfare.  
Any deviations must be consistent with the policies of the Comprehensive Plan. 

 
 

Typical Lot 
Width 

Number of units 
Percentage of 
development 

Typical lot area 
(minimum size) 

65-feet 140 91.5% 8,125 square feet 

90-feet 13 8.5% 11,250 square feet 

Total 153 100%  

73



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION  REGULAR MEETING HELD ON JUNE 12, 2018, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

 
15 of 33 

 

1. Typical Lot Width Standard, Land Development Code Section 2.02.18.D.11. Requires a 
minimum lot size within a PUD to be 70-feet in width, and to have a minimum site area of 
7,500 square feet. The developer is proposing 140, 65-foot and 13, 90-foot wide lots with 
minimum lots sizes of 8,125 square feet and 11,250 square feet respectively. These lot sizes 
exceed the required single-family minimum lot area of 7,500 square feet.  

 
C. Justification for Deviations/Development Standard.  The following justifications are provided for 

the three deviations that are proposed. 
 

1. Reduced Density. The future land use designation of the property is Low Density Residential 
which allows up to 3.5 dwelling units per acre. The PUD Master Plan proposes a density of 
2.53 dwelling units per acre, which is 0.97 dwelling units per acre less than the maximum 
density permitted in the Low Density Residential future land use category. 

 
2. Dedication of right-of-way for the extension of Rogers Road. The PUD Master Plan proposes 

the dedication to the City of a 0.68 acre tract for right-of-way for Rogers Road. This will allow 
for the future extension of Rogers Road to the north to allow Rogers Road to serve as a future 
connector road between Ponkan Road and Lester Road.  

 
3. An improved recreation amenities package is proposed. The recreation package will consist of 

a picnic area, pool, pool cabana building, play structure, open play area, bicycle parking, and a 
parking area for 8 cars. The recreation area is proposed at 1.67 acres in size, which is in excess 
of the 1.43 acres required by code.  

 
4. Preservation of Open Space.  The PUD master plan provides a continuous open space tract is 

around the perimeter of the subdivision to buffer the homes from the surrounding existing 
subdivisions. This area will consist of Bahia sod and Live Oak and Magnolia trees, which upon 
maturity is anticipated to ensure the homes within the development are not visible from the 
surrounding existing residential subdivisions.  

 
5. Increased minimum living area size. The applicant is proposing a minimum living area of 2,190 

square feet. The R-1AA zoning district requires a minimum living area of 1,700 square feet.  
Also, the larger lots, the 90-foot width, are located on the eastern project perimeter consistent 
with lot width and size occurring in the Oak Hill Reserve community abutting to the east. 

 
That the zoning classification of the following described property be designated as Planned Unit 
Development (PUD), as defined in the Apopka Land Development Code, and with the following Master 
Plan provisions subject to the following zoning provisions: 
 

A. The uses permitted within the PUD district shall be single-family residential uses. 
 

B. Terms of Expiration for this PUD shall be as follows: 
 
If a Final Development Plan associated with the PUD district has not been approved by the 
City within three years, and site development has not commenced within four years after 
approval of these Master Plan provisions, the approval of the Master Plan provisions will 
expire. At such time, the City Council may: 
 

1. Permit a single six-month extension for submittal of the required Final Development 
Plan; 

 
2. Allow the PUD zoning designation to remain on the property pending resubmittal of 

new Master Plan provisions and any conditions of approval; or 
 

74



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION  REGULAR MEETING HELD ON JUNE 12, 2018, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

 
16 of 33 

 

3. Rezone the property to a more appropriate zoning classification. 
 

The proposed use of the property is consistent with the Low Density Residential Future Land Use 
designation and is consistent with the Land Development Code.   
 
Per Orange County Public Schools, the project is vested to satisfy capacity, however there are 
outstanding concurrency issues that will be required to be satisfied prior to approval of a plat.  
 
Pursuant to Section 7 of the Joint Planning Area agreement, notification to Orange County is not 
required for a rezoning application as the subject parcels are not adjacent to unincorporated Orange 
County.  
 
The Development Review Committee finds the proposed rezoning to Planned Unit Development 
(PUD), PUD Master Plan, and the Preliminary Development Plan consistent with the Comprehensive 
Plan and Land Development Code and recommends approval of the Vista Reserve Planned Unit 
Development Master Plan and Preliminary Development Plan. 
 
Staff recommended the Planning Commission find the proposed amendment consistent with the 
Comprehensive Plan and recommend approval of the proposed Change of Zoning from R-1AA 
(Residential Single Family District) to PUD (Planned Unit Development); and approval of the PUD 
Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan based on the findings and facts presented in the staff report 
and exhibits for the property owned by Mikhail Wafaa, George Abdelsayed, Lucy Abdelsayed, and 
Wafeek Abdelsayed and located east side of Rogers Road, approximately one half mile north of the 
intersection of Rogers Road and Lester Road. 
 
This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into and 
made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
 
In response to questions by Mr. Simpson, Mr. Moon stated that there are no plans in the near future to 
improve Rogers Road.  The applicant has proposed dedication of right-of-way for the extension of 
Rogers Road. The PUD Master Plan proposes the dedication to the City of a 0.68 acre tract for right-
of-way for Rogers Road. This will allow for the future extension of Rogers Road to the north to allow 
Rogers Road to serve as a future connector road between Ponkan Road and Lester Road.  The City 
would have to install sidewalks along Rogers Road. 
 
In response to a question by Mr. Sprinkle, Mr. Moon stated the minimum lot width in this PUD category 
is 70 feet or greater. 
 
In response to concerns expressed by Ms. Laurendeau, Mr. Moon stated that since properties that are 
in the City straddle Rogers Road, Public Services could make a determination to improve Rogers Road 
if the budget allows. 
 
In response to a question by Ms. Phillips, Mr. Moon stated that the applicant was required to provide a 
traffic study; however the study determined that improvements on Rogers Road were not warranted at 
this time. 
 
Mr. Simpson expressed his concerns that Rogers Road is very challenging for pedestrian and bike 
traffic. 
 
Ms. Laurendeau added that there is a no visibility when exiting onto Rogers Road from Grace Point 
Church. 
 
Petitioner:  Doug Hoffman, Pulte Homes, 4901 Vineland Road, Suite 500, Orlando, stated that the 
traffic study indicated that Rogers Road met with the level of service.  He stated that they plan to 

75



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION  REGULAR MEETING HELD ON JUNE 12, 2018, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

 
17 of 33 

 

improve Rogers Road along their portion.  Additionally, by going to small lots, it allowed more open 
space between this development and adjacent residential uses. 
 
Mr. Simpson stated that Pulte was providing a good product, but the development is inconsistent with 
the safety of Rogers Road.                                               
 
Chairperson Greene opened the meeting for public hearing.  With no one wishing to speak, Chairperson 
Greene closed the public hearing.  
 
Motion:   Linda Laurendeau made a motion to find the proposed amendment consistent with 

the Comprehensive Plan and recommend approval of the proposed Change of 
Zoning from R-1AA (Residential Single Family District) to PUD (Planned Unit 
Development); and approval of the PUD Master Plan/Preliminary Development 
Plan based on the findings and facts presented in the staff report and exhibits for 
the property owned by Mikhail Wafaa, George Abdelsayed, Lucy Abdelsayed, and 
Wafeek Abdelsayed and located east side of Rogers Road, approximately one half 
mile north of the intersection of Rogers Road and Lester Road. Motion seconded 
by James Greene.  Aye votes were cast by James Greene, Linda Laurendeau, 
Patrice Phillips, and John Sprinkle; Roger Simpson voted No. (4-1). (Vote taken 
by poll.) 

 
QUASI-JUDICIAL - VARIANCE – BRIDLEWOOD - Chairperson Greene stated this is a request 
to approve a variance of the Apopka Code of Ordinances, Part III, Land Development Code, Article II, 
Section 2.02.05(H)(2) to allow a 6-foot tall composite fence within a 5-foot wide bufferyard in lieu of 
the required 6-foot tall brick, stone or decorative block wall within a 5-foot wide bufferyard on the 
western, northern and eastern perimeters of the property owned by Laura R. Murphy and located at 359 
West Lester Road. 
 
Chairperson Greene asked if there were any affected parties in attendance that wished to speak. No one 
spoke. 
 
Chairperson Greene asked if the Commission members had any ex parte communications to divulge 
regarding this item.  No ex parte communications occurred. 
 
Staff Presentation:  David Moon, AICP, Planning Manager, stated this is a request to approve a variance 
of the Apopka Code of Ordinances, Part III, Land Development Code, Article II, Section 2.02.05(H)(2) 
to allow a 6-foot tall composite fence within a 5-foot wide bufferyard in lieu of the required 6-foot tall 
brick, stone or decorative block wall within a 5-foot wide bufferyard on the western, northern and 
eastern perimeters of the property owned by Laura R. Murphy and located at 359 West Lester Road. 
The land use is Residential Low Suburban (0-3.5 unit(s)/acre) and the zoning is R-1 (Single Family 
Residential).  The existing use is vacant land and the proposed use is a single family residential 
subdivision.  The tract size is 19.94 +/- acres.  
 
Variance Request Summary:  Section 2.02.05 (H)(2) – Bufferyard requirements. Areas adjacent to 
agricultural districts or activities shall provide a minimum five-foot bufferyard and a minimum six-
foot high brick, stone or decorative block finished wall.  The applicant proposes to install a 6-foot tall 
composite fence in lieu of the required brick or decorative wall block on the western, northern and 
eastern perimeters abutting existing agricultural zoning districts or activities. 
 
Variance Request - Code Standard, Sec. 2.02.05(G)(5) – Bufferyard requirements – Areas adjacent to 
agricultural districts or activities shall provide a minimum five-foot bufferyard and a minimum six-
foot high brick, stone or decorative block finished wall. 
 

 

76



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION  REGULAR MEETING HELD ON JUNE 12, 2018, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

 
18 of 33 

 

 Applicant Request - Allow a 6-foot tall composite fence in lieu of the required brick or 
decorative wall block on the western, northern and eastern perimeters abutting existing 
agricultural zoning districts or activities. 
 

Variance Process:  Per Land Development Code Section 10.02.00, the Planning Commission shall 
follow two steps to approve a variance: 
 
Step 1: Section 10.02.02.A, Limitations on Granting Variances. The Planning Commission “shall 

first determine whether the need for the proposed variance arises out of the physical 
surroundings, shape topographical conditions, or other physical or environment conditions 
that are unique to the specific property involved.” This is known as a physical hardship. If 
the Planning Commission makes this determination, then it must take action on the seven 
variance criteria set forth in Section 10.02.02.B. 

 
Step 2: Section 10.02.02.B, Required Findings.  Once a “physical hardship” has been determined, 

the Planning Commission shall not vary from the requirements of any provision of the LDC 
unless it makes a positive finding, based on substantial competent evidence, on the seven 
variance criteria.  

 
Applicable City Codes:  Section 2.02.15(G)(3) – Areas adjacent to residential uses or districts shall 
provide a six-foot-high masonry wall within a minimum of 50-foot landscaped bufferyard. 
 
Variance Hardship Determination (Step 1):  The first step of the variance determination process is to 
determine if a hardship occurs pursuant to Section 10.02.02.A, “whether the need for the proposed 
variance arises out of the physical surroundings, shape topographical conditions, or other physical or 
environment conditions that are unique to the specific property involved.”  
 
Staff Response Summary -- While active agricultural uses occur on property abutting to the east, west, 
and north, growth trends in the surrounding areas show transition to residential uses within the near 
future.  These growth pressures will likely result in rising land prices and expanding housing demands 
pressuring adjacent properties to develop as residential communities in the near future.  Furthermore, 
unincorporated parcel to the west and north presently have a “County” Future Land Use Designation 
of Low Density Residential assigned to them.  This means that the County’s Growth Management Plan, 
its Comprehensive Plan, supports and encourages residential development on the western and northern 
parcels.   
 
Ponkan Road to the north is a dividing line between urban densities to the south and lower residential 
densities to the north.  Policy in the City’s Comprehensive Plan limits residential development to no 
more than two units per acre unless within the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Vision Plan Area.  
Development is encouraged by policies in the City’s Comprehensive Plan to concentrate higher 
residential density south of Ponkan Road.  This policy further encourages the transition of agriculturally 
zoned lands south of Ponkan Road to residential use. 
 
Other trends supporting residential development along Lester Road include:  close proximity to existing 
and planned commercial retail and grocery stores as well as schools and regional recreation facilities 
(West Orange Trail).  Water, sewer and reclaimed lines are accessible to the proposed Bridlewood 
parcel. 
 
The parcel to the east, the Avian Recondition Center, is within the City of Apopka and assigned an 
Agriculture Future Land Use and Zoning. 
 
 
 
 

77



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION  REGULAR MEETING HELD ON JUNE 12, 2018, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

 
19 of 33 

 

Seven Variance Criteria Findings (Step 2): If the Planning Commission accepts the hardship in 
Paragraph A. above, the second step is to make a finding on the seven criteria below.  The Planning 
Commission must make a positive finding, based on substantial competent evidence, on each of the 
following seven criteria: 
 

1. There are practical difficulties in carrying out the strict letter of the regulation [in] that the 
requested variance relates to a hardship due to characteristics of the land and not solely on the 
needs of the owner.  

 
Applicant’s Response:  Yes.  The variance has also previously been discussed with City 
Staff to ensure it will conform to the intended outline of the City's comprehensive plan. 
 
Staff’s Response:  No objection. 

 
2. The variance request is not based exclusively upon a desire to reduce the cost of developing the 

site. 
 

Applicant’s Response:  No, the request is based on what the surrounding properties with 
eventually become based on the City of Apopka's comprehensive plan. 
 
Staff’s Response:  No objection. 

 
3. The proposed variance will not substantially increase congestion on surrounding public streets. 

 
Applicant’s Response:  No. The proposed variance will not increase congestion at all 
on surrounding public streets. 
 
Staff’s Response:  No objection. 

 
4. The proposed variance will not substantially diminish property values in, nor alter the essential 

character of, the area surrounding the site.  
 

Applicant’s Response:  No, the proposed variance will not diminish property values at 
all.  The proposed variance in conjunction with the proposed development will increase 
surrounding property values.  The variance will also not result in any alteration of the 
essential character of the area surrounding the site. 
 
Staff’s Response:  City staff does not hold professional expertise to address property 
values.   

 
5. The effect of the proposed variance is in harmony with the general intent of this code and the 

specific intent of the relevant subject area(s) of the code.  
 

Applicant’s Response:  Yes. The proposed variance is in harmony with the general 
intent of the current code and the specific intent of the relevant subject area. 
 
Staff Response:  No objection.   

 
6. Special conditions and circumstances do not result from the actions of the applicant.   

 
Applicant’s Response:  No special conditions or circumstances do not result from the 
actions of the applicant. 
 
 

78



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION  REGULAR MEETING HELD ON JUNE 12, 2018, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

 
20 of 33 

 

Staff Response: No objection.  The applicant does not have control over development 
trends along Lester Road to residential uses. 

 
7. That the variance granted is the minimum variance which will make possible the reasonable 

use of the land, building or structure. The proposed variance will not create safety hazards and 
other detriments to the public.  

 
Applicant’s Response:  Yes.  The proposed variance is minor to what the current code 
specifies.  The proposed variance will not create any safety hazards or other detriments 
to the public. 
 
Staff Response:  No objection.  

 
Based on the information provided by the applicant at the hearing for the variance requested, Planning 
Commission must first determine that sufficient substantially competent information indicates 
“whether a need for the proposed variance arises out of the physical surroundings, shape topographical 
conditions, or other physical or environment conditions that are unique to the specific property 
involved.”  If so, then the Planning Commission must find that substantially competent information 
occurs to accept each of the seven variance criteria. 
 
Planning Staff has no objection to the proposed request.  Based on recent residential development 
existing and proposed in this area, as well as neighborhood commercial uses proposed in the northwest 
intersection of Lester Road and Rock Springs Road, Staff anticipates residential development will 
continue on Lester Road. 
 
The Planning Commission has the authority to approve, deny, or approve with conditions.  
 
This item is considered Quasi-Judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into and 
made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
 
In response to a question by Chairperson Greene, Mr. Moon stated the proposed use is residential. 
 
In response to a question by Mr. Sprinkle, Mr. Moon stated that Agriculture zoning requires larger 
lots. 
 
In response to a question by Ms. Laurendeau, Mr. Moon stated the Avian Reconditioning Center is on 
the east side of the subject property.  The code requires buffering between residential and agricultural 
uses. 
 
Petitioner:  Luke Classon, Appian Engineering, LLC, 2221 Lee Road, Suite 17, Winter Park, stated 
that he and Eric Wells, Avex Homes, LLC, 28 East Washington Street, Orlando, were available to 
answer any questions. 
 
Mr. Classon explained that they were requesting the variance because if they are required to put up a 
wall there would be a 5-foot wide no man’s land between their wall and the adjacent residential fences.  
The issue then becomes how to maintain that area.  He clarified that they were proposing a composite 
fence and not PVC fencing.   
 
Mr. Wells stated that he had met with the McCorkles of the Avian Reconditioning Center three times 
and they specifically asked that composite fence be installed and Ms. McCorkle picked out the color.  
There would still be a masonry wall along Lester Road. 
 
Mr. Moon stated that staff has not seen the composite fencing being proposed and is unable to comment 
on the appearance or construction of this type of fencing. 

79



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION  REGULAR MEETING HELD ON JUNE 12, 2018, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

 
21 of 33 

 

 
Chairperson Greene opened the meeting for public hearing.  With no one wishing to speak, Chairperson 
Greene closed the public hearing.  
 
Motion:   Roger Simpson made a motion to determine a hardship does occur pursuant to 

Section 10.02.02.A, that the need for the proposed variance arises out of the 
physical surroundings, shape topographical conditions, or other physical or 
environment conditions that are unique to the specific property owned by Laura 
R. Murphy and located at 359 West Lester Road. Motion seconded by Patrice 
Phillips.  Aye votes were cast by James Greene, Patrice Phillips, and Roger 
Simpson; Linda Laurendeau and John Sprinkle voted No. (3-2). (Vote taken by 
poll.) 

 
Motion:   Rogers Simpson made a motion to approve a variance of the Apopka Code of 

Ordinances, Part III, Land Development Code, Article II, Section 2.02.05(H)(2) to 
allow a 6-foot tall composite fence within a 5-foot wide bufferyard in lieu of the 
required 6-foot tall brick, stone or decorative block wall within a 5-foot wide 
bufferyard on the western, northern and eastern perimeters of the property owned 
by Laura R. Murphy and located at 359 West Lester Road. Motion seconded by 
Patrice Phillips.  Aye votes were cast by James Greene, Linda Laurendeau, Patrice 
Phillips, Roger Simpson, and John Sprinkle (5-0). (Vote taken by poll.) 

 
At 7:17 p.m. the Planning Commission recessed for a 10-minute break. 
 
At 7:27 p.m. the Planning Commission reconvened. 
 
QUASI-JUDICIAL - VARIANCE REQUEST – HIDDEN LAKE RESERVE SUBDIVISION -  
Chairperson Greene stated this is a request to approve a variance of the Apopka Code of Ordinances, 
Part III, Land Development Code, Article II, Section 2.02.07(H)(1)(a) to allow a 6-foot high aluminum 
fence with masonry columns for portions of the proposed wall length and a 6-foot high vinyl fence as 
part of screening in areas adjacent to North Bradshaw Road or eastern property line in lieu of the 
required 6-foot tall brick, stone or decorative block wall for property owned by TGINF, LLC, c/o Alan 
Goldberg and located at 501 Old Dixie Highway. 
 
Chairperson Greene asked if there were any affected parties in attendance that wished to speak.   
 
Eric Jay, 227 North Bradshaw Road, Apopka, requested affected party status due to his property being 
across Bradshaw Road from the subject property. 
 
The Planning Commission unanimously agreed to consider Mr. Jay an affected party. 
 
Chairperson Greene asked if the Commission members had any ex parte communications to divulge 
regarding this item.  No ex parte communications occurred. 
 
Staff Presentation:  Ms. Sanchez stated this is a request to approve a variance of the Apopka Code of 
Ordinances, Part III, Land Development Code, Article II, Section 2.02.07(H)(1)(a) to allow a 6-foot 
high aluminum fence with masonry columns for portions of the proposed wall length and a 6-foot high 
vinyl fence as part of screening in areas adjacent to North Bradshaw Road or eastern property line in 
lieu of the required 6-foot tall brick, stone or decorative block wall for property owned by TGINF, 
LLC, c/o Alan Goldberg and located at 501 Old Dixie Highway. The land use is Medium Low Density 
Residential (0 – 7.5 du\ac) and the zoning is R-3 (Residential Multiple-Family).  The existing use is 
vacant land and the proposed use is a townhome development.  The tract size is 15.88 +/- acres. 
 
 

80



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION  REGULAR MEETING HELD ON JUNE 12, 2018, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

 
22 of 33 

 

Variance Request Summary:  Section 2.02.07(H)(1)(a) – Bufferyard requirements. A six-foot-high 
brick, stone or decorative block finished wall adjacent to all external roadways, erected inside a 
minimum ten-foot landscaped bufferyard. Landscape material shall be placed adjacent to the right-of-
way on the exterior of the buffer wall. The city may allow the developer the option to provide up to 50 
percent of the buffer wall length in a six-foot wrought iron fence between solid columns. The columns 
shall be a minimum of 32 feet off-set and shall have a stone, brick or decorative block finish. 
 
Variance Request - Code Standard, Sec. 2.02.07(H)(1)(a) – Bufferyard requirements – A six-foot-high 
brick, stone or decorative block finished wall adjacent to all external roadways, erected inside a 
minimum ten-foot landscaped bufferyard.. 

 
 Applicant Request - Allow a 6' high masonry wall or 6' high aluminum fence with columns for 50% 

of the proposed wall length and the use of a 6’ high vinyl fence or a landscape barrier as a screening 
method in areas with excessive sloping conditions for a substitute to the required six-foot-high 
brick, stone or decorative block finished wall adjacent to the North Bradshaw Road or eastern 
property line. 

 
Variance Process:  Per Land Development Code Section 10.02.00, the Planning Commission shall 
follow two steps to approve a variance: 
 
Step 1: Section 10.02.02.A, Limitations on Granting Variances. The Planning Commission “shall 

first determine whether the need for the proposed variance arises out of the physical 
surroundings, shape topographical conditions, or other physical or environment conditions 
that are unique to the specific property involved.” This is known as a physical hardship. If 
the Planning Commission makes this determination, then it must take action on the seven 
variance criteria set forth in Section 10.02.02.B. 

 
Step 2: Section 10.02.02.B, Required Findings.  Once a “physical hardship” has been determined, 

the Planning Commission shall not vary from the requirements of any provision of the LDC 
unless it makes a positive finding, based on substantial competent evidence, on the seven 
variance criteria.  

 
Applicable City Code:   Section 2.02.15(G)(3) – Areas adjacent to residential uses or districts shall 
provide a six-foot-high masonry wall within a minimum of 50-foot landscaped bufferyard. 
 
Variance Hardship Determination (Step 1):  The first step of the variance determination process is to 
determine if a hardship occurs pursuant to Section 10.02.02.A, “whether the need for the proposed 
variance arises out of the physical surroundings, shape topographical conditions, or other physical or 
environment conditions that are unique to the specific property involved.”  
 
Staff Response:  Staff supports a physical and environmental condition hardship because wetlands 
extend across the North Bradshaw Road right-of-way, and grade.  A staff recommendation is provided 
herein. 
 
Seven Variance Criteria Findings (Step 2): If the Planning Commission accepts the hardship in 
Paragraph A. above, the second step is to make a finding on the seven criteria below.  The Planning 
Commission must make a positive finding, based on substantial competent evidence, on each of the 
following seven criteria: 
 

1. There are practical difficulties in carrying out the strict letter of the regulation [in] that the 
requested variance relates to a hardship due to characteristics of the land and not solely on the 
needs of the owner.  
 

 

81



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION  REGULAR MEETING HELD ON JUNE 12, 2018, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

 
23 of 33 

 

Applicant’s Response:  Yes.  The variance has also previously been discussed with City 
Staff to ensure it will conform to the intended outline of the City's comprehensive plan.  
The Hidden Lake Reserve eastern property line abuts the existing 25’ wide North 
Bradshaw Road right-of-way.  Currently, North Bradshaw Road is an unimproved right-
of-way.  Wetlands extend across the right-of-way, creating a difficulty to construct a 
ten-foot buffer and a brick wall.  In addition, the Hidden Lake Reserve natural 
topography has excessive slopes to the unnamed waterbody. This sloping condition is 
most prominent along the eastern property line (North Bradshaw Road). 
 
Staff’s Response:  No objection. 

 
2. The variance request is not based exclusively upon a desire to reduce the cost of developing the 

site. 
 

Applicant’s Response:  The Hidden Lake Reserve grading must address excessive 
sloping while meeting existing grades along the eastern property line. This sloping 
condition provides challenges in the constructability of a brick, stone or decorative 
block wall to screen an unimproved right-of-way, while dealing with an existing 
waterbody. 
 
Staff’s Response:  No objection. 

 
3. The proposed variance will not substantially increase congestion on surrounding public streets. 

 
Applicant’s Response:  The Hidden Lake Reserve eastern bufferyard proposes a 
screening option and will not increase congestion on any surrounding public streets. 
Additionally, there is no increase in the proposed PDP application units or traffic 
distribution to the unimproved North Bradshaw Road. 
 
Staff’s Response:  No objection. 

 
4. The proposed variance will not substantially diminish property values in, nor alter the essential 

character of, the area surrounding the site.  
 

Applicant’s Response:  The proposed Hidden Lake Reserve eastern bufferyard will not 
diminish property values, nor alter the essential character of the area surrounding the 
site. The subject property will provide the code required bufferyard width along the 
eastern property line. 
 
Staff’s Response:  City staff does not hold professional expertise to address property 
values.   

 
5. The effect of the proposed variance is in harmony with the general intent of this code and the 

specific intent of the relevant subject area(s) of the code.  
 

Applicant’s Response:  The proposed Hidden Lake Reserve eastern bufferyard is in 
harmony with the intent of this code. The subject property will provide a 10’ wide 
landscaped bufferyard with optional forms of screening methods, which is the intent of 
the minimum 10’ wide bufferyard with six-foot-high brick, stone or decorative block 
finished wall. 
 
Staff Response:  No objection.   
 

 

82



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION  REGULAR MEETING HELD ON JUNE 12, 2018, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

 
24 of 33 

 

6. Special conditions and circumstances do not result from the actions of the applicant.   
 

Applicant’s Response:  The proposed Hidden Lake Reserve eastern bufferyard will not 
create a special condition or circumstance. The subject property will provide a 10’ wide 
landscaped bufferyard with optional forms of screening methods. 
 
Staff Response: No objection. 

 
 

7. That the variance granted is the minimum variance which will make possible the reasonable 
use of the land, building or structure. The proposed variance will not create safety hazards and 
other detriments to the public.  

 
Applicant’s Response:  The proposed Hidden Lake Reserve eastern bufferyard will 
provide a 10’ wide landscaped bufferyard with a minimum 6’ high vinyl fence or 
landscape barrier as a screening method on excessively sloped areas of the site.  
Utilizing the use of a fence or landscape barrier will allow a more constructible 
screening method on the excessive slopes, thus providing a minimum variance from the 
code. The subject property will provide the code required bufferyard width and will not 
create a safety hazard or detriment to the public. 
 
Staff Response:  No objection. 

 
Based on the information provided by the applicant at the hearing for the variance requested, Planning 
Commission must first determine that sufficient substantially competent information indicates 
“whether a need for the proposed variance arises out of the physical surroundings, shape topographical 
conditions, or other physical or environment conditions that are unique to the specific property 
involved.”  If so, then the Planning Commission must find that substantially competent information 
occurs to accept each of the seven variance criteria. 
 
The Planning Commission has the authority to approve, deny, or approve with conditions the requested 
variance.  
 
If Planning Commission approves the Variance, the following language is recommended: 
 
Staff supports the following: 
 

(a) North of the lake -- A six-foot high brick wall and ten-foot buffer tract shall run from the 
northeast corner to a point nearest the lift station.  From that point south, a wrought-iron style 
fence or brick wall shall extend southward to a point no closer than 25 feet from the wetland 
line.  Staff supports variance to waive the brick wall from the southern-most upland buffer line 
to the northern-most 25-foot upland buffer line); and   

 
(b) South of the Lake:  A six-foot high brick wall shall extend from the southwest corner to the 

north-south apex, and a wrought-iron or brick wall shall be constructed to a point within 25 feet 
of the wetland line. 

 
Applicant requests:  Approve a variance from Section 2.02.07(H)(1)(a), Land Development Code, to 
allow a 6-foot tall vinyl fence 239 feet from the most southeastern point of the parcel along N. 
Bradshaw Road to the conservation point, 282 feet at length.  As well as, a vinyl fence after 273 feet 
from the most northeastern point to the lift station on N. Bradshaw Road to the conservation point, 141 
feet at length.  The variance shall expire at the time the site redevelops, allowing conformance to the 
buffer requirements applicable at that time. 
 

83



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION  REGULAR MEETING HELD ON JUNE 12, 2018, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

 
25 of 33 

 

This item is considered Quasi-Judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into and 
made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
 
Petitioner Presentation: Bob Wanas, Madden, Moorhead, & Stokes, Inc., 431 E. Horatio Ave, Suite 
260, Maitland, stated that he represents the owner.  He explained the topography of the location along 
the eastern side of the property and why they are requesting a variance of the brick wall. 
 
Affected Party:  Eric Jay, 227 North Bradshaw Road, Apopka, stated that his property is directly across 
Bradshaw Road from the subject property and requested the Planning Commission require a brick wall 
on the southeastern corner across from his home and his next door neighbor’s home. 
 
Mr. Moon reviewed the map provided by the applicant that depicts the buffering being requested on 
all four sides of the property.  In particular the eastern side where the wetlands are located. 
 
A lengthy discussion ensued between staff, the City Attorney, the developer, and the Planning 
Commission regarding the variance request and whether the Planning Commission could place a 
condition on the variance requiring a brick wall along the western side between the property and 
Apopka Elementary. 
 
Mr. Brackins advised the Planning Commission that they could only address the variance that was 
requested. 
 
Chairperson Greene opened the meeting for public hearing.  With no one wishing to speak, Chairperson 
Greene closed the public hearing.  
 
Motion:   Linda Laurendeau made a motion to determine a hardship does occur pursuant to 

Section 10.02.02.A, that the need for the proposed variance arises out of the 
physical surroundings, shape topographical conditions, or other physical or 
environment conditions that are unique to the specific property due to the wetland 
area owned by TGINF, LLC, c/o Alan Goldberg and located at 501 Old Dixie 
Highway.  Motion seconded by John Sprinkle.  An Aye vote was cast by James 
Greene; No votes were cast by Linda Laurendeau, Patrice Phillips, Roger Simpson, 
and John Sprinkle (4-1). (Vote taken by poll.) 

 
The Motion failed. 
 
QUASI-JUDICIAL – PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN – HIDDEN LAKE RESERVE 
SUBDIVISION - Chairperson Greene stated this is a request to find the Hidden Lake Reserve 
Subdivision Preliminary Development Plan consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and Land 
Development Code; and recommend approval of the Hidden Lake Reserve Subdivision Preliminary 
Development Plan subject to the Conditions of Approval, findings of this staff report, and findings of 
the buffer/wall variance for the property owned by TGINF, LLC and located at 501 Old Dixie Highway.   
 
Chairperson Greene asked if there were any affected parties in attendance that wished to speak.  No 
one spoke. 
 
Chairperson Greene asked if the Commission members had any ex parte communications to divulge 
regarding this item.  No ex parte communications occurred. 
 
Staff Presentation:  Jean Sanchez, Planner II, stated this is a request to find the Hidden Lake Reserve 
Subdivision Preliminary Development Plan consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and Land 
Development Code; and recommend approval of the Hidden Lake Reserve Subdivision Preliminary 
Development Plan subject to the Conditions of Approval, findings of this staff report, and findings of 
the buffer/wall variance for the property owned by TGINF, LLC and located at 501 Old Dixie Highway.  

84



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION  REGULAR MEETING HELD ON JUNE 12, 2018, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

 
26 of 33 

 

The applicant and engineer is Madden, Moorhead and Stokes, Inc., c/o Chad Moorhead, P.E.  The 
future land use is Medium Low Density Residential (0 – 7.5 du\ac) and the zoning is R-3 (Residential 
Multiple Family).  The existing use is vacant land.  The proposed use is a 92 Townhome development 
with 18 buildings.  There will be 8 buildings with 4 units each and 10 buildings with 6 units each.  The 
minimum lot size is one acre and the minimum living area is 1,350 square feet.  The building height is 
up to 35 feet.  The proposed density is 6.78 du/ac.  The tract size is 13.57 +/- acres (developable area); 
15.88 +/- acres total.   
 
The Hidden Lake Reserve Subdivision Preliminary Development Plan proposes a gated, townhome 
community with a maximum of 92 townhome units, private streets, and a community pool and cabana.  
The minimum typical lot for a townhome building is one acres with a required minimum living area of 
1,350 square feet for each residential units as set forth in Chapter 2 of the Land Development Code.   
 
Setbacks:  The minimum setbacks applicable to this project are: 
 

Setback Min. Standard 
Front 25’* 
Side 0, 10'** 
Rear 20’*** 

Corner 25’ 
*Front-entry garage must be setback 30 feet and 50 feet from to front between buildings 

**20 feet distance requirement between structures. 
***50 feet from rear to rear between buildings. 

 
Access:    Ingress/egress access point for the development will occur via full access onto Old Dixie 
Highway. In addition, an emergency road and gate connects the internal street with Shirley Drive within 
Clayton Estates.  The emergency road will provide additional access points for emergency vehicles for 
both Clayton Estates and for Hidden Lake Reserve.  A cross access easement is placed across the 
internal streets within Hidden Lake Reserve to allow students from Apopka Elementary School to walk 
from Clayton Estates to the school without having to use Vick Road.  Further, the children and families 
within Clayton Estates and Hidden Reserve can walk a short distance to visit friends in the abutting 
community.  Otherwise, the walk between the communities is a much as 1.3 miles via Old Dixie 
Highway and Vick Roads instead of a few hundred feet in some cases. 
 
Stormwater:  The retention ponds, located on the north and south of existing water body or conservation 
area of the site, have been designed to meet the City’s Land Development Code requirements. 
 
Bufferyard:  Along Old Dixie Highway -- A 6-feet tall masonry and or 6-feet tall wrought iron fence 
with masonry columns within a 10-foot wide buffer tract is proposed by the applicant along Old Dixie 
Highway. Along Old Dixie Highway the Code requires a six foot-brick wall but the City may accept 
up to 50% of the wall to comprise wrought-iron style fence with columns.  As the applicant has not 
identified where the 50% wrought-iron type fence will be place, planning staff does not support the 
wrought-iron-style fence.  
 
Northern Perimeter next to Clayton Estates -- A 6-feet high brick wall exists on the north perimeter 
within a 10-foot wide buffer tract within the Clayton Estates Residential Subdivision, which is owned 
and maintained by Clayton Estates.   
 
Eastern Project Line -- The City Code requires a ten-foot buffer and a six-foot high wall along 
Bradshaw Road.  The applicant has applied for a variance to allow a six foot vinyl fence along the 
eastern property line in lieu of a brick wall within the 10 foot landscape buffer.  The buffer and wall 
type shall be presented and determined through the variance application process. 
 
 

85



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION  REGULAR MEETING HELD ON JUNE 12, 2018, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

 
27 of 33 

 

Western Project Line -- Also proposed is a 6-foot tall vinyl fence within a ten-foot wide buffer tract 
abutting the single-family homes at the southwestern corner of the project and along Apopka 
Elementary School.  The Code requires a brick wall within a 10-foot landscape buffer adjacent to 
single-family residential. The Code does not require residential development to provide a buffer wall 
between the proposed residential homes and the school property.   A gate for cross access during school 
hours/sessions will also be provided between the school and Hidden Lake Reserve.  OCPS supports 
the gate and pedestrian cross access easement within Hidden Lake.  Both OCPS planning staff and City 
planning staff have asked the applicant to provide a brick wall in lieu of a vinyl fence next to the school 
for safety and appearance purpose, but the applicant states the he will only provide a vinyl fence.  The 
Code does not require residential development to provide a buffer wall between residential homes and 
the public school.   
 
A minimum of two spaces within the lot is required for each townhome unit.  Applicant does not 
propose any requirement to have one- or two- car enclosed garages.  All parking, then, can occur within 
the driveway.  The garage is setback 30 feet from the front property line.   No over-flow parking is 
provided and no parking is provided at the pool facility.  Guests and cars not parked in the driveway 
will park in the street. 
 
Conditions of Approval: (1) Wall within Old Dixie Highway bufferyard shall be a six-foot high brick 
or masonry wall.  Not wrought-iron fence will be allowed unless approved by the City at the Final 
Development Plan, and no more than 50% of the wall length along Old Dixie Highway shall be 
wrought-iron. (2) A six-foot high brick wall shall be placed within a 10-foot wide bufferyard adjacent 
to the single-family homes at the southeastern corner of the project. 
 
This development has an executed and recorded Capacity Enhancement Agreement with Orange 
County Public Schools (OCPS). School concurrency shall be required at Final Development Plan 
approval and no development activity can occur until such time that a concurrency mitigation 
agreement has been approved by OCPS.  
 
The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the Hidden Lake Reserve Subdivision 
Preliminary Development Plan/Plat subject to the findings of this staff report and the buffer/wall 
variance public hearing for VAR18-06 TGINF. 
 
Staff recommended the Planning Commission find the Hidden Lake Reserve Subdivision Preliminary 
Development Plan consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code; and 
recommend approval of the Hidden Lake Reserve Subdivision Preliminary Development Plan subject 
to the Conditions of Approval, findings of this staff report, and findings of the buffer/wall variance 
public hearing for VAR18-06 TGINF for the property owned by TGINF, LLC and located at 501 Old 
Dixie Highway.   
 
This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into and 
made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
 
Mr. Moon stated that a cross access easement is placed across the internal streets within Hidden Lake 
Reserve to allow students from Apopka Elementary School to walk from Clayton Estates to the school 
without having to use Vick Road.  Further, the children and families within Clayton Estates and Hidden 
Reserve can walk a short distance to visit friends in the abutting community. 
 
In response to questions by Mr. Sprinkle, Mr. Moon stated that the applicant may be able to coordinate 
with Orange County Public Schools to install gates that would be open during school hours and then 
locked when school is closed. 
 
 
 

86



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION  REGULAR MEETING HELD ON JUNE 12, 2018, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

 
28 of 33 

 

In response to concerns by Mr. Sprinkle, Pam Richmond, AICP, Senior Planner, stated that a traffic 
study was completed and it was found that the project does not generate enough traffic to require any 
turn lanes into or out of the project. 
 
Mr. Sprinkle disagreed and stated that due to the heavy traffic along Old Dixie Highway, especially 
around the school, the Wawa and Bradshaw Road, there should be turn lanes. 
Ms. Richmond reiterated that the traffic study specifically addressed a left turn lane but it was found to 
be unwarranted. 
 
Mr. Moon added that it was his understanding that Old Dixie Highway is maintained by Orange County 
and any improvements would require Orange County approval. 
 
In response to a question by Chairperson Greene, Ms. Sanchez stated that currently the school children 
have to walk all the way around the property due to heavy brush on the subject property. 
 
In response to a question by Mr. Sprinkle, Ms. Sanchez stated there would be a brick wall along Old 
Dixie Highway. 
 
During the discussion of the buffers, the Planning Commission decided to revisit the previous variance 
request. 
 
Motion:   Linda Laurendeau made a motion to Table the request to recommend approval of 

the Preliminary Development Plan for the property owned by TGINF, LLC, c/o 
Alan Goldberg and located at 501 Old Dixie Highway.  Motion seconded by John 
Sprinkle.  Aye votes were cast by James Greene, Linda Laurendeau, Patrice 
Phillips Roger Simpson, and John Sprinkle (5-0). (Vote taken by poll.) 

 
Motion:   John Sprinkle made a motion to reopen Item #8, Variance Request, Hidden Lake 

Reserve Subdivision, for the property owned by TGINF, LLC, c/o Alan Goldberg 
and located at 501 Old Dixie Highway.  Motion seconded by Linda Laurendeau.  
Aye votes were cast by James Greene, Linda Laurendeau, Patrice Phillips Roger 
Simpson, and John Sprinkle (5-0). (Vote taken by poll.) 

 
Motion:   Chairperson Greene made a motion to reconsider the Motion to find a Hardship 

for Item #8, Variance Request, Hidden Lake Reserve Subdivision, for the property 
owned by TGINF, LLC, c/o Alan Goldberg and located at 501 Old Dixie Highway.  
Motion seconded by John Sprinkle.  Aye votes were cast by James Greene, Linda 
Laurendeau, Patrice Phillips Roger Simpson, and John Sprinkle (5-0). (Vote taken 
by poll.) 

 
Mr. Brackins, City Attorney, advised the Planning Commission that if they found a hardship, they 
needed to specify in the motion what the hardship was. 
 
Motion:   Chairperson Greene made a motion to determine the wetlands located on the 

eastern side of the subject property a hardship pursuant to Section 10.02.02.A, that 
states the need for a variance arises out of the physical surroundings, shape 
topographical conditions, or other physical or environment conditions that are 
unique to the specific property owned by TGINF, LLC, c/o Alan Goldberg, and 
located at 501 Old Dixie Highway.  Motion seconded by John Sprinkle.  Aye votes 
were cast by James Greene, Linda Laurendeau, Patrice Phillips, Roger Simpson, 
and John Sprinkle (5-0). (Vote taken by poll.) 

 
 
 

87



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION  REGULAR MEETING HELD ON JUNE 12, 2018, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

 
29 of 33 

 

Motion:   John Sprinkle made a motion to approve a variance of the Apopka Code of 
Ordinances, Part III, Land Development Code, Article II, Section 2.02.07(H)(1)(a) 
to allow, north of the lake, a six-foot high brick wall and ten-foot buffer tract shall 
run from the northeast corner to a point nearest the lift station.  From that point 
south, a brick wall shall extend southward to a point no closer than 25 feet from 
the wetland line; to waive the brick wall from the southern-most upland buffer line 
to the northern-most 25-foot upland buffer line; and south of the Lake to allow a 
six-foot high brick wall to extend from the southwest corner to the north-south 
apex, and a brick wall shall be constructed to a point within 25 feet of the wetland 
line for property owned by TGINF, LLC, c/o Alan Goldberg and located at 501 
Old Dixie Highway.   

 
In response to questions about requiring a wall along the western side of the property, Mr. Brackins 
advised the Planning Commission that they could only address the specifics in the variance request. 
 
Motion: John Sprinkle revised his motion to approve a variance of the Apopka Code of 

Ordinances, Part III, Land Development Code, Article II, Section 2.02.07(H)(1)(a) 
to allow a six-foot high brick wall be constructed to a point within 25 feet of the 
wetland line for property owned by TGINF, LLC, c/o Alan Goldberg, and located 
at 501 Old Dixie Highway.  Motion seconded by Linda Laurendeau.  Aye votes 
were cast by James Greene, Linda Laurendeau, Patrice Phillips, Roger Simpson, 
and John Sprinkle (5-0). (Vote taken by poll.) 

 
Motion:   Linda Laurendeau made a motion to remove from the Table the request to 

recommend approval of the Preliminary Development Plan for the property 
owned by TGINF, LLC, c/o Alan Goldberg, and located at 501 Old Dixie Highway.  
Motion seconded by John Sprinkle.  Aye votes were cast by James Greene, Linda 
Laurendeau, Patrice Phillips Roger Simpson, and John Sprinkle (5-0). (Vote taken 
by poll.) 

 
Petitioner: In response to concerns raised by Mr. Sprinkle and Mr. Simpson, Mr. Wanas stated the 
traffic study did not require turn lanes or pedestrian access. 
 
Mr. Moon advised the Planning Commission that Old Dixie Highway was an Orange County 
maintained roadway.   
 
Mr. Wanas stated that the entrance will allow a stacking distance for two vehicles.     
 
Chairperson Greene opened the meeting for public hearing.  With no one wishing to speak, Chairperson 
Greene closed the public hearing.  
 
Motion:   John Sprinkle made a motion to find the Hidden Lake Reserve Subdivision 

Preliminary Development Plan consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and Land 
Development Code; to recommend approval of the Hidden Lake Reserve 
Subdivision Preliminary Development Plan subject to the Conditions of Approval; 
subject to a six-foot high brick wall to be placed within a 10-foot wide bufferyard 
adjacent to the single-family homes at the southeastern corner of the project; 
subject to the findings of the buffer/wall variance; and subject to the recommended 
additional condition for the construction of a six-foot high brick or masonry wall 
along the western property line for the safety and welfare of students attending the 
adjacent school, for the property owned by TGINF, LLC and located at 501 Old 
Dixie Highway.  Motion seconded by Linda Laurendeau. Aye votes were cast by 
James Greene, Linda Laurendeau, Patrice Phillips, Roger Simpson, and John 
Sprinkle (5-0). (Vote taken by poll.) 

88



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION  REGULAR MEETING HELD ON JUNE 12, 2018, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

 
30 of 33 

 

 
QUASI-JUDICIAL – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN/PLAT – STATON RIDGE - Chairperson 
Greene stated this is a request to find the proposed Stanton Ridge Final Development Plan and Plat 
consistent with the Land Development Code and Comprehensive Plan, and recommend approval of 
Final Development Plan and Plat, subject to the findings of this staff report for the property owned by 
Central Florida Expressway Authority and located astride S.R. 429, west of the intersection of Belgian 
Street and Plymouth Sorrento Road. 
 
Chairperson Greene asked if there were any affected parties in attendance that wished to speak.  No 
one spoke. 
 
Chairperson Greene asked if the Commission members had any ex parte communications to divulge 
regarding this item.  No ex parte communications occurred. 
 
Staff Presentation:  Mr. Moon stated this is a request to find the proposed Stanton Ridge Final 
Development Plan and Plat consistent with the Land Development Code and Comprehensive Plan, and 
recommend approval of Final Development Plan and Plat, subject to the findings of this staff report for 
the property owned by Central Florida Expressway Authority and located astride S.R. 429, west of the 
intersection of Belgian Street and Plymouth Sorrento Road. The applicant is the Central Florida 
Expressway Authority.  The existing use is a vacant single-family residential subdivision.  The 
proposed development is a replat of the existing subdivision to accommodate 33 single family lots 
impacted by S.R. 429 right-of-way.  The lot sizes are 95’ x 130’.  The land use is Residential Low 
Suburban (0-3.5 du/ac) and the zoning is R-1AA.  The project size is 20.59 /- acres. 
 
Stanton Ridge was platted as a 65 lot subdivision in 2007 with access to Plymouth Sorrento Road from 
Belgian Street. Before homes were constructed in the platted Stanton Ridge subdivision, the Central 
Florida Expressway Authority (then the Orlando-Orange County Expressway Authority) acquired the 
subdivision to use the eastern portion for S.R. 429 right-of-way.  By minor redesign of the subdivision, 
thirty-three of the original lots can be saved, all on the west side of S.R. 429.  Access to the subdivision 
will continue from Belgian Street, which now has a bridge extending over S.R. 429.  Belgian Street is 
a public road owned and maintained by the City.  The bridge will be maintained by the Central Florida 
Expressway Authority. 
 
Lots range from the smallest at 12,350 sq. ft. to the largest at 23,862 sq. ft. Majority of lots exceed 
12,500 sq. ft. 
 
A development agreement will accompany the new final development plan and plat when they appear 
before City Council at a public hearing.  Development agreement is to address the following: 

1. Delay landscaping and tree planting along the streets and common areas until a homebuilder 
acquires the project from the Central Florida Expressway Authority. 

2. Delay completion of the park and recreation facilities until a homebuilder acquires the project. 

3. Belgian Street landscape maintenance by the Stanton Ridge HOA. 

4. Maintenance of the bridge. 

5. Assurances to the future homebuilder that entitlements are in place, allowing home construction 
to proceed. 

  

89



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION  REGULAR MEETING HELD ON JUNE 12, 2018, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

 
31 of 33 

 

 
Development Profile: 
 
No. of residential lots: 33 single family residential lots 
Minimum lot width: 95  feet  
Minimum lot depth: 130 Feet  
Minimum lot size: 12,350  square feet  
Minimum house livable area: 1,700 square feet 
 
Setbacks:   
 Front: Min. 25 feet  
 Rear: Min. 20 feet 
 Side: Min. 10 feet 
 Garage: 30 feet (front entry) 

 
The proposed use of the property is consistent with the Residential Low Suburban Future Land Use 
Designation and the R-1AA zoning category.  
 
A School Capacity Enhancement Agreement has been approved by OCPS. The location is served by 
the following schools: Wolf Lake Elementary, Wolf Lake Middle, and Apopka High School.   As the 
plat was previously recorded, school capacity enhancement and concurrency have already been 
satisfied.   
 
Notification occurred to Orange County occurred through the Development Review Committee agenda 
distribution, of which Orange County is on the notification list. 
 
The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the Stanton Ridge Final Development 
Plan and Plat. 
 
Staff recommended the Planning Commission find the Stanton Ridge Final Development Plan and Plat 
consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code, and recommend approval of the 
Stanton Ridge Final Development Plan and Plat, subject to City Council approval of a Development 
Agreement.  
 
This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into and 
made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
 
Petitioner: Scott Glass, Shutts & Bowen LLP, 300 South Orange Avenue, Suite 1600 
Orlando, stated he did not have a presentation. 
 
Chairperson Greene opened the meeting for public hearing.  With no one wishing to speak, Chairperson 
Greene closed the public hearing.  
 
Motion:   Roger Simpson made a motion to find the proposed Stanton Ridge Final 

Development Plan and Plat consistent with the Land Development Code and 
Comprehensive Plan, and recommend approval of Final Development Plan and 
Plat, subject to the findings of this staff report for the property owned by Central 
Florida Expressway Authority and located astride S.R. 429, west of the intersection 
of Belgian Street and Plymouth Sorrento Road.  Motion seconded by Linda 
Laurendeau. Aye votes were cast by James Greene, Linda Laurendeau, Patrice 
Phillips, Roger Simpson, and John Sprinkle (5-0). (Vote taken by poll.) 

 
 
 

90



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION  REGULAR MEETING HELD ON JUNE 12, 2018, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

 
32 of 33 

 

QUASI-JUDICIAL – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN – WEKIVA RIVERWALK SHOPPING 
CENTER - Chairperson Greene stated this is a request to find the proposed Wekiva Riverwalk 
Shopping Center Final Development Plan consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and Land 
Development Code; and recommend approval of the Wekiva Riverwalk Shopping Center Final 
Development Plan, subject to the findings of this staff report for the property owned by Woolbright 
Wekiva, LLC and located at 2121 East Semoran Boulevard. 
 
Chairperson Greene asked if there were any affected parties in attendance that wished to speak.  No 
one spoke. 
 
Chairperson Greene asked if the Commission members had any ex parte communications to divulge 
regarding this item.  No ex parte communications occurred. 
 
Staff Presentation:  Mr. Howard stated this is a request to find the proposed Wekiva Riverwalk 
Shopping Center Final Development Plan consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and Land 
Development Code; and recommend approval of the Wekiva Riverwalk Shopping Center Final 
Development Plan, subject to the findings of this staff report for the property owned by Woolbright 
Wekiva, LLC and located at 2121 East Semoran Boulevard.  The engineer is Sun-Tech Engineering, 
Inc., Clifford R. Loutan, P.E.   The land use is Commercial and the zoning is C-1.  The existing use is 
a retail shopping plaza and the proposed use is a grocery store.  The development size is 28,600 square 
feet.  
 
The Wekiva Riverwalk Shopping Center Final Development Plan proposes a 28,600 square foot 
grocery store in the northeastern corner of the existing Wekiva Riverwalk shopping center building. 
Currently located in this tenant space is a restaurant and retail space. The Final Development Plan 
details an 8,500 square foot addition to the portion of the existing building where the grocery store is 
proposed. The addition will be constructed in an area that is currently used for parking and a drive aisle. 
The drive aisle leads into a driveway opening that currently allows access into the shopping center from 
Wekiwa Springs Road. The Final Development Plan proposes relocation of the driveway opening 90-
feet to the south along Wekiva Springs Road to accommodate the proposed building addition. Wekiwa 
Springs Road is an Orange County maintained road. Orange County has provided correspondence to 
the City indicating approval of the relocation of the driveway opening 90-feet to the south along 
Wekiwa Springs Road, and will issue a permit for the driveway relocation upon the City of Apopka’s 
approval of the Final Development Plan.  
       
The Final Development Plan provides a demolition plan which proposes the removal of 52 parking 
spaces to all for the 8,500 square foot building addition. Upon removal of the existing parking spaces 
to allow for the building addition, a total of 1,237 parking spaces will be provided in the Wekiva 
Riverwalk shopping center. This is a sufficient amount of parking to accommodate the proposed 
grocery store and the existing uses located in the shopping center. The applicant has submitted a parking 
statement prepared by a professional engineer which concludes there will be a sufficient amount of 
parking provided in the shopping center with the removal of the parking spaces that will accommodate 
the building addition. Staff has accepted and is in agreement with this parking statement.  
 
Access to the site will be provided via a relocated driveway opening located 90-feet to the south along 
Wekiwa Springs Road, and existing driveway openings located along Semoran Boulevard. Wekiwa 
Springs Road is an Orange County maintained road. Orange County has provided correspondence to 
the City indicating approval of the relocation of the driveway opening 90-feet to the south along 
Wekiwa Springs Road. 
 
Staff found the proposed building elevations to be designed in accordance with the City’s Development 
Design Guidelines. 
 
   

91



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION  REGULAR MEETING HELD ON JUNE 12, 2018, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

 
33 of 33 

 

Stormwater run-off and drainage is accommodated by an existing on-site stormwater drainage system.  
 
The applicant has provided a detailed landscape and irrigation plan for the portion of the parking lot in 
front of the proposed grocery store. The planting materials and irrigation system design are consistent 
with the water-efficient landscape standards set forth in Ordinance No. 2069.   
 
The Development Review Committee recommends the approval of the Wekiva Riverwalk Shopping 
Center Final Development Plan. 
 
The role of the Planning Commission for this development application is to advise the City Council to 
approve, deny, or approve with conditions based on consistency with the Comprehensive Plan and 
Land Development Code. 
 
Staff recommended the Planning Commission find the Wekiva Riverwalk Shopping Center Final Development 
Plan consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code; and recommend approval of the 
Wekiva Riverwalk Shopping Center Final Development Plan, subject to the findings of this staff report for the 
property owned by Woolbright Wekiva, LLC and located at 2121 East Semoran Boulevard. 
This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into and 
made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
 
Petitioner: Julie Kendig, GreenbergTraurig, 450 South Orange Avenue, Orlando, stated she represented 
the owner as their legal counsel, they support the staff report, and she was available to answer any 
questions. 
 
Chairperson Greene opened the meeting for public hearing.  With no one wishing to speak, Chairperson 
Greene closed the public hearing.  
 
Motion:   Roger Simpson made a motion to find the proposed Wekiva Riverwalk Shopping 

Center Final Development Plan consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and Land 
Development Code; and recommend approval of the Wekiva Riverwalk Shopping 
Center Final Development Plan, subject to the findings of this staff report for the 
property owned by Woolbright Wekiva, LLC and located at 2121 East Semoran 
Boulevard. Motion seconded by Patrice Phillips. Aye votes were cast by James 
Greene, Linda Laurendeau, Patrice Phillips, Roger Simpson, and John Sprinkle 
(5-0). (Vote taken by poll.) 

 
OLD BUSINESS:  None. 
 
NEW BUSINESS:  None 
 
ADJOURNMENT:   The meeting was adjourned at 9:19 p.m. 
 
 
 
/s/ 
James Greene, Chairperson 
 
 
 
/s/ 
James K. Hitt, FRA-RA 
Community Development Director 

 

92



10.02.00. - VARIANCES  

10.02.01. - Generally.  

A. Granted by zoning board of appeals. The zoning board of appeals may grant a zoning variance from 
the strict application of this code as indicated, provided the following procedures are followed and 
findings made.  

B. Variances to be considered as part of zoning board of appeals review. Any person desiring to 
undertake a development activity not in conformance with the code may apply for a variance in 
conjunction with the application for development review. A development activity that might otherwise 
be approved by the director must be approved by the zoning board of appeals if a variance is sought. 
The variance shall be granted or denied in conjunction with the application for development review.  

C. Notice of public hearing. Notification and advertisement of a public hearing for a variance request 
shall be in accord with article XII, section 12.04.04 of this code. 

10.02.02. - Limitations on granting variances.  

A. Initial determination. The zoning board of appeals shall first determine whether the need for the 
proposed variance arises out of the physical surroundings, shape, topographical condition, or other 
physical or environmental conditions that are unique to the specific property involved. If so, the 
zoning board of appeals shall make the following required findings based on the granting of the 
variance for that site alone. If, however, the condition is common to numerous sites so that requests 
for similar variances are likely to be received, the zoning board of appeals shall make the required 
findings based on the cumulative effect of granting the variance to all who may apply.  

Under no circumstances shall the zoning board of appeals grant a variance to permit a use not 
generally or by special exception permitted in this code or any use expressly or by implication prohibited 
by the terms of this code. Further, under no circumstance shall the zoning board of appeals offer or 
accept any negotiation to grant a variance in exchange for any other land use alterations on the affected 
parcel or any other parcel of land.  

No nonconforming use of neighboring lands, structures or buildings in other zoning districts shall be 
considered grounds for the authorization of the variance.  

B. Required findings. The zoning board of appeals shall not vary the requirements of any provision of 
this code unless the board makes a positive finding, based on substantial competent evidence, on 
each of the following:  

1. There are practical difficulties in carrying out the strict letter of the regulation [in] that the 
requested variance relates to a hardship due to characteristics of the land and not solely on the 
needs of the owner.  

2. The variance request is not based exclusively upon a desire to reduce the cost of developing 
the site.  

3. The proposed variance will not substantially increase congestion on surrounding public streets.  

4. The proposed variance will not substantially diminish property values in, nor alter the essential 
character of, the area surrounding the site.  

5. The effect of the proposed variance is in harmony with the general intent of this code and the 
specific intent of the relevant subject area(s) of the code.  

6. Special conditions and circumstances do not result from the actions of the applicant. 

7. That the variance granted is the minimum variance which will make possible the reasonable use 
of the land, building or structure. The proposed variance will not create safety hazards and other 
detriments to the public.  

93



C. Imposition of conditions. In granting a development approval involving a variance, the development 
review board may impose such conditions and restrictions upon the premises benefited by a 
variance as may be necessary to allow a positive finding to be made on any of the foregoing factors, 
or to minimize the injurious effect of the variance.  

D. Record of variances to be maintained. The director shall maintain a record of all variances including 
the justification for their issuance and a copy of the notice of the variance.  

E. Historic properties. Notwithstanding the foregoing requirements, special variances may be granted 
for the reconstruction, rehabilitation or restoration of structures listed on, or classified as contributing 
to a district listed on, the National Register of Historic Places, the local register of historic places, or 
the state inventory of historic places. The special variance shall be the minimum necessary to protect 
the historic character and design of the structure. No special variance shall be granted if the 
proposed construction, rehabilitation, or restoration will cause the structure to lose its historical 
designation.  

94



12.05.00. - PROCEDURE FOR APPEALING DECISIONS  

12.05.01. - Appeals to the city council.  

Any person or persons, jointly or severally adversely affected by a decision of any officer, 
administrative official, committee and/or board may appeal a final decision to the city council unless 
otherwise indicated in this code. Appeals are made to the city council by filing a notice of appeal with the 
city clerk within 30 days of the decision. 

12.05.02. - Notice of appeal to the city clerk.  

The notice of appeal shall contain:  

A. A statement of the decision to be reviewed, and the date of the decision. 

B. A statement of the interest of the person seeking review. 

C. The specific error alleged as the grounds of the appeal.

12.05.03. - Appellate hearing by the city council.  

When a decision is appealed to the city council, the council shall conduct the hearing in compliance 
with the following procedures as supplemented where necessary:  

A. Scope of review.  

1. The city council shall set a reasonable time for hearing the appeal; 

2. The city shall require proper advertised notice thereof, as well as notice to property owners 
in accordance with this code;  

3. The city council shall have the authority to review questions of law, including interpretations 
of this code, and any constitution, ordinance, statute, law, or other rule or regulation of 
binding legal force.  

B. Authority of the city council during an appeal. The city council shall have the authority:  

1. To request briefs to be filed on behalf of any party and prescribe filing and service 
requirements.  

2. To hear oral argument on behalf of any party. 

3. To adjourn, continue, or grant extensions of time for compliance with these rules, either on 
their own motion or upon application of the party, provided no requirement of law is 
violated.  

4. To dispose of procedural requests or similar matters including motions to amend and 
motions to consolidate.  

5. To keep a record of all persons requesting notice of the decision in each case. 

C. Decision of the city council and final action.  

1. City councilmen shall be ruled by the conflict of interest requirement as established by the 
Sunshine Laws and Florida Statutes.  

2. No officer or employee of the city who has a financial or other private interest in a proposal 
shall participate in discussions with or give an official opinion to the hearing body on the 
proposal without first declaring for the record the nature and extent of the interest.  

3. The city council must affirm, reverse, or remand each contested decision. 

4. When the council affirms or reverses a contested decision pertaining to a final action of a 
decision-maker, that action shall be deemed to be the final action and be subject to no 
further review under this code.  

95



5. When the council finds any decision to be in error, that decision shall be referred back to 
the decision-maker for reconsideration in light of the council's opinion. Council opinion shall 
not be deemed to be the final action and shall be submitted to no further review under this 
code.  

96



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

2. Preliminary Development Plan – Hidden Lake Reserve Subdivision                                                                                      Jean 
Sanchez 
Project:  TGINF, LLC – Location: 501 Old Dixie Highway 

  

97



 

 

 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: July 18, 2018 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Vicinity Map 

X OTHER: Preliminary Development Plan  Aerial Map 

    Zoning Map 

    Preliminary Development Plan 

    Landscape Plan 

    OCPS DRC Comments 
  
SUBJECT:    HIDDEN LAKE RESERVE SUBDIVISION – PRELIMINARY 

DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

    

REQUEST:  RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE HIDDEN LAKE RESERVE 

SUBDIVISION – PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

  
SUMMARY:     
 
OWNER:    TGINF, LLC  
 
APPLICANT/ENGINEER:  Alan Goldberg/ Chad Moorhead, P.E., Madden, Moorhead and Stokes, 

Inc. 
 
LOCATION:   501 Old Dixie Highway 
 
PARCEL ID NUMBER: 09-21-28-0000-00-006 
 
FUTURE LAND USE:    Medium Low Density Residential (0 – 7.5 du\ac) 
 
ZONING:    R-3 (Residential Multiple Family) 
 
EXISTING USE:   Vacant 
 
PROPOSED USE:   92 Townhome Units within 18 buildings; comprised of 8 buildings  
     with 4 units and 10 buildings with 6 units. 
     Townhome Unit Minimum Living Area:  1,350 sq. ft.;  
     Max. Building Height:  up to 35 feet. 
 
TRACT SIZE:    13.57 +/- acres (developable area); 15.88 +/- acres total 
 
DENSITY:    6.78 du/ac (proposed) 

  
FUNDING SOURCE:  N/A 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 
 
G:\CommDev\PLANNING ZONING\SUBDIVISION PLANS\2018\Hidden Lake Reserve PDP\5 City Council Hearings 

98



CITY COUNCIL – JULY 18, 2018 
HIDDEN LAKE RESERVE SUBDIVISION – PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 2 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Residential Low R-2 Clayton Estates Residential Subdivision 

East (County) Office R-1 New England Heights Subdivision 

South (City and County) Commercial C-1 and C-2 Car sales, automobile service station and other 

commercial retail uses. 

West (City and County) Institution and Medium 

Density Residential 

PO/I and R-2 Apopka Elementary School and Single Family 

Residential 

 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  The Hidden Lake Reserve Subdivision Preliminary Development Plan 

proposes a gated, townhome community with a maximum of 92 townhome units, private streets, and a 

community pool and cabana.  The minimum typical lot for a townhome building is one acres with a required 

minimum living area of 1,350 square feet for each residential units as set forth in Chapter 2 of the Land 

Development Code.   

 

Setbacks:  The minimum setbacks applicable to this project are: 

 

Setback Min. Standard 

Front 25’* 

Side 0, 10'** 

Rear 20’*** 

Corner 25’ 

*Front-entry garage must be setback 30 feet and 50 feet from to front between buildings 

**20 feet distance requirement between structures. 

***50 feet from rear to rear between buildings. 

 

Access:    Ingress/egress access point for the development will occur via full access onto Old Dixie 

Highway. In addition, an emergency road and gate connects the internal street with Shirley Drive within 

Clayton Estates.  The emergency road will provide additional access points for emergency vehicles for both 

Clayton Estates and for Hidden Lake Reserve.  A cross access easement is placed across the internal streets 

within Hidden Lake Reserve to allow students from Apopka Elementary School to walk from Clayton 

Estates to the school without having to use Vick Road.  Further, the children and families within Clayton 

Estates and Hidden Reserve can walk a short distance to visit friends in the abutting community.  Otherwise, 

the walk between the communities is a much as 1.3 miles via Old Dixie Highway and Vick Roads i stead 

of a few hundred feet in some cases. 

 

Stormwater:  The retention ponds, located on the north and south of existing water body or conservation 

area of the site, have been designed to meet the City’s Land Development Code requirements. 

 

Bufferyard:  Along Old Dixie Highway – A 6-feet tall masonry and or 6-feet tall wrought iron fence with 

masonry columns within a 10-foot wide buffer tract is proposed by the applicant along Old Dixie Highway. 

Along Old Dixie Highway the Code requires a six foot-brick wall but the City may accept up to 50% of the 

wall to comprise wrought-iron style fence with columns.  As the applicant has not identified where the 50% 

wrought-iron type fence will be place, planning staff does not support the wrought-iron-style fence.  

 

 99



CITY COUNCIL – JULY 18, 2018 
HIDDEN LAKE RESERVE SUBDIVISION – PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 3 

 

Northern Perimeter next to Clayton Estates – A 6-feet high brick wall exists on the north perimeter within 

a 10-foot wide buffer tract within the Clayton Estates Residential Subdivision, which is owned and 

maintained by Clayton Estates.   

 

Eastern Project Line – The City Code requires a ten-foot buffer and a six-foot high wall along N. Bradshaw 

Road.  The applicant applied for a variance to allow a six foot vinyl fence along the eastern property line in 

lieu of a brick wall within the 10 foot landscape buffer.  At its meeting on June 12, 2018 for the public 

hearing process of VAR18-06 TGINF, the Planning Commission denied the variance request for a six foot 

tall vinyl fence but accepted a variance to waive the brick wall within the wetland and its 25-foot upland 

buffer area with a requirements for six-foot high brick wall along other lengths of the Bradshaw Road right-

of-way as follows: 

 

“motion to approve a variance of the Apopka Code of Ordinances, Part III, Land Development 

Code, Article II, Section 2.02.07(H)(1)(a) to allow, north of the lake, a six-foot high brick wall 

and a ten-foot wide buffer tract shall run from the northeast corner to a point nearest the lift 

station.  From that point  south, a brick wall shall extend southward to a point no closer than 25 

feet from the wetland line; to waive the brick wall from the southern-most [25-foot] upland buffer 

line to the northern most 25-foot upland buffer line; and south of the lake to allow a six-foot high 

brick wall to extend from the southwest corner to the north-south apex, [then run north] and a 

brick wall shall be constructed to a point within 25 feet of the wetland line.” 

 

Western Project Line – Also proposed is a 6-foot tall vinyl fence within a ten-foot wide buffer tract abutting 

the single-family homes at the southwestern corner of the project and along Apopka Elementary School.  

The Code requires a brick wall within a 10-foot landscape buffer adjacent to single-family residential. The 

Code does not require residential development to provide a buffer wall between the proposed residential 

homes and the school property.   A gate for cross access during school hours/sessions will also be provided 

between the school and Hidden Lake Reserve.  OCPS supports the gate and pedestrian cross access 

easement within Hidden Lake.  Both OCPS planning staff and City planning staff have asked the applicant 

to provide a brick wall in lieu of a vinyl fence next to the school for safety and appearance purpose, but the 

applicant states the he will only provide a vinyl fence.  The Code does not require residential development 

to provide a buffer wall between residential homes and the public school (which lies within a Professional 

Office\Institutional zoning category).  The Planning Commission also recommended a six-foot high brick 

wall (in lieu of a vinyl fence) on the western boundary adjacent to the school property at its meeting for the 

variance request, VAR18-06 TGINF, on June 12, 2018.   

 

Parking:    A minimum of two spaces within the lot is required for each townhome unit.  Applicant does 

not propose any requirement to have one- or two- car enclosed garages.  All parking, then, can occur within 

the driveway.  The garage is setback 30 feet from the front property line.   No over-flow parking is provided 

and no parking is provided at the pool facility.  Guests and cars not parked in the driveway will park in the 

street. 

 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL: 

 

1. Wall within Old Dixie Highway bufferyard shall be a six-foot high brick or masonry wall.  Not 

wrought-iron fence will be allowed unless approved by the City at the Final Development Plan, and 

no more than 50% of the wall length along Old Dixie Highway shall be wrought-iron. 

 

2. A six-foot high brick wall shall be placed within a 10-foot wide bufferyard adjacent to the single-

family homes at the southeastern corner of the project. 100



CITY COUNCIL – JULY 18, 2018 
HIDDEN LAKE RESERVE SUBDIVISION – PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 4 

 

 

3. Bufferwall and landscape buffer along the eastern project line shall be provided consistent with the 

requirements of variance VAR18-06, approved by Planning Commission June 12, 2018.  

 

SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  This development has an executed and recorded Capacity 

Enhancement Agreement with Orange County Public Schools (OCPS). School concurrency shall be 

required at Final Development Plan approval and no development activity can occur until such time that a 

concurrency mitigation agreement has been approved by OCPS.  

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

June 12, 2018 - Planning Commission, 5:30 p.m. 

July 18, 2018 - City Council, 7:00 p.m.  

  
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 

The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the Hidden Lake Reserve Subdivision 

Preliminary Development Plan/Plat subject to the findings of this staff report and the buffer/wall variance 

public hearing for VAR18-06 TGINF. 

 

At its meeting on June 12, 2018, the Planning Commission recommended: 

 

 To find the Hidden Lake Reserve Subdivision Preliminary Development Plan consistent with the 

Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code;  

 

 To recommend approval of the Hidden Lake Reserve Subdivision Preliminary Development Plan 

subject to the Conditions of Approval [in the Planning Commission Staff Report]; 

 

  Subject to a six-foot high brick wall to be placed within a 10-foot wide bufferyard adjacent to the 

single-family homes at the southeastern corner of the project; subject to the findings of the 

buffer\wall variance;  

 

 Subject to the findings of the buffer\wall variance; and 

 

 Subject to the recommended additional condition for the construction of a six-foot high brick or 

masonry wall along the western property line for the safety and welfare of students attending the 

adjacent school, for the property owned by TGNIF,LLC. 
 

The City Council, at its meeting on July 18, 2018, unanimously approved continuation of this case to its 

August 15, 2018 meeting. 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Approve the Hidden Lake Reserve Subdivision – Preliminary 

Development Plan subject to the conditions of approval and findings of the staff report.   

 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 

into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

 

  

101



CITY COUNCIL – JULY 18, 2018 
HIDDEN LAKE RESERVE SUBDIVISION – PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 5 

 

Owner:   TGINF, LLC  

Applicant:  Alan Goldberg 

Parcel I.D. No:    09-21-28-0000-00-006 

Location:  501 Old Dixie Highway 

Total Acres:   15.88 +/- Acres   

 

VICINITY MAP 

 

   
 

  

102



CITY COUNCIL – JULY 18, 2018 
HIDDEN LAKE RESERVE SUBDIVISION – PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 6 

 

 

 

AERIAL MAP 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Subject Property 

103



CITY COUNCIL – JULY 18, 2018 
HIDDEN LAKE RESERVE SUBDIVISION – PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 7 

 

 

ZONING MAP 

 
 

   
 

 

 
 

104



SCALE

SHEET

PROJECT NO.

B
Y

D
A

T
E

R
E

V
.

D
E

S
C

R
I
P

T
I
O

N

DATE

Date:

d
a
ly

 d
e
si

g
n
 g

ro
u
p

 in
c
.

U
rb

an
 P

la
nn

in
g,

 L
an

ds
ca

pe
 A

rc
hi

te
ct

ur
e,

 P
ro

je
ct

 M
an

ag
em

en
t, 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t C
on

su
lti

ng
9

1
3

 
N

 
P

e
n

n
s
y
l
v
a

n
i
a

 
A

v
e

,
 
W

i
n

t
e

r
 
P

a
r
k
,
 
F

L
 
3

2
7

8
9

 
 
(
4

0
7

)
 
7

4
0

-
7

3
7

3
 
 
w

w
w

.
d

a
l
y
d

e
s
i
g

n
.
c
o

m

L-202

MAY 2018

1"=60'

1722

L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E
 
P

L
A

N

P
R

E
L
I
M

I
N

A
R

Y
 
D

E
V

E
L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 
P

L
A

N

H
I
D

D
E

N
 
L
A

K
E

 
R

E
S

E
R

V
E

A
P

O
P

K
A

,
 
F

L
O

R
I
D

A

N
O

R
T

H

0'

BUFFER TRACT B-3 (0.12 AC)

PEDESTRIAN TRAIL (MULCH)

5' WIDE LANDSCAPE EASEMENT

STREET TREES TO BE 3" DBH/30' O.C.

5
'
 
W

I
D

E
 
L

A
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

 
E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T

S
T

R
E

E
T

 
T

R
E

E
S

 
T

O
 
B

E
 
3

"
 
D

B
H

/
3

0
'
 
O

.
C

.

5

'

 

W

I

D

E

 

L

A

N

D

S

C

A

P

E

 

E

A

S

E

M

E

N

T

S

T

R

E

E

T

 

T

R

E

E

S

 

T

O

 

B

E

 

3

"

 

D

B

H

/

3

0

'

 

O

.

C

.

LANDSCAPING AND IRRIGATION PLANS

SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH LDC

ARTICLE V, WATER-WISE ORD. NO. 2069

RECREATION EQUIPMENT, MATERIALS, AND SURFACES

WILL BE SUBMITTED WITH FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN

PEDESTRIAN TRAIL (MULCH)

6' VINYL FENCE WITHIN

BUFFER TRACT B-3

(TAN)

PEDESTRIAN CONNECTION TO

APOPKA  ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

OPEN SPACE TRACT

OS-2  (0.12 AC)

BUFFER TRACT B-1 (0.09 AC)

ENTRY SIGN WALL & COLUMNS

ENTRY GATES

ENTRY SIGN WALL & COLUMNS

OPEN SPACE TRACT OS-7 (0.10 AC)

OPEN SPACE TRACT OS-1 (0.15 AC)

BOARDWALK &

OBSERVATION PIER

BUFFER TRACT B-2

(0.10 AC).

CANOPY TREES 40' O.C.

   LIFT

STATION

RECREATION TRACT

       R-1 (0.68 AC)

 UPLAND

 BUFFER

LIMITS OF WETLAND

 WETLAND

 UPLAND

 BUFFER

 UPLAND

 BUFFER

    POND

 TRACT  P-1

    POND

 TRACT  P-2

GENERAL NOTES: TREE LEGEND
I CERTIFY THAT THE LANDSCAPE AND IRRIGATION DESIGN FOR HIDDEN LAKE RESERVE

OF SUBDIVISION IS IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE CITY OF APOPKA'S ORDINANCE 2069

ADOPTED MAY 21,2008 WHICH ESTABLISHES WATERWISE LANDSCAPE AND IRRIGATION

STANDARDS.

______________________                      _____________________                   ______________

SIGNATURE                                              REG. NO                                             DATE

S

E

E

 

S

H

E

E

T

 

L

-

2

0

1

 

F

O

R

E

N

T

R

Y

 

L

A

N

D

S

C

A

P

E

6' VINYL FENCE WITHIN

BUFFER (TAN) OR

LANDSCAPE BARRIER

6' VINYL FENCE WITHIN

BUFFER TRACT B-3

(TAN)

OPEN SPACE TRACT OS-3 (0.03 AC)

OPEN SPACE TRACT

OS-4 (0.05 AC)

OPEN SPACE TRACT

OS-4 (0.05 AC)

6' BRICK WALL

EXISTING

6' BRICK WALL

EXISTING

6' MASONRY SCREEN WALL OR

6' WROUGHT IRON FENCE WITH

MASONRY COLUMNS (TYP)

6' MASONRY SCREEN WALL OR

6' WROUGHT IRON FENCE WITH

MASONRY COLUMNS (TYP)

OPEN SPACE TRACT

 OS-6 (0.07 AC)

6' MASONRY SCREEN WALL OR

6' WROUGHT IRON FENCE WITH

MASONRY COLUMNS (TYP)

BUFFER TRACT B-4 (0.27 AC)

6' MASONRY SCREEN WALL OR

6' WROUGHT IRON FENCE WITH

MASONRY COLUMNS (TYP)

UNDERSTORY TREES 35" O.C.

HEDGE AND GROUNDCOVERS

UNDERSTORY TREES 35" O.C.

HEDGE AND GROUNDCOVERS

CANOPY TREES 40' O.C.

PEDESTRIAN CONNECTION TO

CLAYTON ESTATES

6' BRICK WALL

EXISTING

105



From: DiLuzio Boerger, Jamie E. 

To: Jean Sanchez; Goldberg Allan 

Cc: Singer Gary; Bobby Wanas; Daly Tom; James Hitt; David Moon; Bobby Howell; Edith 

Torres; Randall Fernandez; 

Richard Earp 

 

Subject: RE: VAR18-06 Hidden Lake/TGINF LLC 

Date: Thursday, May 17, 2018 4:44:51 PM 

Attachments: image001.jpg 

 

Jean, 

OCPS has reviewed all the information provided. It is our recommendation that given OCPS’ 

history with the stability of PVC fencing during strong wind events, we would not support the 

request for a PVC fence adjacent to OCPS property. 

Please add this to DRC comments. 

 

Thank you, 

 

Jamie 

106



2

2

107



108



CIVIL ENGINEERS

SYM-1

17039
01-16-2018

N.T.S.
BW
BW
CHM

O
L
D
 
D
I
X
I
E
 
1
5
,
 
L
L
C

109



S00°00'19"E     1239.25'

N
8
9
°
5
4
'
1
4
"
W

 
 
 
 
 
6
6
7
.
2
8
'

S00°02'44"W     776.30'

S38°01'52"W

46.02'

S

5

1

°

5

8

'

0

8

"

E

 

 

 

 

 

8

1

2

.

0

9

'

55

46
557

7
55

55 7

4
6

8 8
39

2

2

46

6

6

6

99

99

CIVIL ENGINEERS

EC-1

17039
01-16-2018

1"=60'
BW
BW
CHM

O
L
D
 
D
I
X
I
E
 
1
5
,
 
L
L
C

110



CIVIL ENGINEERS

SP-1

17039
01-16-2018

1"=50'
BW
BW
CHM

O
L
D
 
D
I
X
I
E
 
1
5
,
 
L
L
C

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

2
2

2

2

2

2

111



CIVIL ENGINEERS

DS-1

17039
01-16-2018

N.T.S.
BW
BW

CHM

O
L
D
 
D
I
X
I
E
 
1
5
,
 
L
L
C

2

2

2

2

2

112



CIVIL ENGINEERS

DP-1

17039
01-16-2018

1"=50'
BW
BW
CHM

O
L
D
 
D
I
X
I
E
 
1
5
,
 
L
L
C

2

2
2

2

2

2

2

2

2

113



CIVIL ENGINEERS

UP-1

17039
01-16-2018

1"=50'
BW
BW
CHM

O
L
D
 
D
I
X
I
E
 
1
5
,
 
L
L
C

2

2

2 2

2

2

2

2

2

2

114



CIVIL ENGINEERS

AM-1

17039
01-16-2018

1"=60'
BW
BW
CHM

O
L
D
 
D
I
X
I
E
 
1
5
,
 
L
L
C

2

2

2 2

2

2

2

2

2

115



CIVIL ENGINEERS

FA-1

17039
01-16-2018

1"=50'
BW
BW
CHM

O
L
D
 
D
I
X
I
E
 
1
5
,
 
L
L
C

116



POINT NUMBER NORTHING EASTING TREE SIZE/TYPE

3035 1580754.5698 488879.2972 13"OAK

3036 1580751.0641 488881.008 10/10"OAK

3037 1580725.4484 488857.0751 12"OAK

3038 1580730.0543 488831.5565 11"OAK

3039 1580688.6249 488841.1213 16"OAK

3040 1580685.8452 488830.9902 8/9"OAK

3041 1580681.7575 488820.8591 12"OAK

3042 1580720.3063 488807.5308 15"OAK

3043 1580760.2271 488786.3491 12"OAK

3044 1580753.8313 488781.4039 12"OAK

3045 1580731.0774 488762.25 13"OAK

3046 1580734.207 488758.3508 10/10"OAK

3047 1580828.796 488862.5567 8/10"OAK

3048 1580823.2952 488805.9221 8"OAK

3049 1580827.483 488760.3133 8/12"OAK

3050 1580826.1108 488689.4838 12/12/12"OAK

3051 1580883.4842 488832.1592 14"OAK

3052 1580908.018 488829.082 20"OAK

3053 1580953.8609 488811.3456 9"OAK

3054 1580975.5818 488837.673 13"OAK

3055 1581001.943 488789.6893 18"OAK

3056 1580996.5057 488657.3617 20"OAK

3057 1580935.074 488637.0772 10"OAK

3058 1581051.6011 488586.1141 12/18"OAK

3059 1581006.8235 488485.784 18/18"OAK

3060 1581084.1425 488466.1819 10"OAK

3061 1581088.7425 488460.4206 10"OAK

3062 1581081.5708 488413.538 20"OAK

3063 1581117.1506 488369.8061 12"OAK

3064 1581074.878 488359.7924 16"OAK

3065 1581106.5494 488317.5676 10"OAK

3066 1581208.0698 488310.2858 14/14"OAK

3067 1581233.8145 488312.24 8"OAK

3068 1581228.8842 488337.3153 8/12"OAK

3069 1581189.3071 488408.5945 18"OAK

3070 1581162.8832 488466.9037 18"OAK

3071 1581187.5867 488509.0087 14"OAK

3072 1581280.2407 488562.346 8"OAK

3073 1581514.2814 488875.7075 27"OAK

3074 1581576.6905 488869.0071 15/19"OAK

3075 1581684.5901 488892.4587 9"OAK

3076 1581674.1478 488880.8407 9"OAK

3077 1581740.3254 488860.0189 13"OAK

3078 1581837.3283 488912.2918 8"OAK

3079 1581856.073 488869.8318 8"OAK

3080 1581856.058 488851.442 8"OAK

3081 1581832.6603 488851.7878 8"OAK

3082 1581712.8669 488787.7692 12"OAK

3083 1581604.541 488787.2969 20"OAK

3084 1581684.2803 488760.3646 11"OAK

3085 1581852.4292 488730.5592 12"OAK

3086 1581661.9138 488710.8957 12"OAK

3087 1581573.0631 488717.3817 10/12"OAK

3088 1581665.8215 488683.4162 12"OAK

3089 1581537.4219 488609.295 22"OAK

3090 1581661.6056 488587.2878 13"OAK

3091 1581855.933 488638.2946 8"OAK

3092 1581766.8329 488564.1738 10"OAK

3093 1581742.5778 488534.4812 18"OAK

3094 1581666.7674 488536.0485 14"OAK

3095 1581765.3981 488490.5156 12/16"OAK

3096 1581814.6847 488512.9487 9"OAK

3097 1581836.6331 488514.4641 14"OAK

3098 1581856.0474 488481.0998 10"OAK

3099 1581856.2161 488428.0075 8"OAK

3100 1581821.1334 488436.358 18"OAK

3101 1581643.1411 488414.2993 28"OAK

3102 1581616.1561 488415.1914 22"OAK

3103 1581686.6181 488358.4939 18"OAK

3104 1581761.5031 488339.2079 12/12"OAK

3105 1581664.2096 488334.054 18"OAK

3106 1581715.9733 488289.9236 9/16/15"OAK

3107 1581641.2857 488310.9572 32"OAK

3108 1581617.5107 488286.7575 12"OAK

3109 1581566.2852 488286.3606 10"OAK

3110 1581460.6665 488328.9886 12"OAK

SCALE

SHEET

PROJECT NO.

B
Y

D
A

T
E

R
E

V
.

D
E

S
C

R
I
P

T
I
O

N

DATE

Date:

d
a
ly

 d
e
si

g
n
 g

ro
u
p

 in
c
.

U
rb

an
 P

la
nn

in
g,

 L
an

ds
ca

pe
 A

rc
hi

te
ct

ur
e,

 P
ro

je
ct

 M
an

ag
em

en
t, 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t C
on

su
lti

ng
9

1
3

 
N

 
P

e
n

n
s
y
l
v
a

n
i
a

 
A

v
e

,
 
W

i
n

t
e

r
 
P

a
r
k
,
 
F

L
 
3

2
7

8
9

 
 
(
4

0
7

)
 
7

4
0

-
7

3
7

3
 
 
w

w
w

.
d

a
l
y
d

e
s
i
g

n
.
c
o

m

TP-101

MAY 2018

1"=50'

1722

T
R

E
E

 
L
O

C
A

T
I
O

N
 
P

L
A

N

P
R

E
L
I
M

I
N

A
R

Y
 
D

E
V

E
L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 
P

L
A

N

H
I
D

D
E

N
 
L
A

K
E

 
R

E
S

E
R

V
E

A
P

O
P

K
A

,
 
F

L
O

R
I
D

A

N
O

R
T

H

TREE REMOVAL

GENERAL NOTES: TREE REPLACEMENT

TREE SURVEY:

TREE LEGEND

TREE LOCATION ,TYPE , SIZE

TOP OF WATER=115.9',

NAVD 1988 DATUM

09/25/2017

 UPLAND

 BUFFER

LIMITS OF WETLAND

 WETLAND

PROPOSED BUILDING FOOTPRINT (TYP)

P

R

O

P

O

S

E

D

 

B

U

I

L

D

I

N

G

 

F

O

O

T

P

R

I

N

T

 

(

T

Y

P

)

I CERTIFY THAT THE LANDSCAPE AND IRRIGATION DESIGN FOR HIDDEN LAKE RESERVE

SUBDIVISION IS IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE CITY OF APOPKA'S ORDINANCE 2069 ADOPTED

MAY 21,2008 WHICH ESTABLISHES WATERWISE LANDSCAPE AND IRRIGATION STANDARDS.

______________________                      _____________________                   ______________

SIGNATURE                                              REG. NO                                             DATE

117



SCALE

SHEET

PROJECT NO.

B
Y

D
A

T
E

R
E

V
.

D
E

S
C

R
I
P

T
I
O

N

DATE

Date:

d
a
ly

 d
e
si

g
n
 g

ro
u
p

 in
c
.

U
rb

an
 P

la
nn

in
g,

 L
an

ds
ca

pe
 A

rc
hi

te
ct

ur
e,

 P
ro

je
ct

 M
an

ag
em

en
t, 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t C
on

su
lti

ng
9

1
3

 
N

 
P

e
n

n
s
y
l
v
a

n
i
a

 
A

v
e

,
 
W

i
n

t
e

r
 
P

a
r
k
,
 
F

L
 
3

2
7

8
9

 
 
(
4

0
7

)
 
7

4
0

-
7

3
7

3
 
 
w

w
w

.
d

a
l
y
d

e
s
i
g

n
.
c
o

m

L-201

MAY 2018

1"=10'

1722

L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E
 
P

L
A

N

P
R

E
L
I
M

I
N

A
R

Y
 
D

E
V

E
L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 
P

L
A

N

H
I
D

D
E

N
 
L
A

K
E

 
R

E
S

E
R

V
E

A
P

O
P

K
A

,
 
F

L
O

R
I
D

A

N
O

R
T

H

0'

LANDSCAPING AND IRRIGATION PLANS

SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH LDC

ARTICLE V, WATER-WISE ORD. NO. 2069

ENTRY SIGN WALL

& COLUMNS

OPEN SPACE

TRACT OS-7

(0.10 AC)

OPEN SPACE

TRACT OS-1 (0.15 AC)

GENERAL NOTES:

CALL BOX

ENTRY GATE

PASS THRU

5' SIDEWALK

4" TYP.

SHRUB AND GROUND COVER DETAIL

FINISHED GRADE

6" TYP.

NOT TO SCALE

NOTE:

CONTRACTOR SHALL ASSURE

PERCOLATION OF ALL PLANTING PITS/

BEDS PRIOR TO INSTALLATION.

SHRUBS SHALL BE PLANTED 2'

HIGH WITH SOIL MOUNDING UP

TO THE TOP OF ROOT BALL.

2" MULCH RING WIDTH OF

PLANTING HOLE

SOIL BERM TO HOLD WATER

TYPICAL PLANT SPACING

NOTE:

NOT TO SCALE

ALL SHRUBS AND GROUND COVER

MASSES TO USE TRIANGULAR SPACING

EXCEPT WHERE NOTED REFER TO PLANT

LIST FOR INDIVIDUAL PLANT SPACING 'X'.

CURB OR EDGE OF PAVEMENT

5
'
 
C

L
E

A
R

 
T

R
U

N
K

 
 
 
T

R
E

E
 
S

T
A

N
D

A
R

D

LARGE TREE GUYING DETAIL

Detail for trees greater than 2" cal.

VARIES WITH PLANT BALL

FINISH GRADE

NOT TO SCALE

1/2" DIA. BLACK RUBBER HOSE

TIED WITH DOUBLE STRAND 12

GA. GALV. WIRE MIN. 3 GUYS

PER TREE

TURNBUCKLE AND WHITE

FLAGGING

3" MULCH RING WIDTH OF

PLANTING HOLE

NOTE:

BURLAP TO BE REMOVED FROM TOP HALF

OF ROOT BALL

PLANT TABLET

(SEE SPECS FOR QUANTITY)

PREPARE PLANTING SOIL AS

SPECIFIED

2"x4" WOOD STAKES OR #5

REBAR 24" LONG 3" BELOW

GRADE

SMALL TREE GUYING DETAIL

Detail for trees smaller than 2" cal.

18" MIN.

TYP.

6" TYP.

PLAN

120

120

NOT TO SCALE

PROTECT TREE TRUNK WITH

BLACK RUBBER HOSE

#10 GAUGE WIRE

THREE 2' x 4" x 8' STAKES

SPACE EVENLY AROUND TREE

PAINT BROWN

3" MINIMUM OF CYPRESS

MULCH

SOIL BERM TO HOLD WATER

B & B OR CONTAINERIZED (

SEE SPECIFICATIONS FOR

ROOTBALL REQUIREMENTS )

PREPARED PLANTING SOIL AS

SPECIFIED

FINISHED

GRADE

BEYOND

NOTE:

1. CONTRACTOR SHALL ASSURE

PERCOLATION OF ALL PLANTING PITS

PRIOR TO INSTALLATION.

2. FINAL TREE STAKING DETAILS AND

PLACEMENT TO BE APPROVED BY

OWNER.

S

H

E

E

T

 

L

-

2

0

1

S

H

E

E

T

 

L

-

2

0

2

S

H

E

E

T

 

L

-

2

0

1

S

H

E

E

T

 

L

-

2

0

2

I CERTIFY THAT THE LANDSCAPE AND IRRIGATION DESIGN FOR HIDDEN LAKE RESERVE

OF SUBDIVISION IS IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE CITY OF APOPKA'S ORDINANCE 2069

ADOPTED MAY 21,2008 WHICH ESTABLISHES WATERWISE LANDSCAPE AND IRRIGATION

STANDARDS.

______________________                      _____________________                   ______________

SIGNATURE                                              REG. NO                                             DATE

PLANTING DETAILS

PLANT SCHEDULE  - ENTRANCE

SEE SHEET 202 FOR STREET TREES AND COMMON AREA PLANTING

BUFFER TRACT B-1 (0.09 AC)

BUFFER TRACT B-4 (0.27 AC)

6' MASONRY SCREEN WALL OR

6' WROUGHT IRON FENCE WITH

MASONRY COLUMNS (TYP)

6' MASONRY SCREEN WALL OR

6' WROUGHT IRON FENCE WITH

MASONRY COLUMNS (TYP)

118



SCALE

SHEET

PROJECT NO.

B
Y

D
A

T
E

R
E

V
.

D
E

S
C

R
I
P

T
I
O

N

DATE

Date:

d
a
ly

 d
e
si

g
n
 g

ro
u
p

 in
c
.

U
rb

an
 P

la
nn

in
g,

 L
an

ds
ca

pe
 A

rc
hi

te
ct

ur
e,

 P
ro

je
ct

 M
an

ag
em

en
t, 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t C
on

su
lti

ng
9

1
3

 
N

 
P

e
n

n
s
y
l
v
a

n
i
a

 
A

v
e

,
 
W

i
n

t
e

r
 
P

a
r
k
,
 
F

L
 
3

2
7

8
9

 
 
(
4

0
7

)
 
7

4
0

-
7

3
7

3
 
 
w

w
w

.
d

a
l
y
d

e
s
i
g

n
.
c
o

m

L-202

MAY 2018

1"=60'

1722

L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E
 
P

L
A

N

P
R

E
L
I
M

I
N

A
R

Y
 
D

E
V

E
L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 
P

L
A

N

H
I
D

D
E

N
 
L
A

K
E

 
R

E
S

E
R

V
E

A
P

O
P

K
A

,
 
F

L
O

R
I
D

A

N
O

R
T

H

0'

BUFFER TRACT B-3 (0.12 AC)

PEDESTRIAN TRAIL (MULCH)

5' WIDE LANDSCAPE EASEMENT

STREET TREES TO BE 3" DBH/30' O.C.

5
'
 
W

I
D

E
 
L

A
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

 
E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T

S
T

R
E

E
T

 
T

R
E

E
S

 
T

O
 
B

E
 
3

"
 
D

B
H

/
3

0
'
 
O

.
C

.

5

'

 

W

I

D

E

 

L

A

N

D

S

C

A

P

E

 

E

A

S

E

M

E

N

T

S

T

R

E

E

T

 

T

R

E

E

S

 

T

O

 

B

E

 

3

"

 

D

B

H

/

3

0

'

 

O

.

C

.

LANDSCAPING AND IRRIGATION PLANS

SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH LDC

ARTICLE V, WATER-WISE ORD. NO. 2069

RECREATION EQUIPMENT, MATERIALS, AND SURFACES

WILL BE SUBMITTED WITH FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN

PEDESTRIAN TRAIL (MULCH)

6' VINYL FENCE WITHIN

BUFFER TRACT B-3

(TAN)

PEDESTRIAN CONNECTION TO

APOPKA  ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

OPEN SPACE TRACT

OS-2  (0.12 AC)

BUFFER TRACT B-1 (0.09 AC)

ENTRY SIGN WALL & COLUMNS

ENTRY GATES

ENTRY SIGN WALL & COLUMNS

OPEN SPACE TRACT OS-7 (0.10 AC)

OPEN SPACE TRACT OS-1 (0.15 AC)

BOARDWALK &

OBSERVATION PIER

BUFFER TRACT B-2

(0.10 AC).

CANOPY TREES 40' O.C.

   LIFT

STATION

RECREATION TRACT

       R-1 (0.68 AC)

 UPLAND

 BUFFER

LIMITS OF WETLAND

 WETLAND

 UPLAND

 BUFFER

 UPLAND

 BUFFER

    POND

 TRACT  P-1

    POND

 TRACT  P-2

GENERAL NOTES: TREE LEGEND
I CERTIFY THAT THE LANDSCAPE AND IRRIGATION DESIGN FOR HIDDEN LAKE RESERVE

OF SUBDIVISION IS IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE CITY OF APOPKA'S ORDINANCE 2069

ADOPTED MAY 21,2008 WHICH ESTABLISHES WATERWISE LANDSCAPE AND IRRIGATION

STANDARDS.

______________________                      _____________________                   ______________

SIGNATURE                                              REG. NO                                             DATE

S

E

E

 

S

H

E

E

T

 

L

-

2

0

1

 

F

O

R

E

N

T

R

Y

 

L

A

N

D

S

C

A

P

E

6' VINYL FENCE WITHIN

BUFFER (TAN) OR

LANDSCAPE BARRIER

6' VINYL FENCE WITHIN

BUFFER TRACT B-3

(TAN)

OPEN SPACE TRACT OS-3 (0.03 AC)

OPEN SPACE TRACT

OS-4 (0.05 AC)

OPEN SPACE TRACT

OS-4 (0.05 AC)

6' BRICK WALL

EXISTING

6' BRICK WALL

EXISTING

6' MASONRY SCREEN WALL OR

6' WROUGHT IRON FENCE WITH

MASONRY COLUMNS (TYP)

6' MASONRY SCREEN WALL OR

6' WROUGHT IRON FENCE WITH

MASONRY COLUMNS (TYP)

OPEN SPACE TRACT

 OS-6 (0.07 AC)

6' MASONRY SCREEN WALL OR

6' WROUGHT IRON FENCE WITH

MASONRY COLUMNS (TYP)

BUFFER TRACT B-4 (0.27 AC)

6' MASONRY SCREEN WALL OR

6' WROUGHT IRON FENCE WITH

MASONRY COLUMNS (TYP)

UNDERSTORY TREES 35" O.C.

HEDGE AND GROUNDCOVERS

UNDERSTORY TREES 35" O.C.

HEDGE AND GROUNDCOVERS

CANOPY TREES 40' O.C.

PEDESTRIAN CONNECTION TO

CLAYTON ESTATES

6' BRICK WALL

EXISTING

119



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

3. Approve the Interlocal Agreements between Orange County Fire Rescue and the City of Apopka Fire Department. 
  

120



 

 

 

 CITY OF APOPKA  

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

       CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: August 15, 2018  

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:             Fire Department           

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:      Interlocal Agreements     

   X    OTHER: Business 
  

 

SUBJECT: INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT(S) TO PROVIDE FIRE AND EMS SERVICES TO 

ORANGE COUNTY 

 

REQUEST: APPROVE THREE INTERLOCAL AGREEMENTS BETWEEN ORANGE 

COUNTY FIRE RESCUE DEPARTMENT AND THE CITY OF APOPKA FIRE 

DEPARTMENT. 
  
SUMMARY: 

 

In February 2015, TriData, a nationally recognized firm specializing in public safety research and 

consulting, was contracted to conduct a fire station location study for the Orange County Fire Rescue 

Department. The study analyzed the current deployment of fire stations, and the potential need for 

additional stations or the relocating of stations to better serve the county. The study reviewed current 

allocation/locations of resources, forecast future demands for service in light of expected growth and 

recommended changes to the current system. 

 

The study resulted in the following recommendations of Fire and EMS coverage for Orange County Fire 

Station 29 located on Kelly Park Road: 

  

1. With recent annexations and the current and projected growth to the north of Apopka and NW 

Orange County, work with Apopka to provide Fire and EMS coverage and consider a monetary 

incentive for Apopka. 

2. Move forward with negotiations to have Apopka provide service to the area presently served by 

Station 29 and to provide automatic aid (backup) to areas of unincorporated Orange County where 

Station 29 would normally respond, if needed.  

3. Establish a Mutual-Aid agreement with Apopka. 

With the location of Apopka Fire Station 2 (Welch Rd.), the recent opening of Fire Station 5 (Firehouse 

Lane) and the continued growth/annexations to the north has caused a reduction of the service area at 

Orange County Station 29.  The Orange County Fire Rescue Department approached the city with a 

proposal for Apopka to take over fire-rescue services for the area currently serviced by Fire Station 29 

located on Kelly Park Road.  After several months of negotiations, the Fire Chiefs from both agencies, 

along with city and county staff, have agreed upon a service area and plan for the Apopka Fire 

Department to provide coverage of the existing Station 29 area and a means to provide automatic-aid 

(backup) to areas where Station 29 would normally respond. 

  

121



 

 

 
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

N/A    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 

 

1. Approve the Interlocal Agreement between Orange County Fire Rescue and the City of Apopka 

Fire Department to provide Fire and EMS services to the area presently being serviced by Orange 

County Fire Station 29. Allow the city to invoice and collect from the county, on an annual basis, 

a sum determined by the millage levied each year in the Urban Fire Protection and Emergency 

Medical Services municipal service taxing unit existing in Orange County, to the ad valorem tax 

assessment roll covering real and personal property within the then-unincorporated areas of the 

contract area. 

 

2. Approve the Interlocal Agreement between Orange County Fire Rescue and the City of Apopka 

Fire Department to provide Automatic-Aid (backup) to areas of unincorporated Orange County 

where Fire Station 29 would normally provide this service, if needed. 
 

3. Approve the Interlocal Agreement between Orange County Fire Rescue and the City of Apopka 

Fire Department to provide Mutual Aid services between each agency in times of natural disasters, 

large scale incidents or catastrophic events. 
 

 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

4. Discussion on School Resource Officers.        Chief McKinley 

 
  

150



 

 

 CITY OF APOPKA  

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

       CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF:              August 15, 2018 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:                       Police Department 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:                    SRO Agreement 

  X   OTHER: Business 
  

 

SUBJECT:  AGREEMENT WITH ORANGE COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS FOR THE 

APOPKA POLICE DEPARTMENT TO PROVIDE SCHOOL RESOURCE 

OFFICERS WITHIN THE PUBLIC SCHOOLS LOCATED IN THE CITY.  

 

REQUEST: AUTHORIZE THE POLICE CHIEF TO ENTER INTO THIS AGREEMENT.  
  
SUMMARY: 

Each school year, the Apopka Police Department enters into an agreement with Orange County Public 

Schools to provide School Resource Officers (SRO) within the public schools located in the city limits. 

The agreement outlines the scope of services to be provided by both parties and establishes the funding 

from Orange County Public Schools.   

 

Highlights of the agreement: 

 Added four new SRO’s to the elementary schools to comply with the Marjory Stoneman Douglas Act 

 Raised the reimbursement amount from $41,930.00 per SRO to $45,000.00 per SRO 

 Reimbursement of $45,000.00 for a supervisor dedicated to the SRO program 

 

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

N/A    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Authorize the police chief to enter into the agreement. 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

5. Approve the termination of the Red Light Camera Agreement with American Traffic Solutions Inc.    Edward Bass 

 
  

164



CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 

  CONSENT AGENDA    MEETING OF:  August 15, 2018 

___ PUBLIC HEARING    FROM:        Administration 

   SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS:        Third Amendment 

 X  OTHER: Business  

SUBJECT: RED LIGHT CAMERA AGREEMENT 

REQUEST: TERMINATION OF RED LIGHT CAMERA AGREEMENT 

SUMMARY: 

During the budget workshop on July 5, 2018, City Council had discussions regarding the direction of the 

Red Light Camera Agreement with American Traffic Solutions, Inc. (ATS).  In accordance with the Third 

Amendment to the Professional Services Agreement with ATS the City may terminate the agreement at any 

time at its convenience upon thirty (30) days written notice to contractor without any penalty, fee, charge, 

liability or further compensation or payment of any kind.  The City would need to provide written notice 

on December 1, 2018, to terminate the Agreement effective December 31, 2018. 

If the agreement is terminated there will be a phase-out period to assure that all red light traffic tickets 

issued through December 31, 2018, are processed and all final invoices are paid to ATS.  Staff will 

coordinate with ATS to establish this phase-out period.     

FUNDING SOURCE: 

N/A 

RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 

Approve termination of the Red Light Camera Agreement with American Traffic Solutions, Inc. effective 

December 31, 2018.  

DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson  Finance Director Public Services Director 

Commissioners   HR Director Recreation Director 

City Administrator IT Director City Clerk  

Community Development Director Police Chief Fire Chief 165



166



167



168



169



170



171



172



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1. Resolution 2018-13 - FY17/18 Budget Amendment. 

 
  

173



 

 

 CITY OF APOPKA  

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

       CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: August 15, 2018  

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:              Finance Department 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:       Exhibit A 

  X  OTHER: Resolution No. 2018-13 
  

 

SUBJECT: RESOLUTION NO. 2018-13 – AMENDING THE BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL 

YEAR BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 2017 AND ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2018 
 

REQUEST: REQUEST COUNCIL ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 2018-13 TOTALING 

$685,704.00 
  
SUMMARY: 

 

On September 27, 2017, by Resolution No. 2017-17, the City Council adopted the final budgets for fiscal 

year 2017/2018.  The City has committed to expenditures and has experienced unanticipated 

revenues/expenditures through the current fiscal year that need to be reflected in the current budget.  

Florida Statutes, Section 166.241(4) requires the governing body amend the budget in the same manner as 

the original budget is adopted. 

 

Exhibit A – This amendment includes changes for the funding and appropriation of the Florida 

Department of Environmental Protection Recreational Trails Grant and the Department of Justice COPS 

Grant in the amount of $685,704.00  

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

FY 2017 - 2018 Budget Amendment for the Grant Fund which will be increased to include the amounts 

included in Exhibit A.    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Adopt Resolution No. 2018-13 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

174



 RESOLUTION NO. 2018-13 
 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

APOPKA, FLORIDA, AMENDING THE BUDGET FOR THE 

FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 2017 AND ENDING 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2018, PROVIDING FOR A BUDGET 

AMENDMENT 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, has determined that 

the Budget for Fiscal Year 2017/2018 should be amended; and 

WHEREAS, Florida Statutes, Section 166.241(4) requires the governing body 

amend the budgets in the same manner as the original budget is adopted; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council adopted the final budgets for fiscal year 2017/2018 

through resolution on September 27, 2017.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1: That the Budget for the City of Apopka, Florida, and Fiscal Year 

2017/2018 is hereby amended as indicated in Exhibit A – with an amendment totaling 

$685,704.00 which are hereby attached and made part of this Resolution by reference thereto. 

SECTION 2: Effective Date.  This Resolution shall take effect upon final 

passage and adoption. 

ADOPTED THIS 15
TH

 DAY OF August, 2018 

 

      

 CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA 
 

______________________________                                      
                      BRYAN NELSON, MAYOR 

 

ATTEST: 

 

________________________________ 
LINDA F. GOFF, CITY CLERK 
 

175



Date : _______________ Date Entered:
Prepared by: _________  Entered By:
Approved by: _________      Batch #:
Entry Code: __________   Posted By:

ACCOUNT NUMBER J/E DESCRIPTION TO FROM
001-389-0010 BUDGET AMENDMENT FROM RESERVES 80,000.00        
001-9011-581-9150 TRANSFER TO GRANT FUND 80,000.00        
150-381-0010 TRANSFER FROM GENERAL FUND 80,000.00        
150-334-7003 STATE GRANT - DEP 120,000.00      
150-3613-572-6304 IMPROVEMENTS-RECREATION TRAILS KITLAND 200,000.00      

150-2220-521-1200 REGULAR SALARIES & WAGES - COPS GRANT 239,000.00      
150-2220-521-1225 PROFICIENCY PAY 2,900.00          
150-2220-521-1400 OVERTIME - COPS GRANT 10,000.00        
150-2220-521-1500 INCENTIVE PAY 400.00             
150-2220-521-2100 FICA - COPS GRANT 19,750.00        
150-2220-521-2200 CITY RETIREMENT - COPS GRANT 68,000.00        
150-2220-521-2400 WORKER'S COMPENSATION 600.00             
150-2220-521-2300 LIFE AND HEALTH INSURANCE - COPS GRANT 45,050.00        
150-369-9000 MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 122,696.00      
150-381-0010 TRANSFER FROM GENERAL FUND 20,004.00        
150-331-2200 DEPT OF JUSTICE - COPS GRANT 243,000.00      

001-389-0010 BUDGET AMENDMENT FROM RESERVES 20,004.00        
001-9011-581-9150 TRANSFER TO GRANT FUND 20,004.00        

TOTAL 685,704.00      685,704.00      

COMMENTS: RESOLUTION 2018-13

ESTABLISH FUNDING FOR DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE COPS GRANT WHICH WAS AWARDED IN FISCAL YEAR 2017 AS A 
THREE YEAR GRANT.  WE ARE CURRENTLY IN YEAR TWO.  THERE WAS NO BUDGET ESTABLISHED IN THE CURRENT 
FISCAL YEAR TO COVER THESE EXPENDITURES.  

EXHIBIT A
CITY OF APOPKA

BUDGET AMENDMENT
08/15/18

ESTABLISH FUNDING FOR FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION FOR GRANT AWARDED AND 
APPROVED BY THE COUNCIL ON AUGUST 16, 2017.  IN THE PRIOR YEAR THE INTENT TO FUND THE MATCH WAS FROM 
VACANT POSITIONS; THEREFORE THIS WILL COME FROM GENERAL FUND RESERVES SINCE THIS DID NOT OCCUR IN 
FY 2017.

176



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

2. Ordinance No. 2669 - Second Reading - Bear Management Program & Containers           Jay Davoll 
  

177



 

 

 CITY OF APOPKA  

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

       CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: August 15, 2018  

 X   PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:             Public Services  

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:      Ordinance No. 2669  

  X   OTHER: ORDINANCE 
  

 

SUBJECT: ORDINANCE NO. 2669 – AMENDING MUNICIPAL REFUSE COLLECTION 

SERVICE 

 

REQUEST: SECOND READING OF ORDINANCE 2669 – AMENDING MUNICIPAL REFUSE 

COLLECTION SERVICE – ESTABLISHING A BEAR MANAGEMENT AREA 

AND REFUSE COLLECTION PROCEDURES 
  
SUMMARY: 

 

According to the Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission (FWC), Apopka borders one of the 

most abundant black bear populations in the State and rates Orange County as reporting the 7
th

 highest 

number of human-bear conflicts in 2017. The FWC attributes a large percentage of these conflicts to bears 

looking for food sources including food in garbage cans, pet food and bird feeders. These human-bear 

conflicts have been dangerous or fatal to humans and bears and the risk of conflicts increases with a 

growing City and bear population. In an effort to help reduce the number of human-bear conflicts, Staff 

consulted with FWC and recommends the changes to the City Code listed in Ordinance 2669, which 

establishes a Bear Management Area and a bear resistant refuse container program, The Ordinance also 

restricts the hours refuse containers can be placed at the curb, within the bear management area and where 

the refuse container is stored unless a bear resistant refuse container is used. It also requires bird feeders 

and pet food to be kept inaccessible to bears. By enacting these ordinance changes, the City also increases 

its chances to receive 2018 FWC grant funding for bear resistant refuse containers, two thirds of which 

will be reserved for municipalities with bear ordinances in place. 

 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

August 3, 2018 – Public Notice (Apopka Chief) 

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

N/A 

    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Approve the second reading of Ordinance No. 2669. 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 178



ORDINANCE NO. 2669 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, AMENDING CHAPTER 66 “SOLID WASTE” 

OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, BY AMENDING ARTICLE II, DIVISION 

1, SECTION 66-36 “DEFINITIONS;” SECTION 66-37 “AUTHORITY OF PUBLIC SERVICES DIRECTOR;” 

SECTION 66-40 “SPECIAL COLLECTION PROBLEMS;” SECTION 66-65 “PREPARATION OF 

METERIALS FOR COLLECTION;” SECTION 66-66 “PLACEMENT OF MATERIALS FOR 

COLLECTION;” SECTION 66-68 “FEE SCHEDULE – RESIDENTIAL;” AND SECTION 66-90 

“PREPARATION OF MATERIALS FOR COLLECTION;” AND; PROVIDING DEFINITIONS; 

PROVIDING FOR APPLICABILITY;  PROVIDING FOR A BEAR MANAGEMENT AREA; PROVIDING 

FOR ENFORCEMENT AND FINES; PROVIDING FOR PENALTIES; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT, 

SEVERABILITY; AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Article VIII, Section 1 of the Florida Constitution and Chapter 125, Florida Statutes, the City of 

Apopka is authorized to protect the public health, safety, and welfare of its residents, and has the power and authority to enact 

regulations for valid government purposes that are not inconsistent with general or special law; and 

 

 WHEREAS, according to the Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission (FWC), black bears have recovered from 

population declines and are a conservation success story for Florida and the FWC; and 

 

 WHEREAS, a consequence of this conservation success is an increase in human-bear conflicts within urban area; and  

 

 WHEREAS, black bears are attracted to unsecured refuse at residences and businesses found in bear range areas; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the majority of human-bear conflicts within urban areas are associated with unsecured refuse, and some of those 

conflicts have resulted in injury to humans; and 

 

WHEREAS, in 2017, Orange County reported the seventh highest number of human-bear conflicts in the State; and 

 

WHEREAS, according to the FWC, the City of Apopka borders one of the most abundant black bear populations in the State; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that the incidence of bears entering populated areas of the City of Apopka to 

forage for food in refuse containers, and from other sources, is increasing and has reached a level that poses a threat to the health, 

safety, and welfare of the citizens and visitors to the City. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, as follows: 

 

SECTION I. That Chapter 66, Article II, of the Code of Ordinances is hereby amended in its entirety with the provisions stated below: 

 

ARTICLE II.  MUNICIPAL REFUSE COLLECTION SERVICE 

 

Section 66-36.  Definitions. 

For the purpose of this Article the following terms, phrases, words and their derivatives shall have the meaning given herein. 

When not inconsistent with the context, words used in the present tense include the future, words in the plural include the 

singular, and words in the singular include the plural.  

(a) “Bear Management Area” means an area within the City of Apopkain which there is a high incidence rate of human-

bear interactions recorded by the Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission (FWC), occurring at a level 

that poses a potential threat to the health, safety, and welfare to the citizens, employees and visitors of the City and is 

designated as such by the Director. 

(b) "Bear Resistant Household Garbage Container" means a City approved residential household garbage container 

with a locking mechanism that prevents access to the contents by bears. 

(c) “Secured Structure" means a structure in which refuse is stored in such a manner as to minimize the attraction of 

bears and to serve as a bear resistant barrier during the interim between refuse discard, collection and disposal.  A 

screened enclosure does not qualify as a secured structure.  

 

Section 66-37.  Authority of the Public Services Director.  

 

(b) A Bear Management Program is hereby established, which provides for a container replacement program to 

reduce the human-bear interactions, which will be implemented within the City limits of Apopka, applying 

additional restrictions within the Bear Management Area as designated by the Public Services Director, following 

consultation with the Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission (FWC). 

(c) Within the Bear Management Area, responsible parties are required to comply with the following best 

management practices when the failure to do so creates, or would reasonably be expected to create, a lure or 

enticement for bears: 

a. Bird Feeders: Bird and hummingbird feeders are allowed, however, feeders must be suspended on a 

cable or other device so that they are inaccessible to bears, and the area below the feeders must be kept 

free from the accumulation of seed debris. 

b. Pet Food:  Pet food or food bowls may not be left out overnight or unattended, unless kept in a secured 

enclosed kennel with a roof.  If possible, pets are to be fed indoors.  Pet food must be stored in a 

secured structure or other means that prevents access by bears.  A screened enclosure does not qualify 

as a secured structure. 

 

Section 66-40. Special Collection Problems. 

 
179



ORDINANCE NO. 2669 

Page 2 of 3 

(a) Collection from location other than curbside.  The Public Services Director or designee shall visit any residence to determine if 

curbside placement of City approved containers is impossible.  A verification by a medical doctor that the resident is unable to 

physically place the containers may be required.  Disabled Service.  A resident certifies that all occupants of the residence over 

the age of 18 are physically incapable of placing the City approved garbage and recycling containers at the curb for collection 

may request pickup at an alternate location which is agreeable to the resident and the Public Services Director.  Verification 

from a medical doctor must be included with the certification.  This service is not available for yard trash or bulky pickups. 

 

(g) Non-Compliant Pick Up.  For any violation of this Chapter regarding any pick up of solid waste or material referenced in this 

Chapter, including, but not limited to, early placement, mixing garbage with yard trash or recycling, unauthorized 

accumulation or scattering of solid waste or other material, the Pubic Services Director shall have the authority to assess an 

administrative charge for the actual cost of labor, vehicles and other materials necessary to properly transport the solid waste 

or other materials away from the customer’s residential or commercial premises.  For any and all successive non-compliant 

pick-ups during any twelve (12) month period, the Public Services Director, in addition to the administrative charge, shall 

have the authority to assess an administrative fee, up to and including, one hundred dollars ($100.00), commensurate with the 

reasonably estimated other costs associated with addressing the violations. 

 

 

 

 

 

Section 66-65.  Preparation of materials for collection. 

 

(g) Containers for recyclable materials Recycling.  All recyclable material shall be placed in the City approved recycling container 

furnished by the City to the residential user; if more recyclable storage is needed, the City will provide, at no cost, a sticker with 

the letter “R” that may be placed on the City approved household trash container identifying its use for recyclable material.  

Material shall be placed in the designated City approved recycling container with the lid completely closed, and shall not be 

bagged.  Materials placed for recycling shall only include items designated by the City.  Mixing of non-designated items, garbage 

or yard trash with recycling will be subject to refusal by the solid waste collector and may incur costs and fees in accordance with 

the provisions of Section 66-40(g).  The recycling container must be free of garbage, and recyclable items in the recycling 

container must be sufficiently free of food waste, so it does not attract bears. 

 

Section 66-66.  Placement of materials for collection. 

 

(b) Additional Restrictions within Bear Management Areas.  Garbage containers containing household garbage must be 

maintained in a secured structure, inaccessible to bears, such as a garage or bear proof enclosure.  The containers must be 

placed at the curb or the point designated by the Public Services Director for collection, no earlier than 5:00 a.m. and not later 

than 7:00 a.m. on collection day.  As an alternative, residents may use a City approved bear resistant household garbage 

container in place of the standard garbage container, in which case the additional restrictions in this Section may be avoided. 

 

 

Section 66-68.  Fee Schedule - Residential. 

 

(i) Disable Service.  No additional charges, if the requirements of Section 66-40(a) are satisfied. 

 

Section 66-90.  Preparation of materials for collection. 

 

(h) Additional Restrictions within Bear Management Areas.  Commercial garbage collection customers which are located within 

designated Bear Management Areas are required to report any incidence of a bear accessing or attempting to access refuse 

containers on the customer’s property to the City of Apopka Public Services Department within 48 hours. 

 

 

SECTION II.  Public Employees 

 

That no provision of this chapter designating the duties of any City officer or employee shall be so construed as to make such officer 

or employee liable for any fine or penalty for failure to perform such duty. 

 

SECTION III.  Penalty: 

 

Violations of this Ordinance shall be prosecuted in the manner provided by general law and the Apopka Code of Ordinances. 

 

SECTION IV.  Conflicts: 

 

All ordinances and resolutions, or parts of ordinances and resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 

 

SECTION V.  Severability: 

 

If any section, or portion of a section or subsection, of this ordinance proves to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be 

held to invalidate or impair the validity, force or effect of any other section or portion of a section or subsection or part of this 

ordinance. 

 

SECTION VI.  Effective Date: 

 

This ordinance shall become effective immediately upon adoption. 

  

 

      FIRST READING: _________________________ 

 

      SECOND READING 

    and ADOPTION: ________________________ 

 

 180



ORDINANCE NO. 2669 

Page 3 of 3 

   

     _________________________________________ 

                     Bryan Nelson, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

________________________________ 

Linda F. Goff, City Clerk 

 

 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                

 

 

DULY ADVERTISED FOR PUBLIC HEARING: ________________  

181


	Top
	1. 08-15-18 - CC - APPROVAL OF MINUTES 8-1-18
	08-01-18 draft.docx

	1. 08-15-18 - CC - Presentations - Records Powerpoint
	JULY RM Month.pdf

	1. 08-15-18 - CC - Consent - Green Bank Signatory Update
	08-15-18 - Staff Report Signature Bank First GREEN Bank.docx

	2. 08-15-18 - CC - Consent - RFP for KLN Trails Award
	PS - Kit Land Nelson Park Fitness Trails RFP Award.docx
	SBH - Reference Verfication Documents.pdf

	3. 08-15-18 - CC - Consent - PS - Rolloff Renew Mid Florida Materials
	PS - Rolloff Renew Mid Florida Materials.docx

	4. 08-15-18 - CC - Consent - Sunday Funday Alcohol Sales
	Agenda - Sunday Fun Day Alcohol Sales.docx

	5. 08-15-18 - CC - Consent - Room Rental Fee
	Recreation - Center Room Rental Fees.docx

	1. 08-15-18 - CC - Business - Buffer Variance Appeal - Hidden Lake Reserve Subdivision (TO BE PLACED ON THE AGENDA BEFORE THE PRELIMINARY DEV. PLAN)
	1 TGINF LLC - Hidden Lake- Appeal - CC 8.15.18.pdf
	2 TGINF LLC - Appeal App - VAR18-06 - DRC 07-25-18.pdf
	3 VAR18-06 Applicant Proposed Wall Fence Site Plan.pdf
	4 TGINF - Hidden Lake- Variance - PC 6-12-18.pdf
	5 PC 06-12-18 Minutes.pdf
	6 Variance and Appeal Procedures from LDC.pdf

	2. 08-15-18 - CC - Business - Preliminary Development Plan - Hidden Lake Reserve Subdivision
	1 Hidden Lake Reserve Subdivision PDP - CC 8 15 18.pdf
	3 Hidden Lake PDP - Landscape Plans.pdf
	4 OCPS Email RE Wall Adjacent to Apopka ES.pdf
	2 Hidden Lake PDP - Full Plans.pdf

	3. 08-15-18 - CC - Business - FD - Interlocal Agreements
	08-15-18 - FD OC Interlocal Agreements.docx
	Fire Interlocal Agreements Final.pdf

	4. 08-15-18 - CC - Consent - School Resource Officer
	SRO Agreement FY18-19.docx
	SPD CID Cop18081310010.pdf

	5. 08-15-18 - CC - Business - Red Light Camera - ATS
	CA - 08-15-18 - Red Light Camera Final.pdf

	1. 08-15-18 - CC - Resolution - Budget Amendment - Cops Grant &amp; KLN Trails
	08-15-18 - 5th Budget Amendment Resolution 2018-13.docx
	08-15-18 - Budget Amendment Resolution 2018-13.docx
	08-15-18 - Budget Amendment #5 08-15-18.pdf

	2. 08-15-18 - CC - Ordinances - 2nd Rd - Ord. #2669
	2nd Read Ordinance 2669 Staff Report.docx
	Ordinance 2669.pdf

	1. 08-15-18 - CC - Mayors Report - FLC Proposed Resolutions
	3. 08-15-18 - CC - Mayors Report - Playground Grant
	Bottom

